
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Joint Chief Executive 

Rob Barlow 
 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

LB/COUNCIL/AG 

Please ask for: Lorraine Bush, Democratic Services Manager 
 
25 February 2022 
 
TO: ALL MEMBERS OF THE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

MEETING OF THE COUNCIL - 7 MARCH 2022 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Council on Monday, 7th March, 2022 at 6.30 

pm at the Jakemans Community Stadium, Pilgrim Way, Wyberton, Boston PE21 7NE 

  

 
ROB BARLOW 
Joint Chief Executive 
 

 

AGENDA 
 

PART I - PRELIMINARIES 
 
A. To sign the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 22 November 2021 

attached at pages 1 – 8. 

B. To receive apologies for absence. 

C. To receive communications (if any) from the Mayor and the Chief Executive. 

D. To receive deputations or petitions (if any) pursuant to Rules 12 and 13 of the 
Council’s Rules of Procedure. 

E. To answer questions (if any) from elected members pursuant to Rule 11 of the 
Council’s Rules of Procedure. 

F. To answer questions (if any) from members of the public pursuant to Rule 10 of 
the Council’s Rules of Procedure 

G. To receive declarations by Members of any interests in respect of items on 
the agenda. 

 

Public Document Pack



PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1  AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES (Pages 9 - 16) 
 

 (To receive the confirmed minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Governance 
Committee held on 8 November 2021) 
 

2   BUDGET AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2022.23 TO 2026.7 
(Pages 17 - 172) 
 

 (Report by the Deputy Chief Executive Corporate Development and s151 Officer)  
 

3   COUNCIL TAX SETTING 2022/23 (Pages 173 - 192) 
 

 (Report by the Deputy Chief Executive Corporate Development and s151 Officer)  
 

4   PAY POLICY STATEMENT (Pages 193 - 208) 
 

 (Report by the Deputy Chief Executive Corporate Development and s151 Officer)  
 

5   APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS (Pages 209 - 220) 
 

 (Report by the Deputy Chief Executive Corporate Development and s151 Officer)  
 

 

PART III - MOTIONS ON NOTICE 
 

TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING MOTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH PROCEDURE 
RULE 14:- 

This Council resolves re-establish a Service in the Community Award with the first 
round taking place within this Civic Year; awards being in the form of the 
appropriate certificates presented by The Worshipful The Mayor of Boston and a 
reception hosted in honour of the recipients. 

This Council further resolves to restore the Service in the Community Award on an 

annual basis to thank, encourage, and support community volunteering. 

Nominations to be considered by a politically balanced panel of Councillors, with 

sufficient capacity to thank all those so deserving of our gratitude. 

 
Proposer: Councillor Tom Ashton 

Seconder: Councillor Nigel Welton 

 
 



 
 
 

 
Questions from Members of the Council and the public must be received by 5 p.m. two 
clear working days prior to the day of the meeting – the deadline for this meeting is  
5 p.m. on Wednesday 2 March 2022. 
 
 

 
 
Alternative Versions - Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format 
such as larger text, Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on 
direct dial (01205) 314227 
 
The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Lorraine Bush, 
Democratic Services Manager, Municipal Buildings, Boston Telephone 01205 314224  e-mail 
lorraine.bush@boston.gov.uk 



This page is intentionally left blank



BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
At the Meeting of Boston Borough Council held at the Jakemans Community Stadium, 
Pilgrim Way, Wyberton, Boston, on Monday, 22nd November, 2021 at 6.30 pm 
 
Present: 
The Mayor (Councillor Frank Pickett), in the Chair 
Councillors Tracey Abbott, Tom Ashton, Alison Austin, Richard Austin BEM, 
Peter Bedford, David Brown, Michael Cooper, George Cornah, Anton Dani, 
Deborah Evans, Paul Goodale, Martin Griggs, Martin Howard, Jonathan Noble,   
Yvonne Stevens, Chelcei Trafford, Peter Watson, Judith Welbourn, Nigel Welton and 
Stephen Woodliffe 
 
Officers –  
Chief Executive, Strategic Advisor, Democratic Services Delivery Manager, and Civic 
and Member Services Officer.  
 
27  MINUTES 
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 27 September 2021 were taken as 
read and signed by the Mayor as a correct record.  
 
28  APOLOGIES 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Alan Bell, Katie Chalmers,  
Viven Edge, Neill Hastie, Judith Skinner and Paul Skinner. 
 
29 COMMUNICATIONS 
 
The Chief Executive reported on the recent sad passing of Shaun Lewis from the 
Council’s Car Park Enforcement Team and expressed condolences on behalf of the 
Council to his family, friends and colleagues.  
 
30 DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS 
 
The Chief Executive reported there were no deputations or petitions. 
 
31 QUESTIONS FROM ELECTED MEMBERS 
 
The Chief Executive reported there were no questions from elected members. 
 
32 QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 
The Chief Executive reported there was a question from Mr. Darron Abbott. 
 
Question asked by Mr. Darron Abbott pursuant to paragraph 10 of the Rules of 
Procedure as set out in the Constitution:- 
 
“At every local election I can remember the promise of being open and accountable has 
appeared on Conservative leaflet.  Is this a commitment made by the candidate alone if 

Page 1

Agenda Item A.



elected or is it extended to making a promise that the whole Council will become open 
and accountable and to whom is this promise made?” 
 
Response by Councillor Nigel Welton  
 
“Thank you for your question Mr Abbott, yes indeed openness and accountability 
whether on a leaflet or not is something that I am sure every candidate aspires to. 
 
Once elected all members are bound by the current code of conduct which is based on 
the Seven Principles of Public Life, also known as the Nolan Principles. 
 
I am sure you are aware of these principles which is available on the .gov website and 
our councillors code of conduct is accessible on our website. 
 
If you wish, I can send you links to both, but for clarity the seven principles are:-  
 

• Selflessness 

• Integrity 

• Objectivity 

• Accountability 

• Openness 

• Honesty and  

• Leadership 
 
I hope this provides some insight and answers your question.” 
 
Supplemental question asked by Mr. Abbott pursuant to paragraph 10.8 of the 
Rules of Procedure as set out in the Constitution:- 
 
“You received my supplementary question at 2 p.m. this afternoon so should be able to 
answer.  
 
So do we put this into practice all of the way through this Council.  
 
There is a requirement to publish details of the contract register, after checking this 
morning the final entry is 18/19 Q4, this was brought to the attention of the relevant 
portfolio holder earlier this year, nothing done. 
 
The deal with Garfit’s park for a local football club to have exclusive use of the facilities 
for a rent of £1,500  per year. The agreement that was never passed over to the finance 
department to raise an invoice for the rent that was never paid. Then the Council officers 
deliberately gave misleading information twice in Freedom of Information request before 
being honest in the third attempt regarding this arrangement. The continual fly tipping in 
the park by one person and despite assurances by Christian Allen the blind eye 
continued to be turned. 
 
We had the Asda/Tesco Fly tipping fiasco with lots of strange deals that has now been 
covered over and all forgotten about apart from the Portfolio Holder that lost their 
position in the cabinet because of the mess. I understood that the new contracts were to 
be agreed and signed by the end of November but has still yet to be approved by 
Cabinet. 

Page 2



 
 

 
 

 
Then more confusion and misleading information in a freedom of information request 
about £2000 paid out of a budget that does not exist.  This contradicting information 
given to a portfolio holder by an officer. 
 
The cover up of events last week which I am sure you are aware, let’s just refer to this 
as operation dam buster. 
 
The refusal to answer a subject access request because some of the documents will 
cause embarrassment to the Council. 
 
Finally an item on this evening’s agenda the city status bid I have emailed both 
Councillors Noble and Austin for details of the costs of this application, in fact at the last 
Cabinet meeting you raised concerns that there was no mention of the costs of 
preparing the bid. I note that the costs are minimal, whilst I appreciate that Councillor 
Austin is not bound by the openness and accountable policy that applies to other 
conservative members, I would have thought someone could have given me some idea 
of what this project is costing. 
 
After these instances would you agree that the open and accountable policy is only 
operated when it is great publicity for this Council?” 
 
Response by Councillor Welton 
 
“I did receive your supplementary question and having read through it I can only find one 
question in the last sentence and the answer to that is no.”  
 
 
33 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
Councillor Tom Ashton declared an interest in the reports on the agenda relating to the 
Joint Scrutiny of the Strategic Alliance and the South and East Lincolnshire Councils 
Partnership on the grounds of being an elected member of East Lindsey District Council.  
Councillor Ashton confirmed that he would consider the matters as a member of Boston 
Borough Council only.  
 
34 AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 
It was moved by Councillor Peter Watson, seconded by Councillor Anton Dani and  
 

 
RESOLVED that the confirmed minutes of the meetings of the Audit and 
Governance Committee held on 24 May and 20 September 2021 be received. 
 

 
 
35 JOINT BBC / ELDC SCRUTINY OF THE STRATEGIC ALLIANCE  
 
Councillor Stephen Woodliffe, Chairman of the Corporate and Community Committee, 
introduced a report by the Scrutiny Officer on a review of the Strategic Alliance 
undertaken by a Joint Scrutiny Panel of members from both authorities.  

Page 3



 
The review focused on four key areas of: 
 

• To understand the progress that had been made so far in bringing together 
functions and teams across the alliance; 

• To assess whether joint working on the planning and delivery of services had 
mitigated pressure on the Councils’ budgets; and whether projected savings 
(money and capacity) were being achieved; 

• To understand the opportunities that had been secured by the Councils’ working 
collaboratively together; 

• To understand how it had been possible to merge cultures, the difficulties that 
had arisen from this and how this could be managed.  

 
The Panel met on three occasions, interviewed six witnesses and conducted a survey of 
BBC and ELDC Councillors to canvass their views.  The results of the survey were 
attached at Appendix D of the report.  
 
The report of the Joint Scrutiny Panel was set out in Appendix A of the report and 
contained eleven recommendations arising from the Panel’s considerations:- 
 

1. That staff ‘snapshot’ surveys are reported to Overview / Scrutiny on a 6-monthly 
basis along with staff turnover figures, in order to monitor any significant changes; 

 
2. Review the ICT roadmap priorities and ensure that shared email addresses for 

officers is given the highest priority; 
 

3. To develop a shared strategy to ensure that staff are valued and given 
opportunities to progress, with a view to enhancing recruitment and retention; 

 
4. To better communicate to staff, councillors, and residents any relevant updates or 

priorities, and to celebrate the successes across the alliance; 
 

5. To provide opportunities for more collaborative working for all councillors, such as 
scrutiny panels, project groups, and other shared opportunities across the 
alliance / partnership, especially where there is commonality, e.g., licensing and 
planning policy; 

 
6. To provide an opportunity for councillors to visit partner districts to meet other 

councillors and gain an awareness of the ‘place’ of other districts; 
 

7. Move to an alignment of policies, e.g., procurement, climate change, and 
recycling; 

 
8. To encourage the development of a strong sense of identity within the 3 areas of 

the alliance and the opportunities that they offer. This will help develop a 
sustainable, resilient, and vibrant economy and population; 

 
9. To prepare a strategy so the partnership is fully prepared for the possibility of 

devolution. 
 

Page 4



 
 

 
 

10.  That the alliance should work together to lobby the government to ensure the 
financial sustainability of the IDBs on which the residents and the land of the 3 
councils heavily rely; 

 
11. To convene a shared scrutiny panel of the 3 Councils in the new Partnership at 

the end of the first and second year, in order to undertake a review of the 
Partnership and merged workforce. 

 
The report had been considered at the meeting of the Corporate and Community 
Committee held on 4 November 2021, and referred to full Council.  
 
Members welcomed the positive report, but raised some concerns regarding 
questionnaire responses identifying communication as an area for improvement and the 
lack of response to the survey had been disappointing. 
 
In summing up Councillor Woodliffe thanked Members for their supportive comments 
and recognising the important function scrutiny played in the democratic process, and 
agreed to take on board the issues raised in respect of communication. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Stephen Woodliffe, seconded by Councillor Judith 
Welbourn and  
 

 
RESOLVED that the report of the Joint Scrutiny Panel, as set out in Appendix A, 
be noted.  
 

 
 
36 BOSTON CITY STATUS APPLICATION 
 
Councillor Richard Austin, Portfolio Holder for Heritage, introduced a report by the 
Assistant Director – Economic Growth, on the proposal to submit an application for 
Boston to receive City Status as part of a competition launched to celebrate Her Majesty 
the Queen’s Platinum Jubilee in 2022.  
 
The report stated that the Council was working with partner organisations to form a bid 
for City Status.  Other towns know to be intending to apply included Bangor, Irvine, 
Merthyr Tydfil, Oban, Guildford, Warrington, Newport, Reading, Dudley, Swindon, 
Medway, Wrexham and Middlesbrough.  Although it carried no special rights, the status 
of city was considered to be a marker of prestige and conferred local pride. 
 
The application for city status supported the priorities in the Corporate Strategy by 
raising the profile of Boston as a place to live, visit and invest in, supported the town 
Investment Plan (Town Deal), bolstered the growth objectives as a regional sub-centre 
of the County, championing skills development and learning, supporting businesses, 
promoting trade and inward investment opportunities and equipping Boston and its 
centre for the future.  
 
There were five parts to the application process, which included a summary, an 
introduction highlighting why the area deserved city status, a profile of the area to 
incorporate statistics, up to 50 photographs of permanent features and a detailed map of 

Page 5



the area showing the main tourism, leisure and entertainment sites, green spaces 
accessible to the public and main transport routes.  
 
Full details of the focus and strength of the proposed application was set out in section 2 
of the report, which had been created by an internal working group, and considered at 
meetings of Group Leaders, Boston Town Deal Board, Stakeholder engagement event, 
and Cabinet on 20 October which had supported the application for city status.  
 
In order for the application to be submitted within the deadline of 8 December 2021, it 
was proposed to grant delegated authority to the Deputy Chief Executive – Growth, in 
consultation with the Portfolio Holder, to approve and submit the bid on behalf of the 
Council.  
 
Members expressed their overall support for submitting the City Status application, 
recognising the benefits that it could bring to the area by promoting the history and 
heritage, its worldwide connections and increase investment opportunities for economic 
growth.  However, it was also recognised that the application if successful would need to 
be supported by action and investment.  
 
Clarification was sought as to why the Council was not applying for Royal Borough 
status rather than city status as it was suggested this would be of greater significance 
and attract more visitors.  In response it was noted that guidance had been sought on 
the option for Royal Borough status, but since 1926 the entitlement had been strictly 
enforced.  
 
It was moved by Councillor Richard Austin, seconded by Councillor Nigel Welton 
and  
 

 
RESOLVED  
 
1. That the proposal for Boston Borough Council to submit an application for 

the town to receive City Status as part of the competition to celebrate Her 

Majesty the Queen’s Platinum Jubilee in 2022 be agreed. 

2. That delegated authority be granted to the Deputy Chief Executive – 

Growth, in consultation with Councillor Richard Austin, Portfolio Holder for 

Heritage, to approve and submit the application for City Status by the 

deadline of 8th December 2021. 

 
37 SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP  
 
The Strategic Advisor introduced a report setting out the progress of the South and East 
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership (SELCP) since the approval of the business case by 
the partner authorities in July / August 2021, and seeking consideration of a series of 
recommendations to support and enable the successful achievement of the Set Up 
stage for the strategic partnership.  
 
The report stated that the business case for the SELCP had identified and established 
four stages for building the partnership, namely:-  
 

Page 6



 
 

 
 

• Setting the Foundations 

• Set-up 

• Accelerate; and 

• Embed 
 
The progress of the Setting the Foundations stage, as identified by key deliverables in 
the approved business plan, was set out in Table 1 of the report.  
 
The next phase was to move to the Set-Up stage to maintain the successful momentum 
and ensure the Partnership could positively impact on the lives of all communities with 
South and East Lincolnshire.  
 
The report was divided into sections to provide information and background in support of 
the recommendations relating to the Set-Up stage under the following headings:-  
 

• Setting the Foundations 

• Work Programme 

• Performance Framework  

• Financial Opportunities 

• Governance Framework; and 

• Employment Terms and Conditions  
 
The Strategic Advisor provided context and narrative to the recommendations when 
introducing the report.  
 
Members debated the paper before them, highlighting concerns regarding the low 
ranking of the area in respect of education, skills and training identified in Appendix B 
Performance Framework, and the need to invest in education. The lack of information in 
the proposed performance framework was questioned and it was noted that the 
document would be fully populated once the work programme set out in Appendix A had 
been agreed.  
 
Discussion moved to Appendix D of the report, which had been restricted from 
publication, therefore it was moved by Councillor Nigel Welton, seconded by 
Councillor Martin Griggs and  
 

 
RESOLVED that the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the 
consideration of Appendix D of the report on the grounds that it involved the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 4 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local 
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006.  
 

 
The Strategic Advisor provided an update on the consultation with affected staff on the 
proposed single terms and conditions, including pay structure, for the Shared Corporate 
Management Team and progress on the recruitment process for the vacant post of 
Deputy Chief Executive– Communities.  
 
Council was accepting of the proposals recognising that to recruit and retain high calibre 
professional officers with the required skills, knowledge and experience it was necessary 

Page 7



to offer an attractive remuneration package.  However, equalising the pay for all 
employees across the authorities should be taken forward as a priority.  
 
It was moved by Councillor Nigel Welton, seconded by Councillor Martin Griggs 
and  
 

 
RESOLVED that the exclusion of the public and press from the meeting be 
rescinded for the decision to be taken in open session.  
 

 
It was moved by Councillor Nigel Welton, seconded by Councillor Jonathan Noble 
and  
 

 
RESOLVED  
 

1. That the progress of the South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership 

since approval by Council on the 2 August 2021 be noted. 

2. That the Work Programme priorities for the South and East Lincolnshire 

Councils Partnership for the Set-Up stage as set out in Appendix A be 

approved. 

3. That the performance framework and the frequency of performance 

reporting to Council for the South and East Lincolnshire Councils 

Partnership as set out in Appendix B be noted. 

4. That the financial opportunities for the MTFS for each partnership Council, 

to be developed as part of the budgeting setting process for each Council, 

as set out in Appendix C be noted. 

5. That the governance framework for the South and East Lincolnshire 

Councils Partnership and proposals for the scrutiny of the partnership on 

an annual basis be noted. 

6. That the employment terms and conditions (including the pay structure) for 

the Integrated Shared Senior Management Team as set out in Appendix D 

be approved.  

 

 
 

(The meeting ended at 8.40 p.m.) 

Page 8



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

FULL COUNCIL 
 

7TH MARCH 2022 
 
 

 
To receive the confirmed minutes  

of the meeting of the  
Audit and Governance Committee held on  

8th November 2021. 
 
 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

8 November 2021 

Present: Councillor Peter Watson (Chairman),  (Vice-Chairman), Councillors 
Tom Ashton, Richard Austin BEM, David Brown, Katie Chalmers, Anton Dani, 
Paul Goodale, Martin Howard, Frank Pickett, Stephen Woodliffe and Mr Alan Pickering 
 
In attendance: Councillor Jonathan Noble, Portfolio Holder for Finance 
 
Officers –  
Deputy Chief Executive (Programme Delivery & SIRO), Insights & Transformation 
Manager, Head of Internal Audit (City of Lincoln Council), Principal Auditor (City of 
Lincoln Council), Manager – Public Sector, Mazars and Senior Democratic Services 
Officer 
 
12   MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the last meeting, held on 20th September 2021, were agreed as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
13   APOLOGIES 

 
Apologies were received from Councillor George Cornah  
 
14   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
None. 
 
15   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
None. 
 
16   UPDATE ON AUDIT OF STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2020/21 

 
The Deputy Chief Finance Officer (Corporate) gave a verbal update on the progress of 
the audit of the Council’s Financial Statements for 2020/21 as follows. 
 
The external audit of Boston BC’s Financial Statements for 20/21 was still in its early 
stages.  
 
External auditors were due to commence Boston audit work again from week 
commencing 22nd November for 2 weeks.  Throughout this audit work, the officer would 
ensure their audit queries and requests were dealt with as a priority in order that this 
work could be progressed quickly. 
 
Confirmation was given at the last meeting when the draft Financial Statements were 
presented that the Committee would receive be updated on any changes that were 
made during the review and audit process. There were four changes currently being 
made to the accounts to bring to the Committee’s attention, which were briefly referred 
to at the last meeting. 
 

Page 11



Audit & Governance Committee 
8 November 2021 
 

1. An updated pensions report had now been received from the actuary. Officers were 

informed by LCC that there were some updated asset valuations that were not included 

in the first set of pension reports, due to the timing of this information being available – 

this was an item that affected many local authorities throughout Lincolnshire and wider, 

not just Boston.  In Boston’s report, this was a £1.2m increase in the closing fair value of 

pension fund assets, which reduced the net pensions liability by this same figure. This 

reduced the net pensions liability in the Balance Sheet offset against the pensions 

reserve so effectively increased the net worth of the Council by this value. There was no 

impact on the General Fund outturn due to these accounting entries being reversed in 

the Movement in Reserves Statement under statutory accounting requirements. 

2. The amount owing to East Lindsey District Council (ELDC) by Boston regarding Strategic 

Alliance arrangements at the year-end was reduced by £42,000 as a result of a full 

review of the recharges between each authority. This was not material but was adjusted 

for completeness, and this was a favourable movement of £42,000 on the outturn report 

and on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, and reduced the creditor 

to ELDC in the Balance Sheet at the year-end. This adjustment had been reviewed and 

approved by the new S151 Officer. 

3. Business Rates Levy – as discussed at the previous meeting, LG Futures were engaged 

to review the bad debt provision of the Collection Fund and an additional amount was set 

aside for the potential irrecoverable business rates debts. This did increase the Business 

Rates deficit, but additional Tax Income Guarantee income was received. As a result, the 

Business Rates levy payable to the pool increased by £128,000. 

4. Finally, officers had undertaken a review of the treatment of the grants relating to Covid 

and had identified £166,000 of New Burdens funding incorrectly classified on the working 

papers.  It had been put it into creditors on the Balance Sheet at year-end, effectively 

owing back to Central Government, where it should have been put into reserves as it was 

for the Council to decide how to utilise this money in administering the grants. This 

reduced the creditors on the Balance Sheet at year-end by £166,000 and increased 

usable reserves. 

Taking these adjustments into account in total, the General Fund outturn position was 
improved by £80,000. This was proposed to be transferred to the Covid budget 
pressures smoothing reserve as part of the outturn report, being presented to Cabinet in 
December. 
 
Whilst every effort was taken to ensure the draft financial statements were as accurate 
as possible at the time of publishing, they were 95 pages long and it was often the case 
that upon further review, officers find items that need adjusting. It was much more 
preferable that officer found these items before the auditors, in order that they could be 
transparent and ensure the required adjustments were made. 
 
The General Ledger had been updated with these entries, and full working papers 
containing an audit trail of these changes and the notes they impact on in the accounts 
was currently in progress, this would be finalised this week. Officers were not aware of 
any further changes at this point in time, but they would inform the Committee of any 
further amendments when the audited Financial Statements were presented for 
approval. It was aimed to present these to the Committee in January, subject to no 
significant issues arising during the audit, and subject to no further delays regarding 
audit work.  

Page 12



Audit & Governance Committee 
8 November 2021 

 

 
Officers were in the process of arranging a training session on the Financial Statements, 
which would hopefully keep the document fresh in the Committee’s mind ready for the 
meeting where Members would be asked to consider and approve the final version of 
the audited Financial Statements, hopefully in January. 
 
17   TREASURY MANAGEMENT - 2021/22 MID-YEAR UPDATE 

 
The Interim Treasury & Investment Manager presented the Mid-Year Report on the 
Council’s Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy.  
 
The report, attached at Appendix A, covered the following areas: 

• A review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy 

• The Council’s capital expenditure (prudential indicators) 

• A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2021/22 

• A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2021/22 
 
Attached at Appendix B was an economic update for the first six months of the 2021/22 
financial year, provided by Link Asset Services, the Council’s external advisors.  This 
included the outlook for the remainder of the financial year along with interest rate 
forecasts.   
 
The report referred to a key element of the Council’s Governance Framework and, 
therefore, represented an important contribution to the evidence trail in support of the 
Annual Governance Statement 2021/22. 
 
At 30 September 2021, the Council held £24.105m in cash investments (£17.690m at 31 
March) and £20.711m in property funds (£19.492m at 31 March).  

 
The Council budgeted to receive £1,016,000 in gross investment income in 2021/22 
comprising £977,000 from Property Funds (including £215,000 management fees) and 
£39,000 from cash investments. 

 
As at 30 September 2021, total investment income for the year was estimated to be 
£946,000 comprising £924,000 from Property Funds and £22,000 from cash 
investments. Property Fund Management fees for 2021/22 were currently estimated at 
£215,000.  

 
In 2021/22, cumulatively to 30 September 2021, the Council achieved an average gross 
revenue return (before deduction of management charges) of 4.46% from the Property 
Fund holdings, and 3.42% net (after the deduction of those charges).  
 
Treasury (cash) Investments achieved an average rate of 0.9% compared to the 
benchmark average 3-month LIBID rate of -0.054%.  
 
Borrowing at 30 September 2021 was £16.449m of which £15.449m was from the Public 
Works & Loans Board. Total borrowing costs for 2021/22 were projected to be 
£494,000.  
 

Page 13



Audit & Governance Committee 
8 November 2021 
 

Treasury Management continued to require close attention given the current financial 
climate. Officers would continue to be vigilant and report any significant issues to this 
Committee. 
 
Members discussed the Council’s cash and property fund investments 
 
It was explained that the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy stated that investments 
were limited with any one institution to no more than £3m invested per institution, and £5m per 
counterparty ‘group’. The 28 working days residual balances in excess of the £5m limit were 
deposited in the Council’s 
current bank account (HSBC) for cash flow reasons in accordance with paragraph 7.3 of the 
Treasury Management Strategy). 

 
The average level of funds available for investment from 1 April to 30 September 2021 was 
£21.683. Of this, an average of £10.683m was available on a temporary basis, the level 

dependent on the timing of precept and business rate pool payments, receipt of grants and 
capital programme spend. 
 
With respect to the property fund investments, it was reported that the difference between 
purchase price (the amount invested) and fair value reflected premiums paid or discount 
received against the Funds’ ‘Net Asset Value’ at the settlement date together with the movement 
in fund valuations since acquisition.  Fair values had increased during the first half of the 
financial year, by 5.89% since 31 March 2021, largely due to the vaccination process that had 
helped to combat COVID-19 and the economy rebounding as a result of restrictions lifting. 
 
Members noted that the property funds were long-term investments and there was satisfaction 
with the increase in fair values since March. 
 
In response to questions, it was explained that although borrowing costs had to be deducted, 
there was still a healthy return from investments.  Inflation and increases in interest rates were 
beyond the Council’s control, but it was hoped this was a temporary situation as it was largely 
due to the pandemic and Brexit.  Officers monitored the situation continuously and Members 
would receive a monthly finance update. 
 

Action: JM 
Carry out work with respect to revenue sources  

 
Efforts were still ongoing to obtain more information about Council’s £1m loan, to move this 
matter forward.  Payments had been suspended to use as leverage to secure information and 
some had been provided, but not sufficient.  Members noted that it might not be possible to gain 
full details of this loan, but that the Council’s property fund investments were performing well. 
 
18   INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2021/22 

 
The Internal Audit Team Manager presented the Internal Audit Progress Report for 
November 2021. 
 
As at 14th October, 37% of the planned days had been completed, against the target of 
50%. 
 
In this period one assurance review has been completed, the Boston Town Area 
Committee, which had been given High assurance. 
 

Page 14



Audit & Governance Committee 
8 November 2021 

 

Six audits were in progress:  
• Brexit – fieldwork in progress 
• Towns Fund – report being agreed 
• Income – fieldwork in progress 
• Housing Benefit Subsidy – report being agreed 
• Carbon Reduction  - Planning 
• Flood Management - Planning 
 
Other Significant work reported was the completion of Housing Benefit Subsidy work on 
behalf of the External Auditor and Dept for Work & Pensions.  This was a large piece of 
work that provided assurance on the accuracy of benefit claims and that the Council had 
claimed the correct subsidy based on that accuracy. An update would be provided in a 
future progress report once testing had been finalised and reported to management on 
the results. This work had been prioritised in September, which meant that the Brexit 
and Income audits had been put on hold, but they had since been restarted. 
 
A recommendation update was attached to the report at Appendix 3. 
 
Members congratulated the Chairman and Committee Members of the Boston Town 
Area Committee on the excellent outcome of the audit of ht4e Committee.   
 

Action: MW 
Consider rewording the reference to PE21 as a project no longer exists under that 
name. 

 
19   WORK PROGRAMME 

 
Members discussed the work programme.   
 
It was noted that the Committee’s consideration of the Model Code of Conduct had been 
put back from the January meeting due to unforeseen circumstances.  Members felt that 
the code should be considered without delay.  It was thought the Committee had already 
agreed the adoption of the Local Government Association’s model code, but the 
Portfolio Holder confirmed it had not done so and it was recognised that the correct 
procedure would be for the Committee to formally receive it. 
 

Action: SK 
Speak to key officers in order to bring the Model Code of Conduct to the Committee as 
soon as possible  

 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting ended at 19.47 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
 

REPORT TO: Full Council 

DATE: 7th March 2022 

SUBJECT: 

 

 

PURPOSE:  

Annual Budget Report 2022/23, Medium Term Financial Strategy, 

Capital Programme, Treasury Management Strategy and Annual 

Delivery Plan  

To approve: The General Fund Budget for 2022/23 including the 

use of reserves, Medium Term Financial Strategy, Capital 

Programme, Treasury Management Strategy, MRP Policy and 

Annual Investment Strategy, Fees and Charges for 2022/23 and the 

Annual Delivery Plan.  

KEY DECISION: Yes 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Noble 

REPORT OF: 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

Christine Marshall, Deputy Chief Executive Corporate Development 

Samantha Knowles, Assistant Director Finance 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: All 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

SUMMARY 

This report sets out the detail of the 2022/23 General Fund Annual Budget, the 5 year Medium 

Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) from 2022/23 to 2026/27, Capital Programme, Treasury 

Management Strategy, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy and Annual Investment Strategy and 

Annual Delivery Plan.  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Full Council approves: 

1. The Revenue Estimates for the General Fund for 2022/23 (Appendix A). 

2. The Medium Term Financial Strategy (at Appendices A,1 and 2). 

3. The Capital Programme (Appendix A). 

4. The Fees and Charges for 2022/23 (Appendix 4). 

5. The use of Reserves detailed (Appendix 5). 

6. The Treasury Management Statement and Strategy, including the Minimum Revenue 

Provision policy and Investment Strategy. (Appendix 6). 

7. The South and East Lincolnshire Council’s Annual Delivery Plan 2022/23 (Appendix 7) 

Page 17

Agenda Item 2



8. That delegated authority be given to the Deputy Chief Executive Corporate Development 

(S151) to use the Covid budget pressures smoothing reserve, if required, during the 

2022/23 financial year, to smooth any fluctuations in income the Council may still be 

experiencing as a result of the consequences of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To comply with the budgetary and policy framework.  

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

No other options have been put forward. 

 

1. BACKGROUND 

 

1.1.  The attached Budget Report sets out the Council’s Revenue and Capital Budgets for 2022/23 

and onwards, the MTFS to 2026/27 and associated financial documentation for approval, 

including the Treasury Management Strategy and setting of Fees and Charges.  

 

1.2. The preparation of the budget for 2022/23 has been a detailed process involving the Senior 

Leadership Team (SLT), Assistant Directors and Budget holders and the attached 

documentation reflects the latest known position. 

 

1.3. The draft Local Government Settlement announced on 16 December 2021, now finalised, 

provided additional detail of continuing and additional one off support to councils including 

confirmation of allocations of Revenue Support Grant (RSG) , Rural Services Delivery Grant 

(RSDG) and New Homes Bonus.   

 

2. REPORT 

2.1 This report sets out the 2022/23 Revenue Budget, Capital Programme and associated Medium 

Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) for Boston Borough Council. The budget has been through a 

budget consultation process with the public and members, draft budget proposals were 

reviewed by the  Audit and Governance Committee on 7th February 2022 and were subject to 

review by Corporate and Community Committee on 17th February 2022. The results of the 

consultation are contained within Appendix 8. 

2.2 The Treasury Management Strategy was presented to Governance and Audit Committee on 

the 7th February 2022 and has been updated to reflect the final budget accompanying this 

report. 

2.3 New Homes Bonus (NHB) 

We will receive an additional one-year allocation of NHB for 2022/23 due to delays in 

implementing any replacement scheme, however this may be for one year only with no further 

legacy payments expected in future years.  Some NHB (£414,000) is supporting the base in this 

Page 18



year and plans will need to be taken forward to address this for future years, depending on 

what future scheme emerges. 

2.4 Funding Reform (potential effective date April 2023) 

A Fair Funding Review (FFR) had been expected to set new baseline funding allocations for all 

Local Authorities, to simplify the existing system and provide an up to date assessment of 

Authorities relative needs and resources.  Early consultations had been undertaken by DLUHC, 

but there is insufficient information to make informed estimates to date. It is likely that any 

changes would be transitioned to mitigate the immediate impact on Authorities (positive or 

negative). This budget assumes no financial changes from this review and when details become 

available members will be updated. 

2.5 Drainage Board Levy 

As part of its response to the settlement the Council has made further representations to 

government regarding the Drainage Board Levy. In particular its impact on the Councils ability 

to make use of the Council Tax that it raises through housing number increases and annual 

Council Tax rises to support services, rather than offset the annual levy charge increase. 

3. 2022/23 Final Budget & Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 

3.1 The key elements of the final 2022/23 Budget and MTFS are summarised in the following 

paragraphs and set out in detail in the attached appendices which show:  

• The 2022/23 revenue and capital estimates for the General Fund (Appendix A); 

• The Medium Term Financial Strategy for the General Fund (Appendix A); 

• General Fund Capital Programme (Appendix A); 

• The proposed Fees and Charges for 2022/23 (Appendix 4); 

• A schedule of movements in Council Reserves (Appendix 5); 

• The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy (Appendix 6); 

• The Council’s MRP Policy and Annual Investment Plan 2022/23 (Appendix 6), and 

• The South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership Annual Delivery Plan 2022/23 
(Appendix 7). 

 

3.2 2022/23 Council Tax Base & 2021/22 Collection Fund Surplus 

3.3 The Council Tax base for 2022/23 is 20,051 properties, an increase of 429 properties over the 

2021/22 tax base giving additional income of approximately £184k.  Ongoing increases of 1% 

per annum are assumed over the MTFS period.   

3.4 Each year the Council is required to calculate the balance on its Collection Fund. 2021/22 has 

been an unprecedented year and therefore balances are not in line with other years, as a 

result of this Government has given Council’s section 31 grant to compensate them for specific 

losses. This has been received in the year prior to the deficit being released therefore it is put 

to reserves in the year it is received and then released in the year in which it is required. 

3.5 For Council Tax a surplus has been calculated for 2022/23 and Boston’s share of this will be 

£87k, with a zero balance assumed in future years.  

3.6 For Business Rates there are two elements to the deficit this year. One element relates to lost 

income resulting from expanded reliefs provided in the Covid  pandemic, which is fully funded 

Page 19



from Government grants received, the second element is the true in year performance 

position.  

 

3.7  BBC Detailed Budget Changes 

3.8 Key assumptions made within the current 5 year MTFS include: 

• An annual increase in Council Tax of £4.95; 

• Maximising income generation through Investment and Growth and looking at new 

opportunities into the medium term; 

• Allowance for unavoidable growth on services (i.e. new statutory obligations and pay &     

contractual inflation) but no allowance for any increase for general inflation; 

• Ongoing Budget challenge to ensure that budgets are aligned with corporate priorities; 

• An annual delivery plan as part of the new South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership 

to look at areas for future sharing and efficiency. 

 

3.9  The budget shows an efficiency target requirement for 2022/23 of £282,000. Future years 

figures are highly volatile due to the level of uncertainty around future funding 

arrangements. As we have been developing the budget numerous savings and income 

generating opportunities have and are being explored in order to address this savings 

requirement. Many of which will be related to the South and East Lincolnshire Councils 

Partnership (SELCP) through partnership working and maximising the opportunities this new 

arrangement brings. 

 

4.0 Reserves 

4.1 General Fund Specific Reserves are budgeted to reduce by £5.182m (net) in 2022/23, 

predominantly to fund the NNDR deficit through carried forward s31 grant. This figure may 

change as a result of the outturn for 2021/22.   

4.2 A detailed breakdown of Reserve movements for the General Fund is included in Appendix 5 

to this report. 

5.0 Capital Programme 

5.1 The Council’s Capital Programme is shown in Appendix A and focuses on the core principles 

of capital investment. 

5.2 The five year General Fund Capital Programme includes provision for Investment and Growth 

linked to the Council’s Strategic objectives. Final decisions on individual projects will be 

subject to approval and detailed business cases. 

5.3 The main schemes included in the approved 2022/23 General Fund Programme relate to 

Towns Fund Projects, capitalised enhancements and disabled facilities grants.  

5.4 Due to the nature of some capital projects it can be common for large scale project timing to 

change over the medium term. This budget provides the best estimates of deliverability 

available at the time of production and the programme will be flexed over time as reported 

in quarterly reports to Cabinet. 

6.0 OPTIONS 

Page 20



6.1 That the final capital and revenue budget estimates and the Medium Term Financial Strategy  

be approved by Full Council. 

6.2 There are no alternative options presented. 

EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

This report enables Boston Borough Council to set a budget for 2022/23. 
 
IMPLICATIONS: 
 

SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL’S PARTNERSHIP 

NONE 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

NONE 

STAFFING 

The Equality Act requires BBC to consider any equality impacts in relation to staff from these plans. 

As projects within the programme are developed a draft impact assessment will be discussed with 

Trades Unions and staff, and especially as individual projects are delivered. 

CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

This report is required by virtue of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as amended by the 

Localism Act 2011.  

DATA PROTECTION 

None 

FINANCIAL 

This report proposes the budget for the Council for 2022/23. 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

Risks are highlighted within the appendix, the Council has adopted a corporate risk management 
strategy and financial risk management is integrated into the Council’s overall management and 
decision making processes. This ensures a robust and well integrated risk management 
programme, which will help the Council to identify and manage key strategic risks facing it, in 
pursuit of its corporate objectives. 
 
STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

Views expressed during the consultation period have been taken into account when drafting the 

budget. The views expressed during the consultation are reported at Appendix 8. 

REPUTATION 

None 

CONTRACTS 

None Page 21



CRIME AND DISORDER 

NONE 

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

New Equality Impact Assessments will be developed and published wherever these are required 

and will be made available during the management and decision-making of the Programme. 

HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

None 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

None 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

Appendix A General Fund Budget 2022/23 

Appendix 1 Medium Term Financial Strategy 2022/23 to 2026/27 by 

Portfolio 

Appendix 2 Medium Term Financial Strategy 2022/23 to 2026/27 by 

Assistant Director 

Appendix 3 Corporate Charging Policy 

Appendix 4 BBC Fees and Charges 21/22 and Proposed Charges 22/23  

Appendix 5 Earmarked Reserves  

Appendix 6 Treasury Management Strategy, MRP Policy and Annual 
Investment Plan 2022/23  

Appendix 7 South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership Annual 

Delivery Plan 2022/23 

Appendix 8 Budget Consultation Report 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Final Budget Reports Cabinet Agenda 23rd February 2022 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

 

Name of body Date 

Page 22



Cabinet 23rd February 2022 

 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Samantha Knowles, Assistant Director Finance  

sknowles@sholland.gov.uk 

Signed off by: Christine Marshall, Deputy Chief Executive 

Corporate Development 

Christine.Marshall@sholland.gov.uk  

Approved for publication: Councillor Noble, Portfolio Holder for Finance 

 

Page 23

mailto:sknowles@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Christine.Marshall@sholland.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

FULL COUNCIL: 7th March 2022 
 

REPORT OF JONATHAN NOBLE, FINANCE PORTFOLIO HOLDER  
 

(Authors: Christine Marshall (Deputy Chief Executive Corporate Development) and 
Samantha Knowles (Assistant Director - Finance)) 

 
BUDGET SETTING REPORT AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY (MTFS) 

2022/23 – 2026/27 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 25



Page 2 of 30 

 

 

CONTENTS PAGE 
 
SECTION CONTENT PAGE NUMBER 
 Portfolio Holder introduction 3 
1 Executive Summary and Introduction 5 
2 Budget Assumptions 7 
3 Resources 9 
4 Spending Plans 18 
5 Council Tax Requirement 20 
6 Other Budget Issues 21 
7 Reserves 22 
8 Consultation 24 
9 
10 

Savings Targets 
South and East Lincolnshire Council’s Partnership Plans 

25 
26 

11 Risk and Sensitivity 27 
12 Capital Programme 29 
13 Options 31 
14 Reasons for Recommendations 31 
15 Recommendations 31 
 
 
 
Appendices:  

  

1 Summary by Portfolio Area – Overall   
2 Summary by Assistant Director Area – Overall    
3 
4 

Corporate Charging Policy 
Fees and Charges 

 

5 Reserve Statement  
6 
 

Capital Strategy – Treasury Management Strategy 2022/23 to 2026/27  

7    
                                      

The South and East Lincolnshire Council’s Partnership Annual Delivery Plan 
2022/23 

 

8 Budget Consultation Report  
 
 

P
age 26



Page 3 of 30 

 

 

FOREWORD TO THE BUDGET FROM COUNCILLOR JONATHAN NOBLE - FINANCE PORTFOLIO HOLDER  
 

The 2022/23 budget and medium term outlook has been produced during a period of unprecedented uncertainty and change and it 
is inevitable that the financial and service delivery challenges that have faced councils for the last few years will continue for some 
time. 
 
The Chancellor’s 2021 Spending Review in October set out the Government’s overall public sector spending plans for the year 
2022/23 and it is anticipated that the governments ongoing response to the COVID-19 pandemic and subsequent recovery will 
continue to present challenges to the public purse and therefore to wider local authority finances as a whole. 
 
Using the Government’s figures, the real change in Boston’s Core Spending Power across the five years to 2020/21 was over 20%, 
with grant reductions well in excess of this. This meant that the Council’s focus has been on finding savings in a period of austerity 
and almost £3m of net budget reductions have been achieved since 2011, enabling annual balanced budgets to be set and delivered. 
 
Despite this the Council has been proactive in its response to these pressures and the pandemic, firstly with the decision to become 
a shareholder in Public Sector Partnership Services Limited (PSPS) in April 2021, agreeing the transfer of services such as Human 
Resources, Revenues and Benefits and Financial Services to PSPS with a view to achieving savings over the next five years.  This 
represents a significant investment in these “back office” functions with the council in future being able to benefit from a share of the 
scaleable savings as services become more efficient and effective alongside services already delivered by PSPS to the original 
shareholders East Lindsey Distict and South Holland District Councils. 
 
In addition to this the decision to form the South and East Lincolnshire Council’s Partnership alongside South Holland and East 
Lindsey District Councils in October 2021, also demonstrates the councils continued commitment to its partners across the county 
with the partnership using the combined expertise of officers and members across three councils to maintain and improve services 
for its residents along with ambition to save £42m over a ten year period across the three councils 
 
This year the council was also at the forefront of the response to the COVID-19 Pandemic supporting businesses and residents 
across the borough through the passporting over £30m of grants and support.  During this period the council has also received 
government support totalling £2m to help alleviate some of the additional pressures felt during the pandemic including a reduction in 
Councils income from certain services such as Leisure, Parking, Planning, Building Control and Bereavement Services. 
 
Despite this, over the coming years the Council will support a number of major developments within the Borough, with £21m from the 
Government’s Towns Fund to develop an innovative regeneration plan for the town, ongoing positive new house building numbers, 
progress with the Quadrant development and release of Housing Infrastructure Fund monies. 
 

P
age 27



Page 4 of 30 

 

 

The financial regime following the conclusion of the government’s Spending Review, will determine the Council’s future financial 
landscape and constraints and opportunities in the coming years. The recent closure of large local businesses highlights the 
difficulties that the economy faces, whilst the changing way that people shop is impacting on the viability of town centres across the 
country. These changes mean that there are potentially significant risks to future funding levels, which will require careful 
management and planning. The challenge of delivering balanced budgets will therefore remain a key issue going forward. 
 
In support of this the overall finances and risk management processes of the Council are robust, and alongside the annual budget, 
the quarterly performance reporting process will provide updates on the impacts experienced as things become clearer. 
 
In 2022/23 a budget is proposed that allows expenditure to be financed through the use of reserves in order to smooth the impact of 
the councils ongoing pressure, however savings will be required going forward as a result of service cost pressures, income levels 
dropping, reduced business rates growth and the ending of the New Homes Bonus. This approach will mean that the Council can 
continue to provide services whilst also supporting its overall objectives. The Council will continue to strive to be as efficient as 
possible in all its work, building on the South and East Lincolnshire Council’s Partnership with its partners at East Lindsey and South 
Holland District Councils and PSPS, whilst ensuring it maximises the income it receives. 
 
In order to deliver its statutory budgetary duty from 2022/23 and develop proposals for a financially secure medium term, the Council 
will continue to seek innovative opportunities as it has done over the past twelve months to achieve the anticipated budget reductions 
necessary to deliver balanced budgets each year without adversely affecting service delivery and compromising its priorities.  
 
The budget for 2022/23 proposes an increase in Boston Borough Council’s council tax of £4.95 for the year, representing an increase 
of 2.50%.  This budget is designed to meet the Council’s challenges and responsibilities, and ensure that the best possible services 
continue to be provided to Boston’s residents, businesses and visitors. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 28



Page 5 of 30 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
 

 2021/22 2022/23 

Boston Borough Council Precept £3,883,331 £4,067,546 

Council Tax Increase 2.57% 2.50% 

Council Tax Band D £197.91 £202.86 

Government Funding (RSG, Specific Grants and NHB) £3,324,997 £3,435,574 

Boston Town Area Committee Special Expense Account 
(1.35% increase proposed) 

£716,192 £732,864 

Earmarked Reserves (at 1 April) £12.589m £18.348m 

 
   

 
  
 

P
age 29



Page 6 of 30 

 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 This report outlines the 2022/23 revenue and capital position for the General Fund and proposals for the setting of discretionary 
fees and charges. The purpose of the report is to ask Members to approve the 2022/23 estimates (along with associated 
Policies and Strategies) and for Members to be advised on the projected financial position through to 2026/27. 

 
1.2 The Local Government Act 2003 introduced a requirement for the Statutory S151 Officer to report on the robustness of the 

budget. The estimates have been prepared in a prudent manner, although it should be recognised that there are a number of 
elements outside of the Council’s control. Assessing the projected 2021/22 outturn position informs the reliance we can place 
on the baseline we use for setting the 2022/23 estimates.  There are emerging pressures within 2021/22 that have been built 
into 2022/23, further use of the covid reserve may be required in both years, especially where funding streams have been 
impacted upon using funding provides to authorities during the year in compensation for COVID-19 related lost income and 
spending pressures.  Key risks have been identified in section 10 of this report and will be mitigated through the regular budget 
monitoring and risk management processes in place at the Council. 

 
1.3 This year’s Medium Term Financial Strategy is set at a time of continuing significant uncertainty, change and financial 

challenges for local government. As well as COVID-19 related pressures, there are issues such as rising inflation around 
employee costs and power/fuel, welfare reform, uncertainty around Government funding reductions and responding to 
reductions in Central Government funding (with a greater emphasis on business and housing growth).   

 
1.4 There are also significant changes affecting business rates. Some have already been introduced, such as the part-localisation 

of the regime from April 2013 and the 2017 revaluation exercise and others, such as the proposal to further devolve business 
rate incomes to councils are yet to come into full effect. Their impacts include the financial effect of growth or contraction in 
the local rateable value on the Council’s resource base, and increased uncertainties surrounding the extent of appeals and 
the ability to accurately forecast income into the future.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 30



Page 7 of 30 

 

 

2. BUDGET ASSUMPTIONS 
 
 Table 1 – Assumptions which influence the five year financial strategy 
 

Assumption 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

Budgeted inflation1 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Pay costs increase 2 1% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 

Full Time Equivalent Employees 3 262.7 234.99 223.62 222.62 221.78 221.78 

Pension contribution rate – current 
service cost 4 

17.7% 17.7% 17.7% 17.7% 17.7% 17.7% 

Pension contribution rate – lump 
sum element 4 

£670,000 £745,000 £828,000 £921,000 £1,024,000 £1,137,000 

Return on cash investments 0.35% 0.10% 0.30% 0.50% 0.70% 0.90% 

Return on property funds  3.60% 3.60% 3.70% 3.70% 3.80% 3.80% 

Staffing levels 99% 99% 99% 99% 99% 99% 

Tax base 5 19,621.7 20,051 20,252 20,454 20,659 20,865 

Fuel cost rises1 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

 
1. 0% used except for utilities/fuel where an average of  5% per annum has been used, reflecting the price risk for these areas 

and also taking into account any gains from both climate change and transformational activity by the Council which are 
likely to lead to reduced consumption. 

 
2. A flat 2% increase has been included from 2022/23 onwards. 
 
3. It is recognised that some future savings could potentially further affect staffing numbers in future years. Until business 

cases are worked-up it is not possible to make further assumptions on any changes.  
 

4. The pension contribution rate is based on a current service cost employer’s contribution rate of 17.7% from 2022/23, plus 
annual monetary contributions in respect of past service.  However a triennial review of the Lincolnshire Pension fund (of 
which the council is a member) is due to take place in 2022/23. In addition a review has been carried out in year following 
the transfer of staff to PSPS to ensure that the rate of contribution is still appropriate. 

 
5. The tax base used for Council Tax setting is calculated as prescribed by statute, with responsibility for the setting of the 

tax base delegated to the Council’s Section 151 Officer.  The tax base for 2022/23 is 20,051 and for estimation purposes 

P
age 31



Page 8 of 30 

 

 

has been increased by 1% per annum thereafter. This may increase if the recent number of planning applications deliver 
additional Band D equivalent properties above the assumption, and will be reflected in the annual budget figures as 
appropriate. 

 

3. RESOURCES  
 

  Business Rates Retention 
 
3.1 Table 2 details the Council’s retained business rates for 2022/23, based on the provisional local government settlement. 
 
3.2 Under the current part localisation regime, where the Council collects more business rates than the baseline set by Central 

Government, a levy of 50% is applied and paid to Central government.  If an Authority enters a pool this levy is not required 
and in line with previous years Boston has entered into a voluntary pooling arrangement for 2022/23 with Lincolnshire County 
Council and the District Councils in the area (in 2018/19, the Council was part of a successful bid across the county to be a 
pilot for 100% localisation). 

 
3.3 The Government concluded its review of business rates which were published alongside the Chancellor’s budget statement.  

The aim of the review was to reduce the burden of business rates in England, support investment, and make the system more 
responsive.  Following the review the government have confirmed the following:-: 

 

• A freeze on the business rates multiplier for a second year, from 1 April 2022 until 31 March 2023, keeping the multipliers 
at 49.9p and 51.2p  

• Introduce a new temporary business rates relief for eligible retail, hospitality and leisure properties for 2022-23. Eligible 
properties will receive 50% relief, up to a £110,000 per business cap  

• Introduce a 100% improvement relief for business rates. This will provide 12 months relief from higher bills for occupiers 
where eligible improvements to an existing property increase the rateable value. The government will consult on how 
best to implement this relief, which will take effect in 2023 and be reviewed in 2028  

• Introduce from 1 April 2023 until 31 March 2035 targeted business rate exemptions for eligible plant and machinery 
used in onsite renewable energy generation and storage, and a 100% relief for eligible heat networks, to support the 
decarbonisation of non-domestic buildings  

• Increase the frequency of business rates revaluations so that they take place every 3 years instead of every 5 years, 
starting in 2023  

• Provide additional funding to the Valuation Office Agency to support the delivery of the new revaluation cycle.  

P
age 32



Page 9 of 30 

 

 

• Extend transitional relief for small and medium-sized businesses, and the supporting small business scheme, for 1 year. 
This will restrict bill increases to 15% for small properties (up to a rateable value of £20,000) and 25% for medium 
properties  (up to a rateable value of £100,000), subject to subsidy control limits 

 

3.4 The Council remains aware of the issues surrounding business rate appeals and this will be under continuous management 
by officers with the emphasis on making sure there is a reasonable and prudent provision made for successful appeals.  

 

 
Table 2 – Business Rates 
 

  
 

Draft Draft Draft Draft Draft 

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Retained Business Rates  7,822 7,427 8,162 8,325 8,492 8,662 

Tariff (5,141) (5,141) (5,244) (5,348) (5,455) (5,564) 

Pre Levy Income 2,681 2,286 2,918 2,977 3,037 3,098 

Renewable Energy (100% retained by Boston BC) 158 203 207 211 216            220 

Less net levy payment to Lincolnshire Pool (61) (237) (241) (246) (252) (257) 

Estimated Business Rates (Deficit) / Surplus  (1,452) (3,501) - - - - 

Equals Net Retained Business Rates Income 1,327 (1,249) 2,884 2,942 3,001 3,061 

 
3.5 The estimated business rates deficit for 2022/23 in Table 2 is due mainly to the COVID-19 pandemic which has seen 

unprecedented support to business from central government in the form of business rate reliefs, these are funded from monies 
received from central government in 2020/21 and 2021/22 and now released from reserves. Many businesses will not re-
emerge from the periods of lockdown causing a further loss in income, however the full impact of this is still indeterminate.  

 
3.6 The majority of Government support of business ceased in September 2021 with the closure of the majority of its support to 

businesses including the furlough scheme. Compensation for continued Rate Reliefs and income loss are made through 
Section 31 grants and are dealt with in the General Fund. 

 
 

P
age 33



Page 10 of 30 

 

 

 
 
 
 
Council Tax 
 
3.7 Since 2013/14, the Council has revised its exemptions and discounts for Council Tax to recover the reduced funding as part 

of the Council Tax Support (CTS) scheme, and on 17 January 2022 the Council approved its CTS scheme for 2022/23.  
 
3.8 The Council Tax element of the Collection Fund has been calculated based on the 2021/22 scheme, leaving a budget neutral 

position. This will be reviewed throughout the year, and collection rates assessed. The MTFS assumes an increase in the 
Borough’s council tax of 2.50% for 2022/23.  

 
 Table 3 – Council Tax 
   

  2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 
       

No. Of 
properties 

No. Of 
properties 

No. Of 
properties 

No. Of 
properties 

No. Of 
properties 

No. Of 
properties 

Council Tax base (Band D 
equivalents) 

19,621.7 20,051 20,252 20,454 20,659 20,865 

  
     

Council Tax Band D 197.91 202.86 207.81 212.76 217.71 222.66 

Annual Increase £ 4.95 4.95 4.95 4.95 4.95 4.95 

Annual Increase % 2.57% 2.50% 2.44% 2.38% 2.33% 2.27% 

Gross Council Tax collected  £3,883,331 £4,067,546 £4,208,568 £4,351,793 £4,497,670 £4,645,800 

In year Surplus / (deficit)  (£16,328) £86,654 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL £3,867,003 £4,154,200 £4,208,568 £4,351,793 £4,497,670 £4,645,800 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 34



Page 11 of 30 

 

 

 
 
 
 
Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and Section 31 Grants 
 
 Table 4 – RSG and Section 31 Grants 
 

  2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Revenue Support Grant 313 323 323 323 323 323 

Rural Services Delivery Grant 89 89 89 89 89 89 

Deficit Compensation Estimate 1,377 0 0 0 0 0 

Settlement Funding Assessment 141 0 0 0 0 0 

Lower Tier Services Grant 115 121 0 0 0 0 

Services Grant 2022/23 0 186 0 0 0 0 

S31 NNDR reliefs including SBRR 600 2,018 1,283 1,309 1,335 1,362 

Total Received 2,635 2,737 1,695 1,721 1,747 1,774 

 
3.9 Following the announcement of four year figures in 2016/17, significant reductions of Revenue Support Grant (RSG) have 

occurred in recent years, and from 2022/23 it has been held at present levels awaiting the outcome of future local government 
finance settlements. As can be seen in the table above if RSG and rural services delivery grant were not received from 2023/24 
onwards this would mean a loss of income of £412k per year. 

 
3.10 As part of the plans for further local retention of business rates, S31 relief grant held at the same level for 2023/24 onwards. 
 
 
3.11 The Government has continued to recognise the additional costs of providing services in rural areas, with affected councils 

receiving amounts of Rural Services Delivery Grant which has been held as the same level over the period to 2026/27. The 
future of the LTSG and new Services Grant is unknown and would benefit the Council by £307,000 per annum if retained. 

 
 

P
age 35



Page 12 of 30 

 

 

New Homes Bonus 
 
3.12 There were new 2022/23 New Homes Bonus (NHB) allocations announced as part of the Local Government Finance 

Settlement for 2022/23 only as far as we are aware. The government has added a year of additional grant. As previously 
announced, the 2021/22 “in year” allocations will not have future years legacy payments nor has the 2022/23 allocation. If the 
scheme was to be continued in its current form next years payment would reflect just the growth in the previous year. 

 
3.13 The values in Table 5 for 2022/23 to 2026/27 are indicative and subject to future consultation and changes to the scheme 

(plus the level of local growth). 
 

Table 5 – New Homes Bonus estimates  
 

  
Boston BC share 

 
Draft Draft Draft Draft Draft 

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

TOTAL 690 697 0 0 0 0 

 
 
3.14 The MTFS assumes that NHB payments will be used to partly support the Council’s revenue budget in 2022/23. From 2023/24 

onwards no New Homes Bonus is due to be received therefore this grant stream will not be able to used to support the 
Council’s revenue budget. 

Fees and Charges 
 
3.15 Income from fees and charges is an important source of revenue for the Council, representing almost 15% of the gross income 

budgeted in 2022/23. Charges have a central role to play in service delivery, raising income, controlling access, responding to 
competition, funding investment and affecting behaviour. 

 
3.16 The fees and charges charged in 2021/22 are shown at  
 
https://democracy.boston.gov.uk/documents/s11824/Appendix%204%20-%20Fees%20Charges%202021-22.pdf 
            
 

P
age 36



Page 13 of 30 

 

 

3.17 Fees and charges are set within the framework of the Corporate Charging Policy, which is attached at Appendix 3.   
 
3.18 As part of the broader moves to commercialisation across the Council, in line with many other authorities as they respond to 

the increasing challenges of diminishing resources, it is recognised that, in accordance with the Corporate Charging Policy,   
in-year variances to the approved fees and charges on a trial basis, within the approved budget framework, can be made. Any 
such changes will then be reported in the next quarterly monitoring report.  

 
3.19 Appendix 4 shows the proposed fees and charges to be charged from 1 April 2022. Once these changes have been approved 

the full list of Council fees and charges applicable for 2022/23 will be published on the Council’s website. 
 
3.20 The following table shows the main income budgets from fees and charges for Boston, before any consideration of possible 

increases beyond 2022/23 as part of balancing net budget and resources in those years.  At this time assumptions for the 
majority of these areas are that income levels will not increase within the period of the MTFS, and this will be revisited as part 
of the annual Budget and Strategy refresh. Given the scale of inflationary pressures feeding through, it is likely that future 
years will see rises in some fee areas and a full review Is planned. 

 
Table 6 – Fees and charges income budgets 
 

Budget Area 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Leisure income 918 918 918 918 918 918 

Building control 170 170 170 170 170 170 

Licensing 131 131 131 131 131 131 

Land charges 78 78 64 64 64 64 

Bereavement 896 900 927 953 976 999 

Garden Waste 574 628 638 645 645 645 

Trade waste 314 355 366 377 388 400 

Planning fees 566 633 645 652 655 655 

Parking 1,019 1,019 1,019 1,019 1,019 1,019 

Markets 80 95 95 95 95 95 

Other small areas 206 155 122 117 119 175 

TOTAL FEE INCOME 4,952 5,081 5,094 5,140 5,179 5,270 

Other Income 

P
age 37



Page 14 of 30 

 

 

 
3.21 The Council also receives a number of other forms of income, and these are shown in the following table: 
 
Table 7 – Other Income 
 

  2021/22* 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Housing benefit subsidy 13,050 11,738 11,738 11,738 11,738 11,738 

Council tax and Housing benefit administration 
grant 304 

 
285 

 
285 

 
285 

 
285 

 
285 

Specific government grants 179 719 133 132 131 131 

Housing benefit overpayments 120 120 120 120 120 120 

Court income 251 251 251 251 251 251 

Rental income 593 696 696 695 695 695 

NNDR admin grant 92 92 92 92 92 92 

Other Contributions (from external bodies for 
sharing of services and posts) 1,171 

 
1,396 

 
1,352 

 
1,387 

 
1,425 

 
1,458 

Other Income 996 1,164 1,076 1,220 1,195 1,093 

Total Other Income 16,756 16,461 15,743 15,921     15,932 15,863 

 
 
* Housing benefit subsidy has reduced following the initial introduction of Universal Credit locally. Future phases have not been 
factored into budgets as their timing and impact are uncertain. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 38



Page 15 of 30 

 

 

External Funding opportunities 
 
3.22 With the continuing reduction in resources available to the Council it will be important to seek and secure funds from external 

sources wherever possible, in accordance with the Council’s priorities.  
 
Summary  
 
Table 8 – All sources of income 
 

Budget Area 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Business rates (Table 2) 1,326 (1,249) 2,884 2,942 3,001 3,061 

Revenue Support Grant (Table 4) 313 323 323 323 323 323 

Deficit Compensation Estimate 1,377 0 0 0 0 0 

Other Grants  945 2,415 1,372 1,398 1,424 1,451 

New Homes Bonus (Table 5) 690 697 0 0 0 0 

Total Government Resources 4,651 2,186 4,579 4,663 4,748 4,835 

Council tax – Boston BC precept, including 
Collection Fund adjustment (Table 3) 3,867 4,154 4,208 4,352 4,498 4,646 

BTAC Special Area Expense 716 733 752 771 791 809 

Parish Councils’ Precepts 468 509 515 520 525 530 

Fees & charges (Table 6) 4,953 5,081 5,094 5,140 5,179 5,270 

Other income (Table 7) 16,757 16,460 15,743 15,921     15,932 15,863 

Return on Cash Investments 39 51 70 88 111 114 

Return on Property Funds 977 909 923 938 952 952 

Contribution from Reserves 1,922 5,657 1,295 212 118 118 

Gross budgeted income 34,350 35,740 33,179 32,604 32,852 33,137 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 39



Page 16 of 30 

 

 

4. 2022/23 SPENDING PLANS 
 
4.1 The following table shows the estimates by type of expenditure/income split over the CIPFA standard classification for the next 

five years. The paragraphs below the table provide information on budget variances between years. Details of the overall 
position are shown at Appendices 1 and 2. 

 
 Table 9 – Estimates by expenditure/income  
 

  2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Employees 9,947 9,768 9,770 10,078 10,382 10,618 

Premises 1,310 1,605 1,625 1,645 1,669 1,682 

Transport 663 335 350 366 382 399 

Supplies and Services 3,897 6,886 6,358 6,474 6,554 6,271 

Third Party Payments 157 159 161 163 109 109 

Drainage Board Levies  2,009 2,150 2,193 2,237 2,282 2,328 

Parish Councils’ Precepts 468 509 515 520 525 530 

Transfer Payments 13,050 11,738 11,738 11,738 11,738 11,738 

Direct Revenue Financing of Capital 1,088 1,888 1,176 194 100 100 

Interest Payable on Borrowing 494 494 494 494 494 494 

Minimum Revenue Provision 15 15 15 15 15 15 

Contribution to Reserves 1,152 475 451 447 446 444 

PSPS Decision Financial Cost/(Savings) 100 - - - - - 

Savings Target - (282) (1,667) (1,759) (1,844) (1,591) 

Gross Expenditure 34,350 35,740 33,179 32,604 32,852 33,137 

 
4.2 All staffing costs have been prepared in accordance with the Council’s Pay Policy.  The pension contribution rate is based on 

a current service cost employer’s contribution rate of 17.7% from 2022/23, plus annual monetary contributions in respect of 
past service.  However a triennial review of the Lincolnshire Pension fund (of which the council is a member) is due to take 
place in 2022/23 

 
 

P
age 40



Page 17 of 30 

 

 

4.3 Internal Drainage Board (IDB) increases, in total average 7% for 2022/23. Post 2022/23 increases have been estimated at this 
time, with an increase of 2% p.a. assumed. At a time of significant cuts and having to find significant savings annually, the 
Council is liaising with the local Internal Drainage Boards to work towards limiting future increases where possible. Lobbying 
of government is also underway with the impact of this loss of revenue to the Council due to the embedded levy having an 
impact every year that passes. 

 
4.4 Capital financing and direct revenue financing is mainly for capital expenditure funded from reserve contributions. 
 
4.5 The contribution to reserves is mainly for contributions to the capital reserve. The overall contribution is anticipated to reduce 

significantly across the MTFS period due to the New Homes Bonus scheme ending.  
 
4.6 Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) special expenses are a separate charge to the residents of Boston for services 

provided in their town and are charged as a supplement to the main council tax. The BTAC budget for 2022/23 is estimated 
at £732,864 (2021/22 - £716,192). The detailed estimates were reported 3rd Febraury 2022 to the committee for 
consideration and review. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 41



Page 18 of 30 

 

 

5. COUNCIL TAX REQUIREMENT 
 
5.1 Outline estimates through to 2026/27 are shown at Appendices 1 and 2. In compiling these figures we have used the 

assumptions set out in Section 2 of this report and made specific adjustments to service budgets as and where Service 
Managers have advised of changes over the medium term. These forward estimates allow for annual increases of £4.95 at 
Band D from 2022/23 onwards for Council Tax, but are subject to risks surrounding the Secretary of State’s annual referendum 
limits.  These assumptions are for planning purposes only and are likely to change.  

 
Table 10 – Council Tax Requirement  
 

  2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Net Expenditure 9,702 7,582 10,054 10,305 10,561 10,820 

Retained Business Rates (1,326) 1,249 (2,884) (2,942) (3,001) (3,061) 

Revenue Support Grant (313) (323) (323) (323) (323) (323) 

New Homes Bonus  (690) (697) - - - - 

Parish Councils’ Precepts (468) (509) (515) (520) (525) (530) 

Other Grants (2,322) (2,415) (1,372) (1,398) (1,424) (1,451) 

Special Expenses  (716) (733) (752) (770) (790) (809) 

Boston BC Council Tax Requirement 3,867 4,154 4,208 4,352 4,498 4,646 

 
5.2 The forward estimates demonstrate that achieving a balanced position annually will require significant ongoing savings. Further 

information on efficiencies and economies is provided in section 9 of this report. 
 

5.3 Members will recall that as part of the Strategic Alliance a savings target had been built into the MTFS. Following a number of 
initiatives savings of circa £500,000 have now been achieved in 2021/22, prior to the creation of the new SELCP. With this 
change in partnership arrangements a new delivery plan has been developed for the forthcoming year 2022/23 and future 
years in which it sets out the significant areas of opportunity. In addition and to not lose focus on 2021/22 we are also now 
capturing direct and indirect savings for the new partnership through regular reviews and this work will be reported on as part 
of the quarterly budget monitoring and at year end.  
 

 

P
age 42



Page 19 of 30 

 

 

6. OTHER BUDGET ISSUES 
 
6.1 In order to meet its obligations, equality impact assessments will be carried out when the nature of proposed changes to 

services and the potential mitigation (if any) is clear, so that the implications of decisions are fully understood as they affect 
specific groups and communities. These have been, and will continue to be, regularly undertaken and considered as part of 
the decision making process.  

 
  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 43



Page 20 of 30 

 

 

 
7. RESERVES  
 
7.1 To comply with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the Council must undertake a review of the level of 

reserves as part of annual budget preparation. A review of the current projection for reserves has been undertaken, including 
a review of current and future risks the Council might face. This has included an assessment of risk registers, pressures upon 
services, inflation and interest rates and any underwriting arrangements. The proposed budget has been developed on the 
basis of not requiring any long term support from reserves.   

 
General Balances 
 
7.2 The General Fund balance is estimated to stand at £2.0m for the next five years, which the Council’s Section 151 Officer 

believes to be prudent for the Council at this time. 
 
Specific Reserves 
 
7.3 Specific reserves are set up to provide funds for known future commitments or provide resources for unexpected events. The 

projected closing balance on specific reserves over the next five years is given below in table 11. Given the risks and 
uncertainties facing both the local and national economy the Council is committed to retaining robust levels of reserves, whilst 
ensuring resources are available to enable efficient service delivery.  

 
7.4 The projected increase in the Capital Reserve is as a direct consequence of the expectation that the Council’s capital resources 

will diminish in the coming years, and if it is to protect services and the value of its assets, the Council will need to ensure that 
funds are available to support core service priorities, as well as seeking external sources wherever possible. 

 
7.5 The creation of the Mitigation Reserve occurred following the approval of capital spend on Property Fund holdings, with the 

recognition that the Council needs to ensure that future revenue budgets are protected, if necessary. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 44



Page 21 of 30 

 

 

 
 
Table 11 – Specific Reserves  

 

Reserve Estimated 
Balance 
31.03.22 

£’000 

Balance 
31.03.23 

£’000 

Balance 
31.03.24 

£’000 

Balance 
31.03.25 

£’000 

Balance 
31.03.26 

£’000 

Balance 
31.03.27 

£’000 

Capital Funding  (5,626) (4,126) (3,299) (3,527) (3.756) (3,986) 

Transformation  (1,046) (880) (880) (880) (880) (880) 

ICT  (226) (156) (136) (42) (42) (42) 

Repairs and Renewals  (752) (787) (823) (858) (893) (928) 

Housing (1,473) (1,493) (1,460) (1,526) (1,590) (1,652) 

Funding Volatility Reserve (6,407) (2,906) (2,906) (2,906) (2,906) (2,906) 

Insurance (254) (254) (254) (254) (254) (254) 

Property Fund Mitigation 
Reserve 

(1,116) (1,116) (1,116) (1,116) (1,116) 
 

(1,116) 
 

Covid 19 (1,448) (1,448) (1,448) (1,448) (1,448) (1,448) 

Total (18,348) (13,166) (12,322) (12,557) (12,885) (13,212) 

 
7.6 Table 11 above outline the projected position on reserves over the next five years. This shows the name of each specific 

reserve, the balance as at the 1 April for each year of the financial strategy, and the movements in capital and revenue.  
 
7.7 The Covid 19 reserve has been set aside to mitigate effects on the revenue budget from the pandemic. It is assumed that this 

reserve may be used to help to smooth any reduced income the Council experiences in the short term before income levels 
return to a more normal level over the MTFS period. This will be reviewed when drafting the next MTFS as the full effects of 
the pandemic on income levels are better understood. 

 
7.8 There are a number of potential capital commitments and risks such as ongoing investment in assets and energy efficiency 

measures, the majority of which have not been included in the capital programme at this point. A condition survey of the 
Council’s assets will be undertaken during 2021/22 to inform future capital spend. Proposals will be brought forward annually 
as schemes are worked up.  

 

P
age 45



Page 22 of 30 

 

 

7.9  The Government has been critical of Councils across the country and their levels of reserves. However, given strategic risks, 
such as business rate appeals and flooding, and uncertainties in respect of the amount of resources to meet future spending 
plans, we believe that Boston Borough Council’s proposed level of reserves is appropriate. 

P
age 46



Page 23 of 30 

 

 

8. CONSULTATION 
 
8.1 Under the Gunning Principles, the following points are the golden rules of consultation: 

• Proposals being consulted upon must be at a formative stage; 

• Proposals must contain enough information for the respondent to provide intelligent consideration; 

• Must give adequate time for a response; 

• Responses must be conscientiously taken into account. 
 
8.2 Using these principles, the budget consultation process for the 2022/23 budget comprised a number of elements. It was  

published on the Council’s website for consultation by all stakeholders, including the local business community. 
 
8.3 In addition to this the Council consulted through a number of Member forums including Cabinet and Scrutiny; and on the 

governance aspects of its preparation through the Audit and Governance Committee. 
 
8.4 Following the budget consultation process, comments received through the Member forums, preceptors and the public 

exercise were taken into account in preparing the budget and are included at Appendix 8. 
 
            
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 47



Page 24 of 30 

 

 

9. SAVINGS TARGETS 
 

9.1 The projected budgets recognise an increasingly challenging and uncertain position through the five year period of our financial 
strategy. A key factor is that the Local Government Finance Act 2012 and future finance reviews demand a significant 
transformation in the way public services are both paid for and provided, with an emphasis on business and housing growth 
to both improve economic development and maximise funding to the Council to help offset ongoing reductions in overall 
resources.  

 
9.2 Based upon current budget assumptions the value of efficiency savings required to set a balanced budget for the next five 

years are as follows: 
 

 
Table 12 – Savings Targets  
 

 2022/23* 
£000 

2023/24* 
£000 

2024/25* 
£000 

2025/26* 
£000 

2026/27* 
£000 

Budget Savings Requirement (£’000) – annual 282 1,667 1,759 1,844 1,591 

 
 
 
9.3 The ongoing delivery of a significant level of savings is recognised as a key challenge to the Council that will require both 

political and cultural direction to ensure it is met. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 48



Page 25 of 30 

 

 

10. SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS’ PARTNERSHIP PLANS  

  

10.1 As we think of 2023/24 there is great uncertainty with the central funding which could be allocated to Boston. This is driven 
by several financial matters which remain unresolved such as the implications of the Fairer Funding Review, Business Rates 
baseline reset and a review of the Business Rates retention scheme. It should therefore be noted the Councils assumptions 
on future budget gaps whilst prudent could well be understated. 
 

10.2.1 The Council is taking a positive response to this uncertainty by seeking to influence those matters raised above through both 
engagement and lobbying to ensure a fair deal is delivered for rural communities. 

 
10.2.2 As we look forward into 2022/23 Cabinet will be promoting projects which aim to drive commercial opportunities, place the 

customer at the centre of everything we do and achieve as much as is possible through greater collaboration through the 
South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership. Some of these key projects to be developed during 2022/23 include; 

 

• Realising efficiencies working together with East Lindsey District Council and South Holland District Council through 

the South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership 

• Investment in infrastructure and facilities through the Towns Fund 

• A Council service modernisation programme through investment with PSPS and also in ICT 

• Investment in the Waste service 

• Building the case for investment in infrastructure 

• Empowering communities in the way services are provided 

• Commercialisation of services 

• Addressing Deprivation in the area 

• Tackling Climate Change through the Green Homes Initiative 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 49



Page 26 of 30 

 

 

 
 
 
11. RISK AND SENSITIVITY 
 
 
11.1 The Council is required to set a budget, which is a realistic statement of its estimated Income and Expenditure for the coming 

year based upon information currently available to it. It has a duty to take into account the demand for its services, and the 
effect upon council taxpayers of meeting those demands at varying levels of service. I have examined the budget proposals 
contained in this report, and believe that whilst the spending and service delivery proposals contained within are tighter than 
we have previously set, they are nevertheless achievable and deliverable given good management practices and sound 
financial and performance monitoring. I am satisfied that the requisite management processes exist within the Council to 
deliver this budget, and to identify and deal with any problems which may unexpectedly arise throughout the year.  We fully 
expect there to be a need to review these budgets throughout the coming financial year in order that we can respond to as yet 
undefined financial risks.  As an organisation we recognise a period of budgetary turbulence and we will use our financial 
management processes to identify options that will allow us to adjust our budgetary position as and when required. Formal 
quarterly budget monitoring updates are presented to members throughout the year. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 50



Page 27 of 30 

 

 

 
11.2 Table 13 – Key Risks  

  

Risk Likelihood Impact Action 

Ongoing and continued COVID-19 
Response 

High High Regular financial monitoring, use of reserves, 
promoting growth plans and supporting the 
community 

Drainage Board Levy Increases High High Lobbying Government 

Contract Cost volatility High High To seek to pre-purchase were necessary 

Fluctuation in business rates High High Growth plans and accurate monitoring 

Lack of funding to partners causing 
displacement of service demand 

High High Engagement and realism 

Inadequate capital resources to finance 
future desired plans 

High High Proportionate spending and sale of surplus assets 

Central Government policy changes High High Engagement in consultation and policy creation 

Fairer Funding and Business Rate 
reset/changes 

High High To lobby as required 

VAT – partial exemption High High Close forecasting VAT partial exemption position 

Reductions in NHB impacting on future 
plans 

High High Lobbying and service transformation 

Reduction in Investment Values Medium Medium Regular Monitoring, allocation of specific Reserve 

Uncertainty re: Brexit impact Medium Medium Growth plans and accurate monitoring 

A poor settlement for rural councils Medium High Lobbying as a special interest group 

Fee income volatility Medium Medium Early monitoring of deviations 

Increased demand for services Medium Medium A robust performance management framework 

Failure to deliver the required savings  Low High Effective programme and project management 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 51



Page 28 of 30 

 

 

 
12.  CAPITAL PROGRAMME  
 
12.1 In drawing together the proposed capital programme we have taken a five year view from 2022/23 to 2026/27, to run alongside 

our revenue plans. This is sensible and encourages a link between revenue and capital spending decisions. 
 
12.2 It is important to emphasise that no scheme will appear on the Capital Programme until the criteria set out in the capital strategy 

have been met and agreed by committees of the Council.  Members may well be aware of several potential projects which are 
not included in the proposed five year capital programme. This is not to say that they will not happen but that they will not be 
included until an affordable business case is approved and more information is available. We will have a programme which is 
likely to have further schemes added once aspirations are turned into robust projects. The decisions that are taken ultimately 
have to be affordable, prudent and sustainable for the local community. 

 
12.3 The future for capital investment, funded from both the Council’s resources and external resources, will be dependent on 

decisions taken as part of each year’s budget process. Our capital resources have been substantially eroded over time and 
we aim to take money from revenue to ensure that statutory commitments can continue to be met. This will demand a greater 
role for the Council’s Asset Management Plan to ensure that future liabilities are reduced and that capital receipts are 
maximised.  

 
12.4 The proposed capital programme (including details of anticipated slippage in the 2021/22 capital programme) for 2022/23 to 

2026/27 is shown in table 14 along with how the programme will be financed. It should be noted that some risk exists with 
capping the finance available for Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG) works as this is a statutory provision dictated by law based 
on need rather than the ability of the Council to provide the funds to carry out the works, and as such it is subject to ongoing 
review.   

  
12.5 Following the publication of CIPFA’s review and MHCLG guidance on the Prudential System (which guides and regulates 

councils’ capital and investment strategies), during 2018/19 the Council made use of external borrowing to support the 
Council’s long term Capital Strategy, by purchasing capital Property Fund units. The intention is to bring a number of benefits 
to the Council over the medium to long term, including yield, growth in future capital resources, statutory service resilience and 
historically low interest rate finance. This is subject to regular monitoring and is primarily overseen by the Audit and Governance 
Committee.  

 
12.7 In addition, Boston was chosen by the Government as one of 101 towns and received funding to support growth initiatives for 

the town over the coming years. As projects are worked up by the Town Board and approved by the Government, the Council’s 
capital programme will be amended accordingly. 

P
age 52



Page 29 of 30 

 

 

12.8 The proposed capital programme is affordable, meets the Council’s obligations and provides a basis for growth.  
 
Table 14 – Capital Programme  
 

 Capital Programme £’000 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

1. Disabled Facilities Grants 280 280 280 280 280 

  2.  Vehicle Replacement Programme       

              Grounds Maintenance Mowers 80 - - - - 
              Ford Transit Vans 290, 300 & 1.5tdci  
              Courier 60 - - - - 

              Ford Ranger 2.5 25 - - - - 

              Ford Transit Tipper Vans 350 50 56 - - - 

  3.  Town Centre Heritage Scheme 42 - - - - 

  4.  Information Technology Refresh 170 120 194 100 100 

  5.  Towns Fund – Leisure 2,935 1,990 - - - 

  6.  Towns Fund – Mayflower 720 8,490 3,307 - - 
  7.  Towns Fund – Centre for Food & Fresh Produce 
Logistics 453 388 - - - 
  9.  Towns Fund – Blenkin Memorial Hall 99 - - - - 
10.  Towns Fund – Healing the High Street 283 2,573 1,356 121 - 

11.  Towns Fund – Boston Station 1,565 1,090 - - - 

Totals 6,762 14,987 5,137 501 380 

 
 

Capital Financing £’000  2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

1. Capital Grants and Contributions  4,874 13,811 4,943 401 280 

2. Capital Reserve  1,718 1,156 100 100 100 

3. IT Reserve  170 20 94 - - 

  4.  Repairs and Renewal Reserve  - - - - - 

  5.  Housing Reserve  - - - - - 

Totals  6,762 14,987 5,137 501 380 

P
age 53



Page 30 of 30 

 

 

 
13. OPTIONS 
 
13.1 There are no alternative options presented. Given the likely outlook for future resource levels, the Council needs to focus 

strategically over the next five years, and consider to what extent they wish to maintain existing services, how services might 
be prioritised, and to develop proposals on how future budgetary shortfalls might be addressed.  As in previous years, the 
Cabinet are encouraged to work with all Members (and stakeholders generally) as critical friends to assist in the development 
of future years’ budgets. 

 
14. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
14.1 To comply with the budgetary and policy framework. 
 
 
15. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
15.1 To recommend the following are approved: - 
 

• The budget setting report and associated policies and strategies 2022/23 – 2026/27. 

P
age 54



MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2022-23 TO 2026-27 APPENDIX 1
SUMMARY OF NET REVENUE EXPENDITURE BY PORTFOLIO HOLDER

2022/2023
ESTIMATE £

2023/2024
ESTIMATE £

2024/2025
ESTIMATE £

2025/2026
ESTIMATE £

2026/2027
ESTIMATE £

DESCRIPTION
Housing and Communities 734,420 707,060 707,100 723,580 733,630
Heritage 25,380 8,950 (22,230) (35,900) (46,950)
Town Centre 870,084 891,677 913,797 936,566 959,573
Environmental 3,869,680 4,008,800 4,129,930 4,233,950 4,325,730
Finance and Commercial 1,763,670 1,767,940 1,904,180 2,051,690 2,006,880
Leader 2,411,050 2,413,860 2,460,760 2,493,990 2,442,360
Economic Development & Planning 1,443,039 1,533,770 1,467,060 1,485,730 1,430,170
BTAC - Included in Town Centre 0 0 0 0 0
Efficiencies Required (282,000) (1,667,222) (1,758,754) (1,844,418) (1,590,999)

NET SERVICE EXPENDITURE 10,835,323 9,664,835 9,801,843 10,045,188 10,260,393

Drainage Board Precepts 2,150,300 2,193,300 2,237,100 2,281,900 2,327,500
Parish Council Precepts 509,444 514,538 519,684 524,881 530,129

TOTAL REQUIREMENT 13,495,067 12,372,673 12,558,626 12,851,968 13,118,023
Appropriations
Direct Revenue Financing of Capital Expenditure 1,888,000 1,176,000 194,000 100,000 100,000
Interest on borrowing 493,640 493,640 493,640 493,640 493,640
Repayment of loan principle / MRP 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
Capital Charges contra entry (2,166,640) (2,166,640) (2,166,640) (2,166,640) (2,166,640)
Return on Cash Investments (50,700) (69,500) (87,600) (110,700) (115,300)
Return on Property Funds (909,000) (923,000) (938,000) (952,000) (952,000)
Contributions To / (From) Reserves (5,181,825) (844,671) 235,180 328,306 326,960

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 7,583,542 10,053,502 10,304,207 10,559,575 10,819,683

FINANCING
Retained Business Rates 7,426,520 8,162,000 8,325,240 8,491,745 8,661,580
Tariff (5,140,710) (5,243,524) (5,348,394) (5,455,362) (5,564,470)
RSG 322,894 322,894 322,894 322,894 322,894
Levy to Pool (236,670) (241,403) (246,231) (251,156) (256,179)
NNDR Surplus / (Deficit) (3,500,890) 0 0 0 0
NNDR Renewables 203,210 207,274 211,419 215,648 219,961
New Homes Bonus 697,400 0 0 0 0
Special Area Expense 732,864 751,257 770,137 789,516 809,403
Parish Council Precepts 509,444 514,538 519,684 524,881 530,129
Specific Grants 2,415,280 1,372,000 1,397,660 1,423,833 1,450,529
Council Tax surplus 86,654 0 0 0 0
Council Tax Precept 4,067,546 4,208,466 4,351,798 4,497,576 4,645,835

FUNDING 7,583,542 10,053,502 10,304,207 10,559,575 10,819,683

NET (SURPLUS) / DEFICIT 0 0 0 0 0

01/03/22 12:34 PM
\\Faraday\DemocraticServices\COMMITTEE SERVICES\Council\2021-22\(7) 7 March 2022\Updated budget\BBC Council - March 2022 -

Appendix 1 - Summary by Portfolio 2022-23 Summary by PFH Apx 1
Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2022-23 TO 2026-27 APPENDIX 2
SUMMARY OF NET REVENUE EXPENDITURE

2022/2023
ESTIMATE £

2023/2024
ESTIMATE £

2024/2025
ESTIMATE £

2025/2026
ESTIMATE £

2026/2027
ESTIMATE £

DESCRIPTION
Corporate 2,979,750 3,117,680 3,046,600 3,116,820 3,035,260
Finance 2,101,400 2,104,700 2,227,450 2,355,700 2,306,600
Wellbeing and Community Leadership 1,334,050 1,282,980 1,299,140 1,323,270 1,280,070
Economic Growth 125,679 205,180 211,160 217,570 222,780
Governance 84,530 86,040 87,570 89,130 90,720
General Fund Assets -22,940 -39,110 -67,320 -72,920 -84,480
Leisure and Culture 1,237,174 1,287,737 1,334,227 1,373,006 1,412,043
Neighbourhoods 2,571,440 2,633,660 2,716,140 2,794,610 2,864,950
Planning & Strategic Infrastructure 219,810 108,250 135,990 103,250 115,880
Regulatory 486,430 544,940 569,640 589,170 607,570
Efficiencies Required (282,000) (1,667,222) (1,758,754) (1,844,418) (1,590,999)

NET SERVICE EXPENDITURE 10,835,323 9,664,835 9,801,843 10,045,188 10,260,393

Drainage Board Precepts 2,150,300 2,193,300 2,237,100 2,281,900 2,327,500
Parish Council Precepts 509,444 514,538 519,684 524,881 530,129

TOTAL REQUIREMENT 13,495,067 12,372,673 12,558,626 12,851,968 13,118,023
Appropriations
Direct Revenue Financing of Capital Expenditure 1,888,000 1,176,000 194,000 100,000 100,000
Interest on borrowing 493,640 493,640 493,640 493,640 493,640
Repayment of loan principle / MRP 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
Capital Charges contra entry (2,166,640) (2,166,640) (2,166,640) (2,166,640) (2,166,640)
Return on Cash Investments (50,700) (69,500) (87,600) (110,700) (115,300)
Return on Property Funds (909,000) (923,000) (938,000) (952,000) (952,000)
Contributions To / (From) Reserves (5,181,825) (844,671) 235,180 328,306 326,960

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 7,583,542 10,053,502 10,304,207 10,559,575 10,819,683

FINANCING
Retained Business Rates 7,426,520 8,162,000 8,325,240 8,491,745 8,661,580
Tariff (5,140,710) (5,243,524) (5,348,394) (5,455,362) (5,564,470)
Revenue Support Grant (RSG) 322,894 322,894 322,894 322,894 322,894
Net Levy to Pool (236,670) (241,403) (246,231) (251,156) (256,179)
NNDR surplus / (deficit) (3,500,890) 0 0 0 0
NNDR Renewables 203,210 207,274 211,419 215,648 219,961
Levy Account Surplus - Settlement Data 0 0 0 0 0
New Homes Bonus 697,400 0 0 0 0
Special Area Expense (BTAC) 732,864 751,257 770,137 789,516 809,403
Parish Council Precepts 509,444 514,538 519,684 524,881 530,129
Specific Grants 2,415,280 1,372,000 1,397,660 1,423,833 1,450,529
Council Tax surplus/(deficit) 86,654 0 0 0 0
Council Tax Precept 4,067,546 4,208,466 4,351,798 4,497,576 4,645,835

Funding 7,583,542 10,053,502 10,304,207 10,559,575 10,819,683

NET (SURPLUS) / DEFICIT 0 0 0 0 0

01/03/22 12:35 PM
\\Faraday\DemocraticServices\COMMITTEE SERVICES\Council\2021-22\(7) 7 March 2022\Updated budget\BBC Council - March 2022 - Appendix 2 - Summary by Assistant

Director 2022-23 Budget Book Summary 22-23 Apx 2
Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 
 

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CORPORATE CHARGING POLICY 2022/23 

 

POLICY AIM  
 
The aim of this policy is to provide a corporate framework for the setting of fees 
and charges for the services provided by Boston Borough Council. The policy 
shows the connection between charging for services and the council’s 
objectives and aims to secure the delivery of services efficiently, effectively and 
at affordable levels; it also aims to strengthen financial management. 
 
As the overall resources available to the Council are diminishing, it is important 
to ensure that the charging policy clearly sets out the ways that fees and 
charges will contribute to the continuation of services for residents, businesses 
and other consumers. 
 

POLICY STATEMENT  

LIC STATEMENT 

• The Policy applies to all those fees and charges which the Council has 
discretion to set, regardless of whether the levels are approved by the 
Cabinet or any alternative Council reporting arrangement (for example 
Licensing Committee). Services where charges are decided externally 
will be set in line with the relevant national legal framework and will     
automatically be changed to reflect the latest position. 

 

• We will identify the full costs of delivering services to make clear the level 
of subsidy the Council is providing. 

 

• We will operate an effective and efficient collection system. The methods 
for paying charges will be made clear and the procedures for recovering 
fees will be governed by established Debt Recovery Procedures.  The 
Council reserves the right to levy charges for the late payment of 
invoices. 

 

• Reasonable notice will be given to service users before any new charge 
is implemented. Reasonable notice is defined as one calendar month. 
 

• The effects any new charge has on service usage and income must be 
closely monitored over the first 12 months by the service manager. 
 

• We will invest receipts from fees and charges in the improvement of the 
service, subject to statutory requirements and the wider corporate 
objectives of the Medium Term Financial Strategy. A Service Manager 
may propose to invest receipts from fees and charges and will prepare 
a report to the Corporate Management Team identifying their full 
requirements for use of additional income in their service area. 

 

Page 59



Appendix 3 
 

• All discretionary fees and charges will be set in line with the approved 
charging policy for that service and should fall into one of the categories 
in the following table. 

 

Charging Strategy Objective 

Commercial 
charges 
 

The council aims to cover the cost of providing the 
service and make a surplus 
 

Full Cost 
Recovery 

The council aims to recover the costs of providing 
this service from those who use it 
 

Subsidised The council wishes users of the service to make a 
contribution to the costs of providing it. This might be 
to meet a service objective or to allow competition 
with other providers 
 

Free The Council chooses to make the service available at 
no charge to meet a service objective 
 

Statutory Charges are determined in line with legal 
requirements. 
 

 

• Fees and charges will be regularly reviewed within the Council’s financial 
planning process, any variations outside of this will need formal approval 
by the Cabinet or Committee as appropriate. Service Managers will 
complete the corporate template for the review of fees and charges, these 
will form the bases for reports to the Cabinet or relevant committee, as 
part of the annual review of fees and charges.  

 

• Increases in fees and charges will, each year, be generally in line with the 
level of inflation assumed in the budget process, subject to consideration 
of the specific issues in relation to each service. All changes will be agreed 
as part of the overall budget setting process.  

 

• Wherever possible charges will be collected either in advance or at the 
point of service delivery. Where charges are to be collected after service 
delivery has started, invoices will be raised within 5 working days, and as 
necessary appropriate recovery procedures followed. 

 

• The policy requires a comprehensive schedule of all fees and charges to 
be set up. Each Service Manager will maintain a schedule of fees and 
charges levied for their areas of responsibility. This schedule will be in a 
corporate format and should include, but identify separately, those 
charges that are nationally set. The format will be determined by the 
Accountancy Manager. There may be instances where, for commercial 
reasons, specific fees are not quoted on the schedule. Fees for these 
services will be on a “price on application” basis. 

 

Page 60



Appendix 3 
 

• The Customer Services Manager will be able to refer to all fees and 
charges and these will be made available on the Authority’s website. 

 

• Charges should be easy to understand. 
 

• Existing policies and procedures should be taken into account when 
setting fees and charges. 

 

• Setting of fees and charges should be made in accordance with the current 
value added tax regulations. Where rates of VAT increase then fees and 
charges will automatically be adjusted upwards. Advice will be provided 
by the Accountancy team. 

 

• As a general policy no concession is to be given from the charge set. 
However, it is open to service managers to present a case to the Cabinet 
arguing that a concession is appropriate for a particular group or that a 
concession would assist the achievement of the Council’s Corporate 
Objectives. 

 

• In accordance with business need fees and charges can be amended as 
agreed by the respective Portfolio Holder, Corporate Management Team 
member, Head of Service and the Section 151 Officer (or Deputy Section 
151 Officer) in exceptional circumstances and reported to Cabinet 
retrospectively.  

• I 
IMPLEMENTATION 

IM 
Who is responsible? 
 
Overall responsibility is with the PSPS Financial Services Team and day-to-
day operational responsibility with Service Managers. 
 
Complaints procedure 
 
If any member of the public believes that the Council has acted in a way that 
is not in line with this policy the Council’s Formal Complaints Procedure may 
be followed. 
 
Monitoring and review 
 
The PSPS Financial Services Team will review the implementation of this 
policy and undertake a triennial review of the policy.  
 
Service Team Plans 
 
All service team plans will be consistent with the principles within this policy. 
 
 
 
 

Page 61



Appendix 3 
 

 
 
 
Value for Money 
 
The Council continually reviews its costs and charges to ensure that Value for 
Money is being delivered, and in determining next year’s fees and charges, 
annual reviews will seek to challenge subsidies, determine the value placed on 
the service and how much people are willing to pay. They will also identify any 
new charges for services. 
 
MONITORING 

ONITORING 
The policy will be monitored in the following ways: 
 

MONITORING ACTIVITY PERSON RESPONSIBLE 

Data collection Service Managers 

Review of policy PSPS Financial Services Team 

External communication PSPS Customer Services Manager 

 ONSULTAON 
CONSULTATION 

 
Corporate Management Team and Cabinet were consulted on a draft version 
of the strategy before full implementation. Changes were made to the policy 
reflecting the outcomes of the consultation. 
POLICY APPROVAL 
 
 

Page 62



APPENDIX 4BOSTON & FOSDYKE CEMETERIES

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
Burial Fee - Adult  (Resident of the Borough) 890.00 0.00 890.00 Non business - no VAT
Burial Fee - Adult  (Non resident within 5 years) 1,780.00 0.00 1,780.00 Non business - no VAT
Burial Fee - Child 6 - 17 years 248.00 -248.00 0.00 Non business - no VAT
Burial Fee - Child 1 month - 5 years 99.00 -99.00 0.00 Non business - no VAT
Burial Fee - Child up to 1 month 35.00 -35.00 0.00 Non business - no VAT
Burial Fee - Non Viable Foetus or Baby Tissues resulting
from post mortem 37.00 -37.00 0.00 Non business - no VAT
Excavation of grave space in preparation for construction
of brick vault:
Brick Vault : Single POA POA Non business - no VAT
                      Double POA POA Non business - no VAT
                      Others (pro rata) POA POA
Re-opening of grave for interment in existing vault
(excavation & re-filling) 890.00 0.00 890.00 Non business - no VAT
Cremated remains placed in coffin for interment 83.00 2.00 85.00 Non business - no VAT
Interment (beneath surface) or exhumation of cremated
remains in Cemetery 156.00 4.00 160.00 Non business - no VAT
Double interment of cremated remains (one excavation, 2
caskets or both in same casket) 234.00 6.00 240.00 Non business - no VAT
Scatter of Cremated Remains in cemetery (unwitnessed) 68.00 0.00 68.00 Non business - no VAT
Officer attendance at witnessed scattering or interment of
ashes - (by appointment only) 29.00 1.00 30.00 Non business - no VAT
Exhumation of coffined body from cemetery POA POA Standard rate
Fees and Charges
Purchase of Exclusive Right of burial (including memorial
permit) - single space (resident of Borough) 1,180.00 20.00 1,200.00 Non business - no VAT
Purchase of Exclusive Right of burial (including memorial
permit) - single space (non resident) 2,360.00 40.00 2,400.00 non business - no VAT
Purchase of Exclusive Right of Burial for a cremated
remains plot at Fosdyke Cemetery 566.00 17.00 583.00 Non business - no VAT
Transfer of grave ownership fee 37.00 1.00 38.00 non business - no VAT
Administration fee for surrender of Exclusive Right of
Burial or rectification to change to alternative grave space 57.00 2.00 59.00 Non business - no VAT
Permit for vase (unpurchased graves) 77.00 2.00 79.00 Non business - no VAT
Exclusive right of burial for child grave including memorial
permit 77.00 -77.00 0.00 Non business - no VAT
Permit for additional inscription on existing memorial 47.00 2.00 49.00 Non business - no VAT
Grave maintenance - Annual contract
With Planting - Single 112.00 3.00 115.00 Standard rate
With Planting - Double 224.00 6.00 230.00 Standard rate
With Planting - Triple 336.00 9.00 345.00 Standard rate
With Planting - Quadruple 448.00 12.00 460.00 Standard rate
Family History Searches:
To locate names in the indexes & registers through to
identification of the grave on site -
per grave 2.50 0.50 3.00 Standard rate
Non-genealogical searches or names not found in indexes no charge no charge

Page 63



APPENDIX 4
BOSTON CREMATORIUM

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
Memorial Price List
Book of Remembrance
2 Line Inscription 83.00 2.00 85.00 Standard rate
5 Line Inscription 122.00 3.00 125.00 Standard rate
8 Line Inscription 154.00 5.00 159.00 Standard rate
Illustration, Badge, Coat of Arms etc (to accompany 5 & 8 line entries only) 83.00 2.00 85.00 Standard rate
Miniature Book of Remembrance 2 line entry 83.00 2.00 85.00 Standard rate
Miniature Book of Remembrance 5 line entry 122.00 3.00 125.00 Standard rate
Miniature Book of Remembrance 8 line entry 154.00 5.00 159.00 Standard rate
Memorial card - 2 line entry 31.00 0.00 31.00 Standard rate
Memorial card - 5 line entry 36.00 0.00 36.00 Standard rate
Memorial card - 8 line entry 42.00 0.00 42.00 Standard rate
Each additional line in existing Miniature Book 21.00 0.00 21.00 Standard rate
Correction or addition to Book of Remembrance entry (client error) 21.00 0.00 21.00 Standard rate
Fixed Term Memorials

Renewal of dedication for existing individual roses, trees & shrubs - per annum 26.00 1.00 27.00 Standard rate
Each 5 year dedication of one granite Bench plaque (one third share, 3 plaques
per granite bench), bench remains the property of the Council 413.00 12.00 425.00 Standard rate
Each 5 year dedication of plaque on wooden bench (one plaque per bench
only), includes maintenance of bench which remains the property of the Council 618.00 18.00 636.00 Standard rate
Inscribed granite wall plaque or tower plaque- initial set up plus first year of
dedication 89.00 3.00 92.00 Standard rate

Inscribed granite wall plaque or tower plaque - per each year of dedication 26.00 1.00 27.00 Standard rate
Single Leather Recordia Panel in Chapel of Remembrance (1st yr) 52.00 2.00 54.00 Standard rate
Leather Recordia Panel (per year-2nd year onwards), single or double 26.00 1.00 27.00 Standard rate
Double Leather Recordia Panel in Chapel of Remembrance (1st yr) 104.00 3.00 107.00 Standard rateRe-enameling of lettering on existing memorial tablet (all types) (5year old or
more) 103.00 3.00 106.00 Standard rate
Plaque on babies memorial wall, initial set up charge 56.00 2.00 58.00 Standard rate
Lease of plaque for babies memorial (per year) 16.00 0.00 16.00 Standard rate
Granite Ash Vaults
Placement of ashes in above-ground granite vault , including plaque and urn -
10 year lease 975.00 20.00 995.00 Standard rate

20 year lease 1,468.00 29.00 1,497.00 Standard rate
30 year lease 1,957.00 39.00 1,996.00 Standard rate
50 year lease 3,090.00 62.00 3,152.00 Standard rate

Second placement of ashes in existing above-ground granite vault (existing
lease period stands), including plaque and urn 275.00 5.00 280.00 Standard rate
Photo plaque on Vault plaque or Columbarium plaque (each plaque) 134.00 5.00 139.00 Standard rate
Columbarium Niches
Placement of ashes in columbarium niche, includes inscribed granite tablet and
urn                                                                     10 year lease 566.00 11.00 577.00 Standard rate

20 year lease 850.00 17.00 867.00 Standard rate

30 year lease 1,133.00 23.00 1,156.00 Standard rate
50 year lease 2,060.00 10.00 2,070.00 Standard rate

2nd placement in existing columbarium niche (remaining lease period stands).
Includes inscribed granite tablet and urn 275.00 5.00 280.00 Standard rate
Supplement for each additional casket of ashes placed during same
appointment (or if large casket containing two sets of ashes). Vaults and 62.00 2.00 64.00 Standard rate
Other Charges

Replacement or re-facing of memorial tablet (memorial pathway) incl 30 letters 920.00 0.00 920.00 Standard rate
Grey Granite memorial tablet for Garden of Rest (opposite front entrance), incl
30 letters 315.00 9.00 324.00 Standard rate
Each additional letter of inscription on memorial tablet (memorial pathway &
opposite front entrance) 4.00 0.00 4.00 Standard rate
Replacement metal flower container for existing memorial tablet 15.00 1.00 16.00 Standard rate
Additional name/plaque on existing Rose/Shrub or Tree (perspex type) 36.00 0.00 36.00 Standard rate
Upgrade to Cast bronze plaque on existing memorial tree or rose bush 106.00 3.00 109.00 Standard rateAddition to or replacement of existing cast bronze plaque in communal rose
bed 106.00 3.00 109.00 Standard rate

Page 64



APPENDIX 4
BOSTON CREMATORIUM

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £

MEDIA FEES
Video file recording (MP4) of funeral service supplied as downloadable link New Charge 30.00 Standard rate
Video file recording (MP4) of funeral service with VT embedded   -
downloadable link New Charge 45.00 Standard rateVideo file (MP4) of the Visual Tribute (on its own) supplied as downloadable
link New Charge 18.00 Standard rate
Video recording of the whole service on DVD or USB 43.00 1.00 43.00 Standard rate
Video recording of the whole service with the VT embedded on DVD or USB 55.00 0.00 55.00 Standard rate
Video recording of the visual tribute (on its own) on DVD or USB 24.00 1.00 25.00
Each additional DVD or USB Video recording 21.00 0.00 21.00 Standard rate
Live Webcasting of funeral service, includes 7 days on demand 88.00 -28.00 60.00 Standard rate
Visual Tribute  - Single still image New Charge 18.00 Standard rate
Slideshow – up to 25 images with music New Charge 75.00 Standard rate
Slideshow – up to 25 images, no music New Charge 38.00 Standard rate
Each additional 25 images (1 to 25) New Charge 21.00 Standard rate
Family video file New Charge 18.00 Standard rate
Orders/ media for Tributes received after our 48hr cut-off period (additional fee) New Charge 75.00 Standard rate

Fees and Charges
Cremation Fee - Adult 780.00 15.00 795.00 Exempt - no VAT
Cremation Fee - Direct cremation. No funeral service or mourners, 8.30am or
4pm time slot only (cremation next day). Includes 2 pallbearers (wheeled) 545.00 50.00 595.00 Exempt - no VAT
Cremation Fee - Child 6 - 15 years 97.00 -97.00 0.00 Exempt - no VAT
Cremation Fee - Child 1 month to 5 years 28.00 -28.00 0.00 Exempt - no VAT
Cremation Fee - Child under 1 month, non-viable foetus or body part resulting
from post mortem 18.00 -18.00 0.00 Exempt - no VAT
Cremation Fee - Batch Cremation of pre-12 week foetuses (per batch not
exceeding 20.) 47.00 1.00 48.00 Exempt - no VAT

Combined cremation and memorial offers
A. Standard cremation service including up yo 5 lines inscription in Book of
Remembrance 830.00 delete charge Exempt/standard

B. Standard cremation service including a 1 year lease of a Wall plaque, Tower
plaque or Leather Recordia panel (lease renewable in yearly increments) 830.00 delete charge Exempt/standard

C. Standard cremation service including 10 year lease of a columbarium niche 1,220.00 delete charge Exempt/standard

Provision of one pall bearer 25.00 0.00 25.00 Standard rate

Provision of two pall-bearers (maximum & only if available) 50.00 0.00 50.00 Standard rate
Additional service slot in Chapel (when available) 200.00 0.00 200.00 Exempt - no VAT
Use of Crematorium Chapel for a burial or memorial service or for training
purposes. 200.00 0.00 200.00 Exempt - no VAT
Storage of cremated remains after 28 days 8.00 0.00 8.00 Exempt - no VAT
Bronze Urn 21.00 1.00 22.00 Exempt - no VAT
Polytainer 14.00 1.00 15.00 Exempt - no VAT
Interment/ exhumation of cremated remains at Crematorium (unwitnessed) 156.00 4.00 160.00 Exempt - no VAT
Interment/ exhumation of cremated remains at Crematorium (witnessed with
staff present) 185.00 5.00 190.00 Exempt - no VAT
Scattering of Cremated remains (Witnessed with staff present) 29.00 1.00 30.00 Exempt - no VAT
Scattering of Cremated remains from other Crematoria (unwitnessed) 68.00 0.00 68.00 Exempt - no VAT
Scattering of Cremated remains from other Crematoria (Witnessed with staff
present) 97.00 1.00 98.00 Exempt - no VAT
Double interment of cremated remains, (one excavation, 2 caskets or both in
same casket) 234.00 6.00 240.00 Exempt - no VAT
Additional Certificate of Cremation (if remains are split or original lost) 15.00 1.00 16.00 Exempt - no VAT
Photocopy of Registrars or Coroners disposal certificate 15.00 1.00 16.00 Exempt - no VAT
Letter of delcaration for customs - remains taken abroad 15.00 1.00 16.00 Exempt - no VAT

Page 65



APPENDIX 4
CCTV Closed Circuit TV

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
BusinessPrice on application

Page 66



APPENDIX 4
COMMERCIAL WASTE FEES AND CHARGES

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

Green Bin prices (residual waste) £ £ £
240 Litre - Once Weekly Non Business
240 Litre - Twice Weekly Non Business
240 Litre - Fortnightly Non Business
240 Litre - Monthly Non Business
360 Litre - Once Weekly Non Business
360 Litre - Twice Weekly Non Business
360 Litre - Fortnightly Non Business
360 Litre - Monthly Non Business
660 Litre - Once Weekly Non Business
660 Litre - Twice Weekly Non Business
660 Litre - Fortnightly Non Business
660 Litre - Monthly Non Business
1100 Litre - Once Weekly Non Business
1100 Litre - Twice Weekly Non Business
1100 Litre - Fortnightly Non Business
1100 Litre - Monthly Non Business
Trade Bags (10 bags per roll) Non Business

Blue Bin prices
240L weekly Non Business
240L fortnightly Non Business
240L Monthly Non Business
360L - Fortnightly Non Business
360l - Monthly Non Business
660L Fortnightly Non Business
660L Monthly Non Business
1100L weekly Non Business
1100L Fortnightly Non Business
1100L Monthly Non Business
Trade bags (10 bags per roll) Non Business

Other charges:
Commercial waste bins:
Re-instatement of bin Non Business

Price on application
Price on application

Price on application

Price on application
Price on application
Price on application
Price on application
Price on application
Price on application

Price on application
Price on application
Price on application
Price on application
Price on application

Price on application

Price on application

Price on application

Price on application
Price on application
Price on application
Price on application
Price on application
Price on application

Price on application
Price on application
Price on application
Price on application
Price on application
Price on application

Page 67



APPENDIX 4

WASTE SERVICES

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
BULKY COLLECTION CHARGES - DOMESTIC

Bulky Collections: Standard Items
Collection of 1-2 standard items 18.00 0.00 18.00 Non business
Collection of 3 standard items 25.00 0.00 25.00 Non business
Collection of 4-5 standard items 30.00 0.00 30.00 Non business
Bulky Collections: White Items
Collection of 1 large white goods 26.25 0.00 26.25 Non business
Collection of 2 large white goods 36.75 0.00 36.75 Non business
Any Other Items
Eg Carpets, sheds, wood, garden waste POA POA Non business
Refuse Bins
New/ replacement 240L bin 25.00 0.00 25.00 Non business
New/ replacement 360L bin 50.00 0.00 50.00 Non business
New/ replacement 660L bin 150.00 0.00 150.00 Non business
New/ replacement 1100L bin 175.00 0.00 175.00 Non business
Garden Waste Collections
Garden waste collections for 1 bin (per annum) 45.00 0.00 45.00 non business
Garden waste collections for each extra bin (per annum) 20.00 0.00 20.00 non business
Garden waste 240L bin purchase 25.00 0.00 25.00 non business

BULKY COLLECTIONS - COMMERCIAL
Commercial Waste Bulky collections: Standard
Collection of 1-2 standard items 28.80 0.00 28.80 Non business
Collection of 3 standard items 40.00 0.00 40.00 Non business
Collection of 4-5 standard items 48.00 0.00 48.00 Non business

Commercial Waste Bulky collections: White Items
Collection of 1 large white goods 42.00 0.00 42.00 Non business
Collection of 2 large white goods 58.80 0.00 58.80 Non business

STREET CLEANING - COMMERCIAL
Street Cleaning - large sweeper (Driver +1) Hourly rate-min
2 hours Standard rate
Street Cleaning - small sweeper (Driver +1) Hourly rate -
min 2 hours Standard rate
Street Cleaning - large sweeper (Driver +1) Day rate - min
1 day Standard rate
Street Cleaning - small sweeper (Driver +1) Day rate - min
1 day Standard rate

Commercial Street Cleaning:
These prices will need to be published as POA (but the calculations are saved in the Ops POA folder)
18.9.20 -MF does not want to incr 'standard' prices 21.22 because of covid situation & subsequent potential financial hardship
Also may make the fly tipping situation worse.

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Page 68



GROUNDS MAINTENANCE CHARGES

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
Commercial Tree Services:
Commercial contract services (Tree)-with cherry picker
(plus disposal costs of any waste) Standard rate
Commercial contract services (Tree)- without cherry picker
(plus disposal costs of any waste) Standard rate
Commercial Play inspections and repairs:
Commercial contract services - Play equipment inspections Standard rate
Commercial contract services - Play equipment repairs Standard rate

These prices will need to be published as POA (but the actual prices saved within the Ops POA folder)

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application
Price on Application

Page 69



APPENDIX 4
GUILDHALL

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
Private Hire (after 6pm there is a minimum of 2 hours hire required)
Private hire within normal opening hours (per hour) 50.00 Price on Application
Private hire outside normal opening hours (per hour) * 80.00 Price on Application
Private hire of more than one room (price on application) Standard Rates
Charity private hire within normal opening hours (per hour) 40.00 Price on Application
Charity private hire outside normal opening hours (per hour) * 50.00 Price on Application

Meeting Room Hire
Meeting room hire within normal opening hours (per hour) 25.00 5.00 30.00
Meeting room hire outside normal opening hours 8am to 6pm (per hour) 50.00 Price on Application
Refreshments (per serving) 15.00 15.00 30.00

Wedding Hire
Wedding hire -  Ceremony only 520.00 Price on Application Standard Rates
Reception to follow wedding (per hour) 85.00 Price on Application Standard Rates
Wedding hire -  Ceremony only Outside normal opening hours 620.00 Price on Application Standard Rates
Reception to follow wedding (per hour) Outside normal opening hours 95.00 Price on Application Standard Rates

Tours (price is for upto 20 people)
Group guided tour within opening hours (booking required) 60.00 20.00 80.00 Standard Rates
Bespoke tours/talks/on and off site/packages Standard Rates
Paranormal investigations groups Standard Rates

Other
Refreshments (per serving) 15.00 5.00 20.00 Standard Rates
Linen Charge  (per table) 0.00 5.00 5.00 Standard Rates
Bespoke stands at events Standard Rates
Location Hire Standard Rates
Hire of entire Guildhall Standard Rates
Photography fee for occasion events Standard Rates

* Upto 10pm and excluding Christmas and Bank Holidays
The Guildhall is not available for wedding bookings or other hire on bank holidays and during  its Christmas closure period
All bookings are subject to availability
Admin fees charge on third party services e.g catering, venue dressing etc

Price on application

Price on Application

Price on Application
Price on Application
Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Page 70



APPENDIX 4
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
Health Education - 3217
Unit Food Examination (Charge for initial 1st Hour) 90.20 0.00 90.20 Non business - No VAT charge
Unit Food Examination (Charge per hour after initial hour) 42.40 0.00 42.40 Non business - No VAT charge
Request for a revisit 150.00 0.00 150.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Training courses (food safety)
Setting up a food business 75.00 0.00 75.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Food Hygiene refresher (Half day) 100.00 0.00 100.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Food Hygiene refresher (Full day) 175.00 0.00 175.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Management system coaching 75.00 0.00 75.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Short courses 25.00 0.00 25.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Dog Warden - 3219
Dog Fines (Seizure) - FIXED BY STATUTE 25.00 0.00 25.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Stray Dogs - Admin Charge per dog. 20.00 0.00 20.00 Standard rate
Kennelling fees (per day) 11.00 0.00 11.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Dog Control
Dog Fouling (Fixed penalty) - FIXED BY STATUTE 100.00 0.00 100.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Failing to exclude your dog from a fenced off children’s play area  - FIXED BY
STATUTE 100.00 0.00 100.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Failing to put a nuisance or dangerous dog on a lead when requested to do
so by an authorised officer - FIXED BY STATUTE 100.00 0.00 100.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Failure to provide evidence of the means to clear up dog faeces (Bag or
receptacle).- FIXED BY STATUTE 100.00 0.00 100.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Mobile Homes Act 2013 - licence fees
New Site Licence 385.00 0.00 385.00 Non business - No VAT charge
New Site Licence per pitch 8.20 0.00 8.20 Non business - No VAT charge
Transfer / amendment of existing site licence 240.00 0.00 240.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Significant amendments 315.00 0.00 315.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Annual fee for existing site licence per pitch 3.10 0.10 3.20 Non business - No VAT charge
Enforcement notices 100.00 0.00 100.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Enforcement notices additional one 50.00 0.00 50.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Depositing site rules 50.00 0.00 50.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Pollution - 3216
Contaminated Land (consultation and advice) - charged per hour 30.00 0.00 30.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Food Safety
Export Certificate - Can only be issued within council opening hours 120.00 0.00 120.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Export Certificate - Issued outside council opening hours NEW 0.00 240.00 240.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Food safety packs 15.00 0.00 15.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Port Health - 3214
Ship Sanitation Certificate - FIXED BY STATUTE 120.00 0.00 120.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Ship Sanitation Extension - FIXED BY STATUTE 55.00 0.00 55.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Street Cleansing - 3235
Litter Fixed Penalty - FIXED BY STATUTE 75.00 0.00 75.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Fly tipping penalty - FIXED BY STATUTE 150-400 0 150-400 Non business - No VAT charge

Public Conveniences - 8006
Radar Keys 5.00 0.00 5.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Page 71



APPENDIX 4
MISCELLANEOUS LICENCES

Proposed Proposed Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges Charges Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

Part A Part B Total
£ £ £ £ £

Sex Establishments (1st Application) 1,547.00 0.00 1,330.00 217.00 1,547.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Sex Establishments (Renewal Application) 539.00 0.00 322.00 217.00 539.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Dangerous Wild Animals (1st Application) 284.50 0.00 284.50 Non business - No VAT charge
Dangerous Wild Animals (Renewal Application) 210.00 0.00 210.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Dog Breeding (New) + Vets fees rechargeable at invoiced amount New fee 389.00 0.00 351.00 38.00 389.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Dog Breeding (Renewal) New fee 346.00 0.00 308.00 38.00 346.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Riding Establishment (New) + Vets fees rechargeable at invoiced amount New fee 238.50 0.00 213.50 25.00 238.50 Non business - No VAT charge
Riding Establishment (Renewal) + Vets fees rechargeable at invoiced amount New fee 195.00 0.00 170.00 25.00 195.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Selling Animals as Pets (New) New fee 238.50 0.00 213.50 25.00 238.50 Non business - No VAT charge
Selling Animals as Pets (Renewal) New fee 195.00 0.00 170.00 25.00 195.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Boarding Dogs/Cats, Home Boarding and Day Care (new) New fee 238.50 0.00 213.50 25.00 238.50 Non business - No VAT charge
Boarding Dogs/Cats, Home Boarding and Day Care (renewal) New fee 195.00 0.00 170.00 25.00 195.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Exhibition of Animals (New) New fee 235.00 0.00 235.00 235.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Exhibition of Animals (Renewal) New fee 235.00 0.00 235.00 235.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Re-inspection on request New fee 49.00 0.00 49.00 49.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Additional Activity payable in addition to the higher fee (inspection fee) New fee 49.00 0.00 49.00 49.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Change of name/address New fee 18.50 0.00 18.50 18.50 Non business - No VAT charge
Transfer due to death of a licence holder New fee 18.50 0.00 18.50 18.50 Non business - No VAT charge
Variation of Licence + vets fees rechargeable at invoiced amount where applicable New fee 24.50 0.00 24.50 24.50 Non business - No VAT charge
Zoo Licence Grant 4 years 445.00 0.00 368.00 77.00 445.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Zoo Licence Renewal 6 years 368.00 0.00 291.00 77.00 368.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Zoo Licence Transfer 148.00 0.00 148.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Zoo Licence Annual Inspection 77.00 0.00 77.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Tattooing, ear piercing, acupuncture & electrolysis Premises Registration 116.00 0.00 86.00 30.00 116.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Tattooing, ear piercing, acupuncture & electrolysis Personal Registration 49.50 0.00 49.50 Non business - No VAT charge
Street Trading Consent 112.50 0.00 112.50 Non business - No VAT charge
Street Trading daily consent 16.00 0.00 16.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Scrap Metal Dealers
Scrap Metal Dealer Site Licence 488.50 0.00 316.50 172.00 488.50 Non business - No VAT charge
Scrap Metal Dealer Collector Licence Fee 228.50 0.00 161.50 67.00 228.50 Non business - No VAT charge
Variation of licence collector to site 218.50 0.00 218.50 Non business - No VAT charge
Variation of licence site to collector 57.00 0.00 57.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Change of site manager 47.00 0.00 47.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Minor change e.g. change of licensee details 32.00 0.00 32.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Duplicate Licence (Standard replacement Licence fee for all licence types) 10.50 0.00 10.50 Non business - No VAT charge

Register entry fee (for the first entry and £0.50 per entry thereafter) 10.50 0.00 10.50 Non business - No VAT charge

Page 72



APPENDIX 4
Premises Licence and Club Premises Certificates 2022/23 Statutory fees - no increase.

Bands A B C D E

Non-Domestic rateable value
£0 -
£4,300

£4,301 -
£33,000

£33,001 -
£87,000

£87,001 -
£125,000

£125,001
and over

Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates (New, Variations & Conversion)

If Band D and E are used exclusively or primarily for supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises then a multiplier applies:
Band D = £450 X 2 = £900
Band E = £635 X 3 = £1905

Bands A B C D E
Non-Domestic rateable value £100 £190 £315 £450 £635
Multiplier Charge see above £0 £0 £0 £900 £1,905

Additional Fee Based on Capacity over 5000 (For New and Variation)

Capacity
5,000 -
9,999

10,000 -
14,999

15,000 -
19,999

20,000 -
29,999

30,000 -
39,999

40,000 -
49,999

50,000 -
59,999

60,000 -
69,999

70,000 -
79,999

80,000 -
89,999

90,000 -
Plus

Additional Fee (£) 1,000 2,000 4,000 8,000 16,000 24,000 32,000 40,000 48,000 56,000 64,000

Annual Fee and Variation Fee For Premises Licenses and Club Premises Certificates

Payable on anniversary of grant
Plus additional fee see below if capacity is over 5,000
Multiplier applies to band D and E
If Band D and E are used exclusively or primarily for supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises then a multiplier applies:
Band D = £320 X 2 = £640
Band E = £350 X 3 = £1050
For Club paid by secretary

Bands A B C D E
Non-Domestic rateable value £70 £180 £295 £320 £350

Additional Fee Based on Capacity over 5000

Capacity
5,000 -
9,999

10,000 -
14,999

15,000 -
19,999

20,000 -
29,999

30,000 -
39,999

40,000 -
49,999

50,000 -
59,999

60,000 -
69,999

70,000 -
79,999

80,000 -
89,999

90,000 -
Plus

Additional Fee (£) 500 1,000 2,000 4,000 8,000 12,000 16,000 20,000 24,000 28,000 32,000

Other Fees
£

PREMISES Theft, Loss etc. of Premises Licence or Summary 10.50
OTHER FEE

Page 73



APPENDIX 4
315.00

10.50
23.00
23.00
23.00

CLUBS 10.50
10.50
10.50

TEMPORARY EVENT NOTICE 21.00
10.50

PERSONAL LICENCE 37.00
10.50
10.50

FREEHOLDER/LEASEHOLDER 21.00

Exemption of Fees for Premises Licence and Club Premises Certificates

Applies for regulated entertainment at certain premises
Premises - school, college, church or community hall or similar building
The exemption does not apply to any other licensable activity within these premises

Exemption
No fee for grant or variation
No annual fee

Interim Authority
Transfer: Premises Licence

Provisional Statement
Change of Name or Address (Premises Licence Holder)
Variation of Designated Premises Supervisor

Theft, Loss etc. of Club Premises Certificates or Summary
Change of Name or Alteration of Club Rules

Theft, Loss etc. of Personal Licence

Register of Interest

Change of Registered Address of Club
Temporary Event Notice
Theft, Loss etc. of Temporary Event Notice
Grant/Renewal of Personal Licence

Change of Name and Address

Page 74



APPENDIX 4
HACKNEY CARRIAGE, PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE AND OTHER LICENCES

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Drivers Licence 126.00 0.00 126.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Drivers Licence - RENEWAL 106.50 0.00 106.50 Non business - No VAT charge
DVLA Licence check 5.00 0.00 5.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Additional manual DVLA check 5.00 0.00 5.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence 139.00 0.00 139.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Private Hire Vehicle Licence 139.00 0.00 139.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Private Hire Operators Licence 172.50 0.00 172.50 Non business - No VAT charge
Hire of Vehicle Plate 26.00 0.00 26.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Replacement Drivers Badge 10.50 0.00 10.50 Non business - No VAT charge
Drivers Knowledge Test Fee 16.00 0.00 16.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Mogo Plate Fee 12.00 0.00 12.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Mogo Plate Bracket 12.00 0.00 12.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Route 2 DBS validation check 20.00 0.00 20.00 Non business - no VAT charge
DBS check (Set by DBS - DBS reduced charge 19.20) 40.00 0.00 40.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Page 75



APPENDIX 4
FEES FOR GAMBLING ACT 2005 (introduced wef 21st May 2007)

2022/23
LICENCE TYPE BBC

Charge

Bingo Premises Licence
Application fee for provisional statement 784.00
Licence for provisional statement premises 461.00
Application fee new premises 784.00
Annual Fee 572.50
Variation of Licence 700.00
Transfer fee 448.00
Application for reinstatement 448.00

Adult Gaming Centre
Application fee for provisional statement 721.00
Licence for provisional statement premises 427.00
Application fee new premises 721.00
Annual Fee 447.50
Variation of Licence 700.00
Transfer fee 448.00
Application for reinstatement 448.00

Family Entertainment Centre
Application fee for provisional statement 721.00
Licence for provisional statement premises 406.00
Application fee new premises 721.00
Annual Fee 413.50
Variation of Licence 700.00
Transfer fee 448.00
Application for reinstatement 448.00

Betting Premises
Application fee for provisional statement 721.00
Licence for provisional statement premises 427.00
Application fee new premises 721.00
Annual Fee 392.00
Variation of Licence 700.00
Transfer fee 448.00
Application for reinstatement 448.00

Miscellaneous
Change of circumstances 25.00
Fee for copy notices 15.00
Fee for copy of a licence 15.00
Fee for Permits - Statutory 15.00
Temporary Use Notices 165.00

Gambling permit
Gambling permit - Club gaming permit (new/renewal) 200.00
Gambling permit - Club gaming permit annual fee 50.00
Gambling permit - Club gaming permit - copy of permit 15.00
Gambling permit - Variation 100.00
Gambling permit - Club gaming machine permit (new/renewal) 200.00
Gambling permit - Club gaming machine permit annual fee 50.00
Gambling permit - Club gaming machine permit - copy of permit 15.00
Gambling permit - Club gaming machine permit - variation 100.00

Gambling permit - club fast track gaming/gaming machine permit (new/renewal/Transitional fee) 100.00
Gambling permit - club fast track gaming/gaming machine permit Annual fee 50.00
Gambling permit - small society lottery registration 40.00
Gambling permit - small society lottery registration  annual fee 20.00

Alcohol and entertainment licences/temporary events permits
Gambling permit - FEC gaming machine (new/renewal) 300.00
Gambling permit - FEC permit - change of name 25.00
Gambling permit - FEC permit - copy of permit 15.00
Gambling permit - Prize gaming (new/renewal) 300.00
Gambling permit - Prize gaming - change of name 25.00
Gambling permit - Prize gaming - copy of permit 15.00
Gambling permit - Alcohol licensed premises - Notification of 2 or less machines 50.00
Gambling permit - Alcohol licensed premises - more than 2 machines 150.00
Gambling permit - Alcohol licensed premises - more than 2 machines - Annual fee 50.00
Gambling permit - Alcohol licensed premises - more than 2 machines - Change of name 25.00
Gambling permit - Alcohol licensed premises - more than 2 machines - Copy  of permit 15.00
Gambling permit - Alcohol licensed premises - more than 2 machines - Variation 100.00
Gambling permit - Alcohol licensed premises - more than 2 machines - Transfer 25.00Page 76



APPENDIX 4

LAND CHARGES

Proposed
LCC LCC BBC BBC Charges

Element Element (with VAT) Element (no VAT) Element (with VAT) 2022/23
£ £ £ £ £

CON 29 Search Fee  - Part R (Manual) 23.10 29.11 52.62 63.14 92.25 Standard rate
CON 29 Search Fee - Part R (Electronic) 23.10 29.11 52.62 63.14 92.25 Standard rate
Statutory LLC1 - Fixed by statute up to 06-07.  Deregulated 07-
08 (Manual) 0.00 21.00 0.00 21.00 Non business - No VAT charge
NLIS Statutory LLC1 - Fixed by statute up to 06-07.
Deregulated 07-08 (Electronic) 0.00 21.00 0.00 21.00 Non business - No VAT charge
CON 29 Search Fee - Part O Optional Enquiry 4 1.10 1.39 14.59 17.51 18.90 Standard rate

CON 29 Search Fee - Part O Optional Enquiry 8 1.10 1.39 4.09 4.91 6.30 Standard rate
CON 29 Search Fee - Part O Optional Enquiry 21 3.30 4.16 12.03 14.44 18.60
CON 29 Search Fee - Part O Optional Enquiry 22 6.60 8.32 8.57 10.28 18.60 Standard rate
CON 29 Search Fee - Part O Optional Enquiry 0.00 12.00 14.40 14.40 Standard rate
Additional Enquiries 0.00 18.00 21.60 21.60 Non business - No VAT charge
CON 29 Search Fee - (manual & electronic) Additional Parcels
of Land 17.00 20.40 20.40 Standard rate
LLC1 Additional Parcels of Land 0.00 1.00 0.00 1.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Cancellation of LLC1 10.00 0.00 10.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Cancellation of CON 29 0.00 30.00 36.00 36.00 Standard rate
Informal Searches 0.00 26.00 31.20 31.20 Standard rate

Page 77



APPENDIX 4LEISURE POOL

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
LEISURE POOL
Swimming
Adult 4.50 4.50 Standard rate
OAP Concessions 3.40 3.40 Standard rate
Junior Swim 3.30 3.30 Standard rate
Disabled Concession 3.40 3.40 Standard rate
Spectator 1.00 1.00 Standard rate
Family Swim 12.50 12.50 Standard rate
Lessons Junior and Adult (1/2 hour x 7 sessions) 34.65 34.65 Exempt - no VAT
One to One swimming lessons 17.50 17.50 Exempt - no VAT
Crash course swimming lessons (1/2 hour x 5 sessions) 22.50 22.50 Exempt - no VAT
Activity Sessions 6.00 6.00 Exempt - no VAT
Float Fit - Adults 6.00 6.00 Exempt - no VAT
Float Fit - Concession 5.50 5.50 Exempt - no VAT
Float Fit College / School 5.00 5.00 Exempt - no VAT
Float Fit - Staff non member 6.00 6.00 Exempt - no VAT
Kids Club - Membership 13.00 13.00 Exempt - no VAT
Child Activity Pack - Monthly Pass 15.00 15.00 Exempt - no VAT
Child Activity Pack - 30 day pass 25.00 25.00 Exempt - no VAT
Kids Club - Non member fee 5.00 5.00 Exempt - no VAT
Under 5's Swim 1.00 1.00 Exempt - no VAT
Aqua Fit (Single session) 6.00 6.00 Exempt - no VAT
Aqua Fit concession (Single session) 5.50 5.50 Exempt - no VAT
Aqua Fit 50+ (Single session) 4.00 4.00 Exempt - no VAT
School (per child) with staff supervision 1.70 1.70 Exempt - no VAT
Club and Individual Training

BASC agreed rate per week ( as determined throught the Partnership SLA)(not in on Sundays
wef: Sept 2015) Price set until August 2018 1,076.90 1,076.90 Exempt - no VAT
SUB-AQUA
Leisure Pool Hire
Training Room Activity Room 25.50 25.50 See note 1 below
Party Package (Pool plus activity room - max 30) (inc £20 deposit) 125.00 125.00 Standard rate
Party Package (Activity Room) 50.00 50.00 Standard rate

Table Tennis (table hire 55 minutes - activity room) 5.00 5.00 Standard rate
Table Tennis (bat hire 55 minutes - activity room) 1.50 1.50 Standard rate

Six month Swim Pass
12 months Adult NEW FEE 301.20 301.20 Standard rate
6 months OAP Concessions NEW FEE 270.00 270.00 Standard rate
30 Day Swim Pass 35.00 35.00
Adult - Direct Debit monthly 26.40 26.40
Concessions - Direct Debit monthly - now in line with gym - 1 price for concessions 23.70 23.70
Courses / Training
RLSS NPLQ (Including First Aid) 230.00 230.00 Exempt - no VAT
First Aid 125.00 125.00 Exempt - no VAT
Defib 70.00 70.00 Exempt - no VAT
NRASTAC (School teacher safety training) 90.00 90.00 Exempt - no VAT

Note 1 - The VAT liability of the charge for the activity areas is exempt if it is purely room hire, without use of pool.

Note 2 - The VAT liability may change if there are a series of lets - please refer to rules on Sports Charges Fees & Charges page

Page 78



APPENDIX 4
FITNESS SUITE

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
FITNESS SUITE
Club membership
Induction (knocked off joining fee in 1st month) 10.00 10.00 Exempt - no VAT
Joining Fee 25.00 25.00 Standard rate
Joining Fee (College) 15.00 15.00 Standard rate
Monthly fees (club members)
Gym/health/swim - 29.95 29.95 Standard rate
Corporate 26.50 26.50 Standard rate
Student 22.95 22.95 Standard rate
Concession 23.95 23.95 Standard rate
All facilities annual - 12+1 months from 15 months 359.40 359.40 Standard rate
All facilities annual CONCESSION - 12+1 months from 15 months 287.40 270.00 Standard rate
3 Month Pack - REMOVED
3 Month Concession membership REMOVED
One month activity pass 46.00 46.00 Standard rate

Monthly fees (College)
All facilities 23.95 23.95 Standard rate

Casual fees (College)
Gym 7.00 7.00 Standard rate
Classes 5.00 5.00 Exempt - no VAT
Health/swim 5.00 5.00 Standard rate
Float Fit - Member 0.00 0.00 Exempt - no VAT

Casual fees (non-members)
Gym 10.00 10.00 Standard rate
Concession Gym 5.50 5.50 Standard rate
Classes 7.00 7.00 Exempt - no VAT
Float Fit - Concession Non-Member 5.50 5.50 Exempt - no VAT
Extend class 3.00 3.00 Exempt - no VAT
Fit Fifties class 4.00 4.00 Exempt - no VAT
Health/swim 7.50 7.50 Standard rate
Full fitness assessment 30.70 30.70 Exempt - no VAT
GP referral scheme 0.00 0.00 Exempt - no VAT

Group Rig and TRX training 10.00 10.00 Exempt - no VAT
Personal Training (member) 15.00 15.00 Exempt - no VAT
Personal Training (NON member) 20.00 20.00 Exempt - no VAT

Weight and body composition 10.00 10.00 Exempt - no VAT

Page 79



APPENDIX 4

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
Craft Market - 15 stalls maximum
Per stall - payment on day 14.00 0.00 14.00 Exempt - no VAT
Per stall - paid up front (quarter or month) 12.00 0.00 12.00 Exempt - no VAT

Christmas Market (one day)
One market stall or pop up gazebo 30.00 0.00 30.00 Exempt - no VAT
Pitches (per 1ft frontage) 2.70 0.00 2.70 Exempt - no VAT
Food plot per 1 ft. frontage 5.20 0.00 5.20 Exempt - no VAT

Through the ages, 2 days
Pop up gazebo 80.00 0.00 80.00 Exempt - no VAT
Pitches (per 1 ft. frontage) 7.40 0.00 7.40 Exempt - no VAT

1940s, 1 day
Pop up gazebo 20.00 0.00 20.00 Exempt - no VAT
Catering 50.00 0.00 50.00 Exempt - no VAT
Amusements 50.00 0.00 50.00 Exempt - no VAT
Bar 0.00 Standard rate

Outdoor Cinema
One plot - food/bar/sweets 35.00 Standard rate

Party in the park
Food trader

£40 plus 5%
of takings Standard rate

Bar Standard rate
Misc. seller - hair braids/balloons

£20 plus 5%
of takings Exempt - no VAT

A Stall maybe be free of charge if a group are performing at the event
Stalls may not exceed 5 ft. in depth

CRAFT MARKET CHARGES

5% of takings

£15 plus 5% of takings

10% of takings

Page 80



APPENDIX 4

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
Market Place & Bargate - (stall hire-10ft width)
Regular trader **
per market 0.00 0.00 Removed
per market (monthly in advance) 21.00 21.00 Exempt - no VAT
per market (quarterly in advance) 0.00 0.00 Removed
per market (annually in advance) 0.00 0.00 Removed
Casual Trader
per market 24.00 24.00 Exempt - no VAT
Block of 6 markets - have to agree dates to stand at
time of booking- refunds not avaliable 130.00 130.00 New fee

Market Place - 100 markets/50 weeks

Pitches (per 1ft. Frontage)
Regular trader **
per market 0.00 0.00 Removed
per market (monthly in advance) 1.40 1.40 Exempt - no VAT
per market (quarterly in advance) 0.00 0.00 Removed
Electricity (other than for lights in winter) 2.00 2.00 Standard rate
Trade Waste Bin 1000l 0.00 0.00 Removed
Trade Waste Bin 240l 0.00 0.00 Removed
Trade Waste Bags 0.00 0.00 Removed
Casual Trader
per market 1.90 1.90 Exempt - no VAT
Block of 6 markets - have to agree dates to stand at
time of booking- refunds not avaliable 1.70 1.70 New fee

Market Trader Parking Permits
3 hour ticket purchased for all day-limited car parks 2.00 2.00 Standard or non business

(depends on car park)

** Incentive for regular traders that stand every week April to Feb (excluding holidays) can stand for free in March.

** Incentive for NEW traders only stand for 4 markets and get 4 free

MARKET CHARGES

Page 81



EVENT TICKET CHARGES

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
Outdoor Cinema - One screening
Early bird adult ticket 5.75 0.00 5.75 standard rate
Early bird child ticket 3.75 0.00 3.75 standard rate
Early bird family ticket * 16.00 0.00 16.00 standard rate
Standard adult ticket 7.50 0.00 7.50 standard rate
Standard child ticket 5.50 0.00 5.50 standard rate
Standard family ticket * 22.50 0.00 22.50 standard rate
Cash price on the gate adult ticket 10.00 0.00 10.00 standard rate
Cash price on the gate child ticket 8.00 0.00 8.00 standard rate
Cash price on the gate family  ticket * 30.00 0.00 30.00 standard rate

Outdoor Cinema - Two screenings
Early bird adult ticket 11.00 0.00 11.00 standard rate
Early bird child ticket 7.00 0.00 7.00 standard rate
Early bird family ticket * 26.00 0.00 26.00 standard rate
Standard adult ticket 14.00 0.00 14.00 standard rate
Standard child ticket 10.00 0.00 10.00 standard rate
Standard family ticket * 36.00 0.00 36.00 standard rate
Cash price on the gate adult ticket 18.00 0.00 18.00 standard rate
Cash price on the gate child ticket 14.00 0.00 14.00 standard rate
Cash price on the gate family ticket* 50.00 0.00 50.00 standard rate

Party in the Park/Music and Beer Festival
Early bird adult, 17yrs and over ** 5.00 0.00 5.00 standard rate
Standard adult, 17 yrs. and over 7.00 0.00 7.00 standard rate
Cash price on the gate adult 10.00 0.00 10.00 standard rate

* family ticket, two adults and two children, adults over 16 yrs., children under 16yrs, babies under 18 months free

Under 16yrs free must be accompanied by an adult

*family ticket, two adults and two children, Adults over 16yrs, children under 16yrs, babies under 18 months free

** Limited number available, first month of ticket sales and restricted to 500. Standard go on sale after
the early bird tickets are sold out.

Early bird on sale for a limited time (minimum 2 weeks and maximum 4 weeks after event announced).
Standard go on sale after the early bird tickets are sold out.

Page 82



APPENDIX 4

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
Community/Individual Event fee not for profit  (up to 500 people) 70.00 0.00 70.00 standard rateCommunity/Individual Event fee not for profit (between 500 -999
people) 95.00 0.00 95.00 standard rate
Registered Charity (up to 500 people) 70.00 0.00 70.00 standard rate
Registered Charity (between 500 - 999 people) 95.00 0.00 95.00 standard rate
All Commercial events standard rate
Use of Premises Licence (500 -999 people) 75.00 0.00 75.00 Non Standard
Use of Premises Licence (up to 500 people) 50.00 0.00 50.00 Non Standard
Assistance with events in Boston Market place (per event) 50.00 0.00 50.00 Non Standard

List of Event Spaces – this relates to Borough Council land only
 (other spaces, such as Market Place, are owned and controlled by Lincolnshire County Council)

Broadfield Lane Recreation Ground
Burgess Pit Recreation Ground
Shelton’s Field Recreation Ground
Garfit's Lane
Central Park
St. Johns Recreation Ground
Witham Way Country Park
Woodville Road Recreation Ground

EVENT CHARGES

Price negotiated

Page 83



APPENDIX 4

0.5hr 1hr 2hr 3hr 4hr
All Day
8am-
6pm

Sun
8am-
6pm

Eve
6pm-
8am

48 hrs
(2
days)

72 hrs
(3
days)

120hrs
(5
days)

168 hrs
(7
days)

Bargate Green PE21 6RU 0.50 1.50 2.50 1.20 1.00
Custom House Quay PE21 6NH 1.50 2.50 1.20 1.00

On Market Place PE21 6EH 0.50 1.50 1.20 1.00
On Pump Square PE21 6QW 1.50 2.50 1.20 1.00
On Wide Bargate PE21 6RX 1.50 2.50 1.20 1.00

Cattle Market PE21 6RX 1.50 2.00 2.50 3.00 4.00 1.20 1.00
Botolph Street PE21 6TU 1.50 2.00 2.50 3.00 4.00 1.20 1.00
Doughty Quay PE21 8SP 1.50 2.00 2.50 3.00 4.00 1.20 1.00
West End PE21 8SS 1.50 2.00 2.50 3.00 4.00 1.20 1.00
St George's Road PE21 8YB 1.50 2.00 2.50 3.00 4.00 1.20 1.00 5.00 7.00 15.00

Municipal Buildings PE21 8SS 1.00 1.20 1.50 2.50 1.20 1.00
On South Square PE21 6HX 1.00 1.20 1.50 2.50 1.20 1.00

Irby Street PE21 8SA
Artillery Row PE21 6TY 1.00 1.20 1.50 2.50 1.20 1.00
Maud Street PE21 6TP 2.00 1.20 1.00
Blue Street PE21 8UW
Buoy Yard PE21 6JX 2.00 1.20 1.00
Victoria Place PE21 8UL 1.00 1.20 1.50 2.50 1.20 1.00
Staniland PE21 8SS 1.00 1.20 1.50 2.50 1.20 1.00
George Street PE21 8XF 1.00 1.20 1.50 2.50 1.20 1.00
Spayne Road PE21 6JT 1.00 1.20 1.50 2.50 1.20 1.00

On Station Approach PE21 8RN 1.00 1.20 1.50 2.50 1.20 1.00 5.00 7.00 15.00
Tunnard Street PE21 6PL 2.00 1.20 1.00 10.00 12.00

Standard Off Street Parking
Non Business On Street Parking

Seasonal Tickets Valid at:
Botolph Street PE21 6TU
Doughty Quay PE21 8SP
St George's Road PE21 8YB
Artillery Row PE21 6TY
Maud Street PE21 6TP
Buoy Yard PE21 6JX
Victoria Place PE21 8UL
Staniland PE21 8SS
George Street PE21 8XF
Spayne Road PE21 6JT
Tunnard Street PE21 6PL

Permit only £150 per year

On/Off
Street

Car Parks

Parking Fees 2022/23
Hours £

For more info refer to Boston Car Park Guide

SHORT-STAY CAR PARKS (Mon-Sat 8am-6pm)

MIXED-STAY CAR PARKS (Mon-Sat 8am-6pm)

LONG-STAY CAR PARKS (Mon-Sat 8am-6pm)

Permit only £150 per year

Page 84



APPENDIX 4PARKING SEASON TICKETS AND FINES Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23

£ £ £
Trade bay (annual) 24 hours per day 370.00 0.00 370.00
Traders bay (quarterly) 24 hours per day 100.00 0.00 100.00
Traders bay (monthly) 24 hours per day 35.00 0.00 35.00

Parent Parking Permits
(selected car parks only)

(per day according to
number of school days
each term) 0.50 0.00 0.50

Premier Permit (annual) - long
stay 24 hours per day 450.00 0.00 450.00
Premier Permit (quarterly) - long
stay 24 hours per day 120.00 0.00 120.00
Premier Permit (monthly) - long
stay 24 hours per day 45.00 0.00 45.00
24 hour EV charging permit
(annual) 24 hours per day 400.00 0.00 400.00
Season Tickets - daily (annual) -
long stay 8 am - 6 pm 350.00 0.00 350.00
Season Tickets - daily
(quarterly) - long stay 8 am - 6 pm 95.00 0.00 95.00
Season Tickets - daily (monthly)
- long stay 8 am - 6 pm 35.00 0.00 35.00
Season Ticket - overnight 6 pm - 8.00 am 210.00 0.00 210.00
Season Ticket - overnight
(quarterly) 6 pm - 8.00 am 60.00 0.00 60.00
Season Ticket - overnight
(monthly) 6 pm - 8.00 am 25.00 0.00 25.00
Overnight EV permit (monthly) 6 pm - 8.00 am 20.00 0.00 20.00
Resident's season tickets
(annual) 24 hours per day 225.00 0.00 225.00
Resident's season tickets
(quarterly) 24 hours per day 60.00 0.00 60.00
Resident's season tickets
(monthly) 24 hours per day 22.50 0.00 22.50
Resident's season ticket-daily
(annual) 8am - 6pm 175.00 0.00 175.00
Resident's season ticket-daily
(quarterly) 8am - 6pm 47.50 0.00 47.50
Resident's season ticket - daily
(monthly) 8am - 6pm 17.50 0.00 17.50
Resident's season ticket-
overnight (annual) 6pm - 8am 105.00 0.00 105.00
Resident's season ticket-
overnight (quarterly) 6pm - 8am 30.00 0.00 30.00
Resident's season ticket -
overnight (monthly) 6pm - 8am 22.50 0.00 22.50

Page 85



APPENDIX 4PARKING SEASON TICKETS AND FINES Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23

£ £ £
Resident's overnight EV permit
(monthly) 6pm - 8am 17.50 0.00 17.50

Blue Street season ticket 24 hours per day 150.00 0.00 150.00
Staff Charges 7 Days n/a 0.00 n/a
Bus Departures 0.32 0.00 0.32
Lower Band Penalty Charge
Notice(PCN) (paid within 14 25.00 0.00 25.00
Lower Band Penalty Charge
Notice(PCN) (paid within 14-28
days) 50.00 0.00 50.00
Lower Band Penalty Charge
Notice(PCN) (paid after 28 75.00 0.00 75.00
Higher Band Penalty Charge
Notice(PCN) (paid within 14 35.00 0.00 35.00
Higher Band Penalty Charge
Notice(PCN) (paid within 14-28
days) 70.00 0.00 70.00
Higher Band Penalty Charge
Notice(PCN) (paid after 28 105.00 0.00 105.00
Electricity per KWH 0.32 0.00 0.32 New

Seasonal Tickets Valid at:
Botolph Street
Doughty Quay
St George's Road
Artillery Row
Maud Street
Buoy Yard
Victoria Place
Staniland
George Street
Spayne Road
Tunnard Street

The above parking charges are inclusive of VAT
Penalty Charge Notices are Non-Vatable
The bus departure rates are exclusive of VAT (standard rated)

Page 86



APPENDIX 4
BUILDING CONTROL FEES AND CHARGES

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
Copy of Building Regulation Approval (where number is quoted) 40.00 40.00 Standard rate
Letter of Comfort 52.50 52.50 Standard rate
Building Regulations (Confirmation of erection of outbuildings in
accordance with the approved plans) 204.75 204.75 Standard rate

Page 87



APPENDIX 4

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £

30.70 30.70 Non business - no VAT charge
Production of Plans for consultation and inspection
purposes only

A0 size (841mm x 1189mm) 4.10 4.10 Standard rate
A1 size (841mm x 594mm) 2.10 2.10 Standard rate
A2 size (420mm x 594mm) 1.00 1.00 Standard rate
A3 size (297mm x 420mm) Black & White 0.30 0.30 Standard rate
A3 size (297mm x 420mm) Colour 0.60 0.60 Standard rate
A4 size (297mm x 210mm) Black & White 0.10 0.10 Standard rate
A4 size (297mm x 210mm) Colour 0.20 0.20 Standard rate
Administartion charge * 7.50 7.50 Standard rate

Adopted South East Lincolnshire Local Plan 78.00 78.00 Standard rate
Postage & Packaging 5.50 5.50 Standard rate
Copy of Tree Preservation Orders 0.00 0.00 Non business - no VAT charge
Copies of Local Development Schemes 17.10 17.10 Zero rated - 0%
If invoice is required for any of above services 5.40 5.40 VAT liability depends on what invoice is for

*Where requests for documents/information exceed 30minutes of Technical Support time, an admin handling charge is to apply at the discretion of the Planning Office Manager

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

Planning Application information searches
- flat cost per site to include copy of decision notices

Page 88



Planning Application Fees
Charges
2022/23

£
Outline Planning Permission
Site Area Not more than 2.5

hectares
£462 per 0.1 hectare

Non business - no VAT charge
More than 2.5
hectares

£11,432 + £138 per 0.1
hectares up to a maximum of
£150,000 Non business - no VAT charge

Alterations / extensions to a single
dwellinghouse, including works within

Single dwellinghouse £206.00
Non business - no VAT charge

Alterations or extensions to existing
dwellinghouses, including works within
boundaries

Single dwellinghouse
(or single flat)

£206.00

Non business - no VAT charge
2 or more
dwellinghouses (or
two or more flats)

£407.00

Non business - no VAT charge
New dwellinghouses Not more then 50 new

dwellinghouses
£462 per dwellinghouse

Non business - no VAT charge
More than 50 new
dwellinghouses

£22,859 + £138 per
additional dwellinghouse up
to a maximum £300,000 Non business - no VAT charge

Gross floor space to be created by
development

No increase in gross
floor space or no
more than 40 sq m

£234.00

Non business - no VAT charge
More than 40 sq m
but no more than 75

£462.00
Non business - no VAT charge

More than 75 sq m
byt no more than
3,750 sq m

£462 for each 75sq m or part
thereof

Non business - no VAT charge
More than 3,750 sq m £22,859 + £138 for each

additional 75 sq m in excess
of 3,750 sq m to a maximum
of £300,000 Non business - no VAT charge

Gross floor space to be created by
development

Not more than 465 sq
m

£96.00
Non business - no VAT charge

More than 465 sq m
but not more than 540
sq m

£462.00

Non business - no VAT charge
More than 540 sq m
but not more than
4,215 sq m

£462 for first 540 sq m +
£462 for each 75 sq m (or
part thereof) in excess of 540
sq m Non business - no VAT charge

More than 4,215 sq m £22,859 + £138 for each 75
sq m (or part thereof) in
excess of 4,215 sq m up to a
maximum of £300,000 Non business - no VAT charge

Gross floor space to be created by
development

Not more than 465 sq
m

£96.00
Non business - no VAT charge

More than 465 sq m £2,580.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Site area Not more than 5
hectares

£462 for each 0.1 hectare (or
part thereof) Non business - no VAT charge

More than 5 hectares £22,859 + additional £138
for each 0.1 hectare (or part
thereof) in excess of 5
hectares to a maximum of
£300,000 Non business - no VAT charge

Householder Applications

Full Applications
(and First Submissions of Reserved Matters; or Technical Details Concent)

Erection of buildings (not dwellinghouses, agricultural, glasshouses, plant nor machinery)

The erection of buildings (on land used for agriculture for agricultural purpose)

Erection of Glasshouses and Polytunnels (on land used for the purposes of agriculture)

Erection / alterations / replacement of plant and machinery

Page 89



Car parks, service roads or other accesses For existing uses £234.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Site area Not more than 15
hectares

£234 for each 0.1 hectare (or
part thereof) Non business - no VAT charge

More then 15
hectares

£34,934 + £138 for each 0.1
hectare (or part thereof) in
excess of 15 hectares up to
a maximum of £78,000

Non business - no VAT charge

Site area Not more than 7.5
hectares

£508 for each 0.1 hectare (or
part thereof) Non business - no VAT charge

More then 7.5
hectares

£38,070 + additional £151
for each 0.1 hectare (or part
thereof) in excess of 7.5
hectares up to a maximum of
£300,000 Non business - no VAT charge

Site area Not more than 15
hectares

£257 for each 0.1 hectare (or
part thereof) Non business - no VAT charge

More then 15
hectares

£38,520 + additional £151
for each 0.1 in excess of 15
hectare up to a maximum of
£78,000 Non business - no VAT charge

Site area Not more than 15
hectares

£234 for each 0.1 hectare (or
part thereof) Non business - no VAT charge

More then 15
hectares

£34,934 + additional £138
for each 0.1 in excess of 15
hectare up to a maximum of
£78,000 Non business - no VAT charge

Site area Any site area £234 for each 0.1 hectare (or
part thereof) up to a
maximum of £2,028 Non business - no VAT charge

Same as Full

£234.00 Non business - no VAT charge
Half the normal planning fee Non business - no VAT charge

£96.00 Non business - no VAT charge
£96.00 Non business - no VAT charge
£96.00 Non business - no VAT charge

£462.00 Non business - no VAT charge
£96.00 Non business - no VAT charge
£206.00 Non business - no VAT charge
£96.00
£96.00

Construction of new dwellinghouses Not more than 50
dwellinghouses £334 for each dwellinghouse
More than 50
Dwellinghouses

£16,525 +£100 for each
dwellinghouse in excess of
50 - Maximum fee of
£300,000

Full fee due or if full fee
already paid then £462 due

Non business - no VAT charge

£234
Non business - no VAT charge

£34 per request for
Householder otherwise £116
per request Non business - no VAT charge

Demolition of buildings
Communications (previously referred to as 'Telecommunications Code
Systems Operators')

Applications other than Building Works

Waste (Use of land for disposal of refuse or waste materials or deposit of material remaining after
extraction or storage of minerals)

Other operations (winning & working of minerals ) excluding oil and natural gas

Other operations (not coming within any of the above categories)

Larger Home Extensions (from 19 August 2019)

Operations (other than exploratory drilling) for the winning and working of oil or natural gas

Existing use or operation - lawful not to comply with any condition or
limitation

Prior Approval

Agriculture and Forestry buildings & operations

Collection facility within the curtilage of a shop
Temporary Buildings or use associated with commercial Film-Making

Operations connected with exploratory drilling for oil or natural gas

Proposed use or operation

Lawful Development Certificates
Existing use or operation

Request for confirmation that one or more planning conditions have
been complied with

Change of use *refer to guidance
Change of use including building operations * refer to guidance

Reserved Matters
Application for approval of reserved matters following outline approval

Application for removal or variation of a condition following grant of
planning permission

Approval / Variation / discharge of condition

Page 90



Number of dwellinghouses Not more than 50
dwellinghouses

£462 for each
Non business - no VAT charge

More than 50
dwellinghouses

£22,859 + £138 for each in
excess of 50 up to a
maximum of £300,000 Non business - no VAT charge
£462 Non business - no VAT charge

£132 Non business - no VAT charge
£132

Non business - no VAT charge
£462 Non business - no VAT charge

£34.00 Non business - no VAT charge
£234.00 Non business - no VAT charge

£402 for each 0.1 hectare (or
part thereof) Non business - no VAT charge

£2500 (Developer may be
required to pay additional
costs such as advertising) Non business - no VAT charge

Other Charges of Use of a building or land

Application under Section 257 for diversion of Public Right of
Way

Application for a Non-material Amendment Following a Grant of Planning Permission
Applications in respect of householder developments
Applications in respect of other developments

Application for Permission in Principle
Site area

Relating to the business on the premises
Advance signs which are not situated on or visible from the site,
directing the public to a business
Other advertisements

Advertising

Change of Use of a building to use as one or more separate dwellinghouses, or other cases

Page 91



APPENDIX 4

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £

TYPE OF DEVELOPMENT
Householder development including alterations and extensions. 85.00 85.00 Standard rate
Change of use including siting of caravans. 200.00 200.00 Standard rate

Development of 1-10 dwellings, or residential development on sites of less than 0.50 ha including
changes of use to residential.

£220 for 1st dwelling; and
£130 for each additional

dwelling.

Based on no. of dwellings; £220
for 1st dwelling; plus £130 for

each additional dwelling.

Based on site area i.e. principle
only, £220 for 0.1ha; plus £130

for each additional 0.1ha (or part
thereof). Standard rate

Development of 11-50 dwellings, or residential development on sites of over 0.50 ha but less than 1.0
ha including changes of use to residential.

£1,000 for the 10th dwelling;
and £65 for each additional

dwelling.

Based on no. of dwellings;
£1,455 for the 11th dwelling plus
£65 for each additional dwelling

to a maximum of £3,000.

Based on site area i.e. principle
only; £1,455 for 0.5ha; plus £130
for each additional 0.1ha (or part

thereof). Standard rate

Development of 51+ dwellings, or residential development on sites of more than 1.0 including changes
of use to residential.

Minimum fee £3,000 with
additional fee subject to

negotiation dependent upon
complexity of proposal (PPA
encouraged) and resources

required.

£3500 Although Planning
Performance Agreement
encouraged.

Standard rate
Non residential development up to 499 square metres floor area or 0.50 hectare site area. 200.00 200.00 Standard rate

Non residential development of over 500 and 999 square metres floor area or between 0.51 and 1.0
hectares site area.

£250 plus £125 for each
additional 100m²; or £1,000

for each 0.1 ha

£250 for 500sqm or 0.5ha plus
£125 for each additional 100m²; or

£125  for each 0.1ha (or part
thereof) Standard rate

Non residential development of over 1000 and 4999 square metres floor area or between 1.1 and 2.0
hectares site area.

£825 for 1000m² plus £75 for
each additional 100m² or 0.1

ha.

£875 for 1000m² plus £125 for
each additional 1000m² or 0.1ha

Standard rate

Non residential development of over 5000 square metres floor area or over 2.1 hectares site area.

£3,000 with additional fee
subject to negotiation

dependent upon complexity of
proposal (PPA encouraged).

£2500

Although Planning Performance
Agreement encouraged. Standard rate

Alterations to non-residential development where no new floor area space is created. 100.00 100.00 Standard rate
Listed Building Advice 120.00 120.00 Standard rate

£80.00;
Alterations to a listed building

£120.00; Additional site visit
£125.00

80.00

Standard rate

Hazardous Substances Consent 120.00 120.00 Standard rate

Any other proposals not captured by the above 200.00 200.00 Standard rate

Exemptions and Reductions
Proposals by parish and town councils and non profit making organisations No Charge No Charge
Proposals relating to the needs of persons with disabilities. No Charge No Charge
Proposals by registered social landlords No Charge No Charge

S7:S13S7:S14S10S7:S12S7:S16R7:S16Q7:S16

Where a proposal covers more than one category of development the highest of the relevant fees will be charged.
Follow up enquiry including revised details to be charged at 50% of fee, if within 6months of the original response

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES-PRE APPLICATION ADVICE

Fees for Planning Performance Agreements are negotiated on a case-by-case basis. The charges incurred are to be negotiated between the Council and the development proposer,
following an initial understanding of both the scheme and the resource implications.
The Council will seek to recover costs associated with the resourcing of the agreement (such as Officer time) and including fees incurred from specialists within and external to the Council
as may be required. In addition, the fees will cover administration of the agreement, but may exclude the costs associated with drawing up or signing the agreement depending on whether
this is undertaken by the Council or the proposer.

Page 92



S106 Monitoring Fees 2022/23

Development Size Fee
Minor Developments – less than 10 residential units and where the
gross floor space to be built is up to 1,000 square metres, or where
the site area is less than 1 hectare. Where the number of dwellings to
be constructed or floor area proposed is not given in the application, a
site area of less than 0.5 hectares is classed as a minor development.

£1,500

Small scale Major Developments – 10-199 residential units
(inclusive) and where the gross floor space to be built is 1,000 – 9,999
square metres, or where the site area is 1 hectare and less than 2
hectares. Where the number of dwellings to be constructed or floor
area proposed is not given in the application, a site area of between
0.5 hectares and less than 4 hectares is classed as a small scale
major development.

£2,500

Large scale Major Developments – 200 or more residential units
and where the gross floor space to be built is 10,000 square metres
or more, or where the site area is 2 hectares or more. Where the
number of dwellings to be constructed or floor area proposed is not
given in the application, a site area of 4 hectares or more is classed
as a large scale major development.

£3,500

Deeds of Variations – For all Deeds of Variation agreements.
£350

Confirmation of compliance with Section 106 planning obligations
(desktop assessment)* £75 inc VAT

*Site Visit associated with Confirmation of Compliance with Section
106 planning obligations

£100 inc
VAT

Page 93



APPENDIX 4
SPORTS CHARGES

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
Football Pitch per match under-10's 17.00 0.00 17.00 Standard rate
Football Pitch per match under-16's 22.00 0.00 22.00 Standard rate
Football Pitch per match Adults 35.00 0.00 35.00 Standard rate
Football Pitch unauthorised use 80.00 0.00 80.00 Standard rate

Please avoid single lets for 24 hours or more and series of lets.
If pitch/court is a single let for 24hours or more, income is exempt and therefore no VAT is charged.

If pitch/court is a series of lets and fulfills ALL of the following criteria, income is exempt (no VAT charged):
1. 10 or more lets/sessions booked
2. Each let is for the same activity
3. Each let is in the same place
4. The interval between each let is at least 1 day, but no more than 14 days
5. The series of lets is paid for as a whole and there is no provision for a refund
6. The facilities are let out to a school, club, association or organisation such as local league
7. The person(s) to whom facilities are let has exclusive use of them during the sessions

Page 94



APPENDIX 4

Homeless Hostel Rent and Charges

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 VAT LIABILITY

£ £ £
 - Rent element only per week 163.94 3.36 167.30 Exempt
 - Rent element only per night 23.42 0.48 23.90 Exempt
 - Service Charge (Heating, lighting, water) - per wk. 21.98 0.42 22.40 Exempt
 - Service Charge (Heating, lighting, water) - per night 3.14 0.06 3.20 Exempt

TOTAL CHARGE PER WEEK 185.92 189.70
TOTAL CHARGE PER NIGHT 26.56 27.10

Page 95



APPENDIX 4

HMO LICENCE FEES

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 VAT LIABILITY

£ £ £
Variation of existing licence 0.00 0.00 0.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Process of initial application cost - Part 1 479.00 0.00 479.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Post approval application cost - Part 2 469.00 0.00 469.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Page 96



APPENDIX 4

Housing Act Notice

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 VAT LIABILITY

£ £ £
Hazard Awareness Notice (Owner Occupier) No Charge 0.00 No Charge Exempt
Hazard Awareness Notice (private rented sector) 100.00 0.00 100.00 Exempt
Improvement Notice; Prohibition Order; Demolition
Order, Notice of Emergency Remedial Action,
Emergency Prohibition Order  - (for one hazard) 200.00 20.00 220.00 Exempt
Improvement Notice; Prohibition Order; Demolition
Order, Notice of Emergency Remedial Action,
Emergency Prohibition Order- (for each additional
hazard included within the Notice / Order) 60.00 0.00 60.00 Exempt

Page 97



Other Housing Fees

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 VAT LIABILITY

£ £ £
Property inspection and report (per
hour) 95.00 0.00 95.00 Exempt

Page 98



APPENDIX 4PROPERTY SERVICES

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
Naming of a new street £92.80 per street. £92.80 per street. Non business - no VAT charge
Renaming of an existing street at the request of all of its residents. £92.80 for the street plus

£23.20 per dwelling
£92.80 for the street plus

£23.20 per dwelling
Non business - no VAT charge

Naming or numbering of a new dwelling on an existing street. £34.80 per dwelling £34.80 per dwelling Non business - no VAT charge
Naming or numbering of a new dwelling on a new development
consisting of 1 – 5 plots.

£34.80 per dwelling £34.80 per dwelling
Non business - no VAT charge

Naming or numbering of a new dwelling on a new development
consisting of 6 – 10 plots.

£ 29.00 per dwelling £ 29.00 per dwelling
Non business - no VAT charge

Naming or numbering of a new dwelling on a new development
consisting of 11 - 29 plots.

£ 23.20 per dwelling £ 23.20 per dwelling
Non business - no VAT charge

Naming or numbering of a new dwelling on a new development
consisting of 30 - 74 plots.

£ 17.40 per dwelling £ 17.40 per dwelling
Non business - no VAT charge

Naming or numbering of a new dwelling on a new development
consisting of 75 + plots

£13.35 per dwelling £13.35 per dwelling
Non business - no VAT charge

Addition or alteration of a name to an existing dwelling. £ 34.80 per dwelling £ 34.80 per dwelling Non business - no VAT charge
Changes to a development after initial application for naming and
numbering has been processed. £ 23.20 per dwelling £ 23.20 per dwelling Non business - no VAT charge

Page 99



APPENDIX 4

3% Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
Hire of Council Chamber 22.70 0.70 23.40 Standard rate
Hire of Meeting Room 22.70 0.70 23.40 Standard rate
Hire of Committee Room 22.70 0.70 23.40 Standard rate
Hire of Haven Room 11.30 0.30 11.60 Standard rate
Hire of Maud Foster 11.30 0.30 11.60 Standard rate
Refreshments at meetings 16.10 0.50 16.60 Standard rate
Sale of Electoral Registers - FIXED BY STATUTE

* These charges are per hour of rental

CIVIC AND ELECTORAL

Page 100



APPENDIX 5

Reserve Purpose
Balance
31.03.21 Transfers    In Transfers Out

Balance
31.03.22 Transfers    In Transfers Out

Balance
31.03.23 Transfers    In Transfers Out

Balance
31.03.24 Transfers    In Transfers Out

Balance
31.03.25 Transfers    In Transfers Out

Balance
31.03.26 Transfers    In Transfers Out

Balance
31.03.27

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £ £ £'000 £ £ £'000 £ £ £'000

Capital Funding (5,339) (950) 664 (5,625) (333) 1,833 (4,125) (344) 1,171 (3,298) (344) 115 (3,527) (344) 115 (3,756) (344) 115 (3,985)

Transformation Reserve (1,745) (31) 730 (1,046) (31) 198 (880) 0 0 (880) - - (880) 0 - (880) 0 0 (880)

Repairs and Renewals (725) -35 8 (752) (35) 0 (787) (35) 0 (823) 35- 0 (858) (35) 0 (893) (35) 0 (928)

ICT Reserve (276) 0 50 (226) 0 70 (156) 0 20 (136) 0 94 (42) 0 - (42) 0 0 (42)

Housing Reserve (1,247) (287) 61 (1,473) (75) 55 (1,493) (72) 105 (1,460) (68) 3 (1,526) (67) 3 (1,590) (65) 3 (1,653)

Controlling Migration (14) 0 14 (0) 0 0 (0) 0 0 (0) - - (0) - - (0) 0 0 (0)

Climate Change Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 0 - 0 0 0 0

Insurance Reserve (274) 0 20 (254) 0 0 (254) 0 0 (254) - - (254) 0 0 (254) 0 0 (254)

Community Cohesion Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Property Fund Returns Risk Mitigation Reserve (1,116) 0 0 (1,116) 0 0 (1,116) 0 0 (1,116) - - (1,116) 0 0 (1,116) 0 0 (1,116)

Funding Volatility Reserve (6,521) -1456.807 1,571 (6,407) 0 3,501 (2,906) 0 0 (2,906) - - (2,906) 0 0 (2,906) 0 0 (2,906)

Covid 19 (1,422) -73 47 (1,448) 0 0 (1,448) 0 0 (1,448) 0 - (1,448) 0 - (1,448) 0 0 (1,448)

(18,679) (2,834) 3,165 (18,348) (475) 5,657 (13,166) (451) 1,296 (12,321) (447) 212 (12,556) (446) 118 (12,885) (444) 118 (13,212)

EARMARKED RESERVES MOVEMENTS SUMMARY

P
age 101



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  
  APPENDIX 6
  

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Boston Borough Council 
 

Treasury Management Strategy 

 Statement 

 

Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement and 

Annual Investment Strategy 2022/23 

 
 

  

Page 103



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

1.  Introduction 

1.1 Background 
 
The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means 

that cash raised during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the 
treasury management operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately 

planned, with cash being available when it is needed.  Surplus monies are 
invested in low risk counterparties or instruments commensurate with the 
Council’s low risk appetite, providing adequate liquidity initially before 

considering investment return. 
 

The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding 
of the Council’s capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the 
borrowing need of the Council, essentially the longer-term cash flow planning, 

to ensure that the Council can meet its capital spending obligations. This 
management of longer-term cash may involve arranging long or short-term 

loans, or using longer-term cash flow surpluses. On occasion, when it is 
prudent and economic, any debt previously drawn may be restructured to 
meet Council risk or cost objectives. 

 
The contribution the treasury management function makes to the authority is 

critical, as the balance of debt and investment operations ensure liquidity or 
the ability to meet spending commitments as they fall due, either on day-to-
day revenue or for larger capital projects.  The treasury operations will see a 

balance of the interest costs of debt and the investment income arising from 
cash deposits affecting the available budget.  Since cash balances generally 

result from reserves and balances, it is paramount to ensure adequate 
security of the sums invested, as a loss of principal will in effect result in a 
loss to the General Fund Balance. 

 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) defines 

treasury management as: 
 

“The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and 
cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market transactions; 
the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the 

pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.” 
 

The Council’s treasury function is undertaken by Public Sector Partnership 
Services Ltd (PSPSL) on behalf of the Council. PSPSL is responsible for 
the: 

 
• Production of the annual treasury management strategy  

• Production of regular treasury management policy reports 
• Production of treasury management practices 
• Production of budget and budget variations relating to the treasury 

management function 
• Production of management information reports 

• Provision of adequate treasury management resources and skills, 
and effective division of responsibilities within the treasury 
management function 

Page 104



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

• Arrangement of the appointment of external service providers. 
 

1.2  Reporting Requirements 
 

1.2.1 Capital Strategy 
 
The CIPFA revised 2017 Prudential and Treasury Management Codes 

require all local authorities to prepare a capital strategy report, which will 
provide the following:  

 
• a high-level long term overview of how capital expenditure, capital 

financing and treasury management activity contribute to the 

provision of services 
• an overview of how the associated risk is managed 

• the implications for future financial sustainability 
 
The aim of this capital strategy is to ensure that all elected members on 

the full council fully understand the overall long-term policy objectives and 
resulting capital strategy requirements, governance procedures and risk 

appetite. 
 

This capital strategy is reported separately from the Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement; non-treasury investments will be 
reported through the former. This ensures the separation of the core 

treasury function under security, liquidity and yield principles, and the 
policy and commercialism investments usually driven by expenditure on 

an asset.  The capital strategy will show: 
 

• The corporate governance arrangements for these types of 

activities; 
• Any service objectives relating to the investments; 

• The expected income, costs and resulting contribution;  
• The debt related to the activity and the associated interest costs;  
• The payback period (Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy);  

• For non-loan type investments, the cost against the current market 
value;  

• The risks associated with each activity. 
 
Where a physical asset is being bought, details of market research, 

advisers used, (and their monitoring), ongoing costs and investment 
requirements and any credit information will be disclosed, including the 

ability to sell the asset and realise the investment cash. 
 
 

1.2.2 Treasury Management reporting 
 

The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main 
reports each year, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and 
actuals. 

 

Page 105



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

• Prudential and treasury indicators and treasury strategy (this 
report) - The first, and most important report is forward looking and 

covers: 

• the capital plans (including prudential indicators); 

• a minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy (how residual capital 

expenditure is charged to revenue over time); 

• the treasury management strategy (how the investments and 
borrowings are to be organised) including treasury indicators; 
and  

• an investment strategy (the parameters on how investments are 
to be managed). 

 

• A mid year treasury management report – This is primarily a 
progress report and will update members on the capital position, 
amending prudential indicators as necessary, and whether any 

policies require revision. In addition, this Council will receive 
quarterly update reports. 

 
• An annual treasury report – This is a backward looking review 

document and provides details of a selection of actual prudential 

and treasury indicators and actual treasury operations compared to 
the estimates within the strategy. 

 
Please note the CIPFA Prudential and Treasury Management Codes were 
updated in December 2021. The guidance notes are yet to be released and 

details of amendments will be communicated to council in due course. 
Compliance with the updated code will be required by 1st April 2023. 

 
Scrutiny 

 
The above reports are required to be adequately scrutinised before being 
recommended to the Council.  This role is undertaken by the Audit and 

Governance Committee.  
 

1.3 Treasury Management Strategy for 2022/23 
 
The strategy for 2022/23 covers two main areas: 

 
Capital Issues 

• the capital expenditure plans and the associated prudential indicators; 

• the minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy. 

 

Treasury management issues 

• the current treasury position; 

• treasury indicators which limit the treasury risk and activities of the 
Council; 

• prospects for interest rates; 

• the borrowing strategy; 

• policy on borrowing in advance of need; 

Page 106



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

• debt rescheduling; 

• the investment strategy; 

• creditworthiness policy; and 

• policy on use of external service providers. 

 

These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, 
the CIPFA Prudential Code, Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 

Government (DLUHC) MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management Code 
and DLUHC Investment Guidance. 

 

1.4 Training 

 

The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer to ensure that members with 
responsibility for treasury management receive adequate training in treasury 
management.  This especially applies to members responsible for scrutiny.  

The Council has addressed this by targeted training courses for relevant 
members.  

   

The training needs of PSPSL treasury management officers are periodically 
reviewed and is supplemented by targeted training as necessary and 
technical advice from our treasury management advisors. 

 
 
1.5 Treasury management consultants 

 
PSPSL uses Link Group as its external treasury management advisors for the 

Council. 
 
The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions 

remains with the organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance 
is not placed upon our external service providers. All decisions will be 

undertaken with regards to all available information, including, but not solely, 
our treasury advisers. 
 

It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of 
treasury management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills 

and resources. The Council will ensure that the terms of their appointment 
and the methods by which their value will be assessed are properly agreed 
and documented and subjected to regular review. 

2 The Capital Prudential Indicators 2022/23 – 2026/27 

The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury 
management activity. The output of the capital expenditure plans is reflected 
in the prudential indicators, which are designed to assist members’ overview 

and confirm capital expenditure plans. 

 

2.1 Capital Expenditure and financing 

Page 107



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

This prudential indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure 
plans, both those agreed previously, and those forming part of this budget 

cycle.  Members are asked to approve the capital expenditure forecasts: 
 

The following table summarises the capital expenditure plans and how 
these plans are being financed by capital or revenue resources. Any 
shortfall of resources results in a funding borrowing need.  
 

 Capital Programme £’000 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

1. Disabled Facilities Grants 280 280 280 280 280 

  2.  Vehicle Replacement Programme       

              Grounds Maintenance Mowers 80 - - - - 
              Ford Transit Vans 290, 300 & 1.5tdci  
              Courier 60 - - - - 

              Ford Ranger 2.5 25 - - - - 

              Ford Transit Tipper Vans 350 50 56 - - - 

  3.  Town Centre Heritage Scheme 42 - - - - 

  4.  Information Technology Refresh 170 120 194 100 100 

  5.  Towns Fund – Leisure 2,935 1,990 - - - 

  6.  Towns Fund – Mayflower 720 8,490 3,307 - - 
  7.  Towns Fund – Centre for Food & Fresh 
Produce Logistics 453 388 - - - 
  9.  Towns Fund – Blenkin Memorial Hall 99 - - - - 
10.  Towns Fund – Healing the High Street 283 2,573 1,356 121 - 

11.  Towns Fund – Boston Station 1,665 1,090 - - - 

Totals 6,862 14,987 5,137 501 380 

 
 

Capital Financing £’000  2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

1. Capital Grants and Contributions  4,974 13,811 4,943 401 280 

2. Capital Reserve  1,718 1,156 100 100 100 

3. IT Reserve  170 20 94 - - 

  4.  Repairs and Renewal Reserve  - - - - - 

  5.  Housing Reserve  - - - - - 

Totals  6,862 14,987 5,137 501 380 

 

2.2 The Council’s borrowing need (the Capital Financing 

Requirement) 

The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing 

Requirement (CFR).  The CFR is simply the total historic outstanding 
capital expenditure which has not yet been paid for from either revenue or 
capital resources.  It is essentially a measure of the Council’s 

indebtedness and so its underlying borrowing need.  Any capital 

expenditure above, which has not immediately been paid for through a 
revenue or capital resource, will increase the CFR.  
 

The CFR does not increase indefinitely, as the MRP is a statutory annual 
revenue charge which broadly reduces the indebtedness in line with each 

Page 108



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

assets life, and so charges the economic consumption of capital assets as 
they are used.  

 
The CFR includes any other long term liabilities (e.g. Public Finance 

Initiative (PFI) schemes, finance leases).  Whilst these increase the CFR, 
and therefore the Council’s borrowing requirement, these types of scheme 
include a borrowing facility and so the Council is not required to 

separately borrow for these schemes.  The Council currently has no such 
schemes within the CFR. 

 
As part of the formal governance process, the Council approves the 
cumulative CFR projections as follows: 

 
£000’s 2021/22 

Estimate 
2022/23 

Estimate 
2023/24 

Estimate 
2024/25 

Estimate 
2025/26 

Estimate 
2026/27 

Estimate 

CFR - non-financial 
investments 

23,505 23,505 23,505 23,505 23,505 23,505 

Total CFR 23,505 23,505 23,505 23,505 23,505 23,505 

Movement in CFR 3,126 - - - - - 

       

Net financing need 
for the year above) 

3,126 - - - - - 

Less MRP/VRP 
and other financing 
movements 

15 15 15 15 15 15 

Movement in CFR 3,111 - - - - - 

 

2.3 Core funds and expected investment balances 

The application of resources (capital receipts, reserves etc.) to either 

finance capital expenditure or other budget decisions to support the 
revenue budget will have an ongoing impact on investments unless 

resources are supplemented each year from new sources (asset sales 
etc.).  Detailed below are estimates of the year end balances for each 
resource and anticipated day to day cash flow balances. 

 

Year End Resources 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

£’000’s Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 

General Fund Balance      2,000       2,000       2,000       2,000       2,000       2,000  

Earmarked Reserves     16,890     11,613     10,769     11,004     11,332     11,659  

Capital Grants Unapplied         500          456          456          456          456          456  

Boston TAC         223          200          200          200          200          200  

Capital receipts         239          239          239          239          239          239  

Total core funds    19,852     14,508     13,664     13,899     14,227     14,554  

Working capital*         475          475          475          475          475          475  

Under borrowing -    7,056  -    7,056  -    7,056  -    7,056  -    7,056  -    7,056  

Expected investments    13,271       7,927       7,083       7,318       7,646       7,973  

 

Page 109



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

      
*Working capital balances shown are estimated year end; these may be 

higher mid-year. 
 

 
 
 

2.5 Minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy statement 

The Council is required to pay off an element of the accumulated General 

Fund capital spend each year (the CFR) through a revenue charge (the 
minimum revenue provision - MRP), although it is also allowed to 
undertake additional voluntary payments if required (voluntary revenue 

provision - VRP).   

DLUHC regulations have been issued which require the full Council to 

approve an MRP Statement in advance of each year. A variety of 
options are provided to councils, so long as there is a prudent provision.  
The Council is recommended to approve the following MRP Statement. 

For capital expenditure incurred before 1st April 2008 or which in the 
future will be Supported Capital Expenditure, the MRP policy will be: 

• Existing practice - MRP will follow the existing practice outlined 
in former DLUHC regulations (option 1); or 

• Based on CFR – MRP will be based on the CFR (option 2); 

These options provide for an approximate 4% reduction in the 
borrowing need (CFR) each year. 

 
From 1 April 2008, for all unsupported borrowing the MRP policy will be 

either: 
 

• asset life method – MRP will be based on the estimated life of the 

assets, in accordance with the regulations (this option must be 
applied for any expenditure capitalised under a Capitalisation 

Direction) (option 3); or 
 
• depreciation method – MRP will follow standard depreciation 

accounting procedures. 
 

These options provide for a reduction in the borrowing need over 
approximately the asset’s life. 
 

 
Assets held for investment purposes 

 
Where the Council holds investment assets the Council’s MRP Policy will be 
to determine the amount of MRP and VRP based on the combined value of 

its holdings at the end of each financial year. The Council will ensure that 
any capital receipts generated from the sale of property fund units will be 

earmarked and set aside when received to reduce the CFR liability by the 
amount of the original borrowing for units sold if MRP/VRP has not 
previously been provided for. 

Page 110



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

 
The Council will also monitor the performance of its Property Fund 

holdings on a regular basis with performance reported to the Audit and 
Governance Committee quarterly. 

 
MRP Overpayments 
 

A change introduced by the revised DLUHC MRP Guidance was the 
allowance that any charges made over the statutory minimum revenue 

provision, voluntary revenue provision or overpayments, can, if needed, 
be reclaimed in later years if deemed necessary or prudent. In order for 
these sums to be reclaimed for use in the budget, this policy must disclose 

the cumulative overpayment made each year. As at 31 December 2021 
the total MRP overpayments were £1,428,623. 

 

3. Borrowing 

The capital expenditure plans set out in Section 2 provide details of the 
service activity of the Council.  The treasury management function ensures 
that the Council’s cash is organised in accordance with the relevant 

professional codes, so that sufficient cash is available to meet this service 
activity.  This will involve both the organisation of the cash flow and, where 

capital plans require, the organisation of appropriate borrowing facilities.  The 
strategy covers the relevant treasury/prudential indicators, the current and 
projected debt positions and the annual investment strategy. 
 

3.1 Current portfolio position 

 
The overall treasury management portfolio as at 31 March 2021 and for the 
position as at 31 December 2021 based on cost are shown below for both 

borrowing and investments. 
 

Page 111



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

 
 
The Council’s forward projections for borrowing are summarised below. The 
table shows the actual external debt, against the underlying capital borrowing 

need, (the Capital Financing Requirement - CFR), highlighting any over or 
under borrowing. 

 
£’000’s 2021/22 

Estimate  
2022/23 

Estimate 
2023/24 

Estimate 
2024/25 
Estimate 

2025/26 
Estimate 

2026/27 
Estimate 

Debt at 1 April  16,449 16,449 16,449 16,449 16,449 16,449 

Expected change in 
Debt 

- - - - - - 

Actual gross debt 
at 31 March  

16,449 16,449 16,449 16,449 16,449 16,449 

The Capital 
Financing 
Requirement 

    
23,505  

    
23,505  

    
23,505  

    
23,505  

    
23,626  

    
23,626  

(Under) /over 
borrowing 

 (7,056)   (7,056) (7,056)  (7,056)   (7,177)   (7,177)  

 

Within the range of prudential indicators, there are a number of key 
indicators to ensure that the Council operates its activities within well-

defined limits.  One of these is that the Council needs to ensure that its 
gross debt does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the CFR 

in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 2022/23 
and the following two financial years. This allows some flexibility for 

limited early borrowing for future years, but ensures that borrowing is not 
undertaken for revenue or speculative purposes. 

Page 112



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

 
The Section 151 Officer reports that the Council complied with this 

prudential indicator in the current year and does not envisage difficulties 
for the future.  This view takes into account current commitments, 

existing plans, and the proposals in this budget report. 
 
3.2 Treasury Indicators: limits to borrowing activity 

 
The operational boundary.  This is the limit beyond which external 

borrowing is not normally expected to exceed.  In most cases, this would 
be a similar figure to the CFR, but may be lower or higher depending on 
the levels of actual debt and the ability to fund under-borrowing by other 

cash resources. 

Operational boundary 
(£’000) 

2021/22 
Estimate  

 

2022/23 
Estimate 

2023/24 
Estimate 

2024/25 
Estimate 

2025/26 
Estimate 

2026/27 
Estimate 

Debt 22,000 22,000 22,000 22,000 22,000 22,000 

Other long term 
liabilities 

3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 

Total 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 

 

The authorised limit for external debt - This is a key prudential 

indicator and represents a control on the maximum level of borrowing.  
This represents a legal limit beyond which external debt is prohibited, and 
this limit needs to be set or revised by the full Council.  It reflects the 

level of external debt, which while not desired, could be afforded in the 
short term, but is not sustainable in the longer term.     

1. This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the 
Local Government Act 2003. The Government retains an option to 
control either the total of all councils’ plans, or those of a specific 

council, although this power has not yet been exercised. 

2. As part of the formal governance process, the Council approves the 

following indicators, as shown below: 
 

 
Authorised 
Limit (£’000) 

2021/22 
Estimate 

2022/23 
Estimate 

2023/24 
Estimate 

2024/25 
Estimate 

2025/26 
Estimate 

2026/27 
Estimate 

Borrowing 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 

Other long term 
liabilities 

3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 

Total 28,000 28,000 28,000 28,000 28,000 28,000 

 

Page 113



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

3.3 Prospects for interest rates (8th Nov 2021) 

The Council has appointed Link Group as its treasury advisor and part of 

their service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest rates. 
Link provided the following forecasts on 8th November 2021.  These are 

forecasts for certainty rates, gilt yields plus 80 bps. 
 

 
The coronavirus outbreak has done huge economic damage to the UK and 
to economies around the world. After the Bank of England took emergency 
action in March 2020 to cut Bank Rate to 0.10%, it left Bank Rate 

unchanged at its subsequent meetings. 
 

As shown in the forecast table above, the forecast for Bank Rate now 
includes five increases, one in December 2021 to 0.25%, then quarter 2 of 
2022 to 0.50%, quarter 1 of 2023 to 0.75%, quarter 1 of 2024 to 1.00% 

and, finally, one in quarter 1 of 2025 to 1.25%. 
 

Significant risks to the forecasts 
• Labour and supply shortages prove more enduring and disruptive 

and depress economic activity. 

 
• Mutations of the virus render current vaccines ineffective, and 

tweaked vaccines to combat these mutations are delayed, resulting 
in further national lockdowns or severe regional restrictions.  

 

• The Monetary Policy Committee acts too quickly, or too far, over 
the next three years to raise Bank Rate and causes UK economic 

growth, and increases in inflation, to be weaker than we currently 
anticipate.  

 
• The Monetary Policy Committee tightens monetary policy too late 

to ward off building inflationary pressures. 

 
• The Government acts too quickly to cut expenditure to balance the 

national budget. 
 

• UK / EU trade arrangements – if there was a major impact on 

trade flows and financial services due to complications or lack of co-
operation in sorting out significant remaining issues.  

 

 

Link Group Interest Rate View  8.11.21

Dec-21 Mar-22 Jun-22 Sep-22 Dec-22 Mar-23 Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23 Mar-24 Jun-24 Sep-24 Dec-24 Mar-25

BANK RATE 0.25 0.25 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.25

  3 month ave earnings 0.30 0.40 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.60 0.80 0.90 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

  6 month ave earnings 0.40 0.50 0.60 0.60 0.70 0.80 0.90 1.00 1.10 1.10 1.10 1.10 1.10 1.10

12 month ave earnings 0.50 0.60 0.70 0.70 0.80 0.90 1.00 1.10 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20

5 yr   PWLB 1.50 1.50 1.60 1.60 1.70 1.70 1.70 1.80 1.80 1.80 1.90 1.90 2.00 2.00

10 yr PWLB 1.80 1.90 1.90 2.00 2.00 2.10 2.10 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.40

25 yr PWLB 2.10 2.20 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.50 2.50 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.70 2.70

50 yr PWLB 1.90 2.00 2.10 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.30 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.50 2.50

Page 114



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

• German general election in September 2021. Germany faces 
months of uncertainty while a new coalition government is cobbled 

together after the indecisive result of the election. Once that coalition 
is formed, Angela Merkel’s tenure as Chancellor will end and will leave 

a hole in overall EU leadership. 
 

• Longer term US treasury yields rise strongly and pull gilt yields 

up higher than forecast. 
 

• Major stock markets e.g., in the US, become increasingly judged 
as being over-valued and susceptible to major price corrections. 
Central banks become increasingly exposed to the “moral hazard” 

risks of having to buy shares and corporate bonds to reduce the 
impact of major financial market selloffs on the general economy. 

 
• Geopolitical risks, for example in Iran, North Korea, but also in 

Europe and Middle Eastern countries; on-going global power 

influence struggles between Russia/China/US. These could lead to 
increasing safe-haven flows.  

 
The balance of risks to the UK economy: - 

• The overall balance of risks to economic growth in the UK is now to 
the downside, including residual risks from Covid and its variants - 
both domestically and their potential effects worldwide. 

 
Forecasts for Bank Rate 

It is not expected that Bank Rate will go up fast after the initial rate rise as 
the supply potential of the economy is not likely to have taken a major hit 
during the pandemic: it should, therefore, be able to cope well with meeting 

demand after supply shortages subside over the next year, without causing 
inflation to remain elevated in the medium-term, or to inhibit inflation from 

falling back towards the MPC’s 2% target after the spike up to around 5%. 
The forecast includes five increases in Bank Rate over the three-year 
forecast period to March 2025, ending at 1.25%. However, it is likely that 

these forecasts will need changing within a relatively short timeframe for 
the following reasons: - 

 
• There are increasing grounds for viewing the economic recovery as 

running out of steam during the summer and now into the autumn. 

This could lead into stagflation which would create a dilemma for the 
MPC as to whether to focus on combating inflation or supporting 

economic growth through keeping interest rates low. 
• Will some current key supply shortages spill over into causing 

economic activity in some sectors to take a significant hit? 

• Rising gas and electricity prices in October and next April and 
increases in other prices caused by supply shortages and increases 

in taxation next April, are already going to deflate consumer spending 
power without the MPC having to take any action on Bank Rate to 
cool inflation.  

• On the other hand, consumers are sitting on over £160bn of excess 
savings left over from the pandemic so when will they spend this 

sum, in part or in total? 

Page 115



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

• It is estimated that there were around 1 million people who came off 
furlough at the end of September; how many of those would not have 

had jobs on 1st October and would therefore be available to fill labour 
shortages which are creating a major headache in many sectors of 

the economy? So, supply shortages which have been driving up both 
wages and costs, could reduce significantly within the next six 
months or so and alleviate one of the MPC’s key current concerns. 

• We also recognise there could be further nasty surprises on the Covid 
front, on top of the flu season this winter, and even the possibility of 

another lockdown, which could all depress economic activity. 
• If the UK invokes article 16 of the Brexit deal over the dislocation in 

trading arrangements with Northern Ireland, this has the potential to 

end up in a no deal Brexit. 
 

In summary, with the high level of uncertainty prevailing on several 
different fronts, it is likely that these forecasts will be revised again over 
the next few months - in line with what the new news is. 

 
It should also be borne in mind that Bank Rate being cut to 0.10% was an 

emergency measure to deal with the Covid crisis hitting the UK in March 
2020. At any time, the MPC could decide to simply take away that final 

emergency cut from 0.25% to 0.10% on no other grounds than it being no 
longer being warranted and as a step forward in the return to normalisation. 
In addition, any Bank Rate under 1% is both highly unusual and highly 

supportive of economic growth.  
 

Forecasts for PWLB rates and gilt and treasury yields 
As the interest forecast table for PWLB certainty rates above shows, there 
is likely to be a steady rise over the forecast period, with some degree of 

uplift due to rising treasury yields in the US.    
There is likely to be exceptional volatility and unpredictability in 

respect of gilt yields and PWLB rates due to the following factors: - 
• How strongly will changes in gilt yields be correlated to changes in 

US treasury yields (see below). Over 10 years since 2011 there has 

been an average 75% correlation between movements in US treasury 
yields and gilt yields.  However, from time to time these two yields 

can diverge. Lack of spare economic capacity and rising inflationary 
pressures are viewed as being much greater dangers in the US than 
in the UK. This could mean that central bank rates will end up rising 

earlier and higher in the US than in the UK if inflationary pressures 
were to escalate; the consequent increases in treasury yields could 

well spill over to cause (lesser) increases in gilt yields.  There is, 
therefore, an upside risk to forecasts for gilt yields due to this 
correlation. The Link Group forecasts have included a risk of a 75% 

correlation between the two yields. 
• Will the Fed take action to counter increasing treasury yields if they 

rise beyond a yet unspecified level? 
• Would the MPC act to counter increasing gilt yields if they rise beyond 

a yet unspecified level? 

• How strong will inflationary pressures actually turn out to be in both 
the US and the UK and so put upward pressure on treasury and gilt 

yields? 

Page 116



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

• How will central banks implement their new average or sustainable 
level inflation monetary policies? 

• How well will central banks manage the withdrawal of QE purchases 
of their national bonds i.e., without causing a panic reaction in 

financial markets as happened in the “taper tantrums” in the US in 
2013? 

• Will exceptional volatility be focused on the short or long-end of the 

yield curve, or both? 
 

The forecasts are also predicated on an assumption that there is no break-
up of the Eurozone or EU within the forecasting period, despite the major 
challenges that are looming up, and that there are no major ructions in 

international relations, especially between the US and China / North Korea 
and Iran, which have a major impact on international trade and world GDP 

growth.  
 
The balance of risks to medium to long term PWLB rates: - 

• There is a balance of upside risks to forecasts for medium to long 
term PWLB rates. 

 
A new era – a fundamental shift in central bank monetary policy 

One of the key results of the pandemic has been a fundamental rethinking 
and shift in monetary policy by major central banks like the Fed, the Bank 
of England and the ECB, to tolerate a higher level of inflation than in the 

previous two decades when inflation was the prime target to bear down on 
so as to stop it going above a target rate. There is now also a greater 

emphasis on other targets for monetary policy than just inflation, especially 
on ‘achieving broad and inclusive “maximum” employment in its entirety’ in 
the US, before consideration would be given to increasing rates.  

 
• The Fed in America has gone furthest in adopting a monetary policy 

based on a clear goal of allowing the inflation target to be 
symmetrical, (rather than a ceiling to keep under), so that inflation 
averages out the dips down and surges above the target rate, over 

an unspecified period of time.  
• The Bank of England has also amended its target for monetary policy 

so that inflation should be ‘sustainably over 2%’ before starting on 
raising Bank Rate and the ECB now has a similar policy.  

• For local authorities, this means that investment interest 

rates and very short term PWLB rates will not be rising as 
quickly or as high as in previous decades when the economy 

recovers from a downturn and the recovery eventually runs 
out of spare capacity to fuel continuing expansion.   

• Labour market liberalisation since the 1970s has helped to break the 

wage-price spirals that fuelled high levels of inflation and has now 
set inflation on a lower path which makes this shift in monetary policy 

practicable. In addition, recent changes in flexible employment 
practices, the rise of the gig economy and technological changes, will 
all help to lower inflationary pressures.   

• Governments will also be concerned to see interest rates stay lower 
as every rise in central rates will add to the cost of vastly expanded 

levels of national debt; (in the UK this is £21bn for each 1% rise in 

Page 117



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

rates). On the other hand, higher levels of inflation will help to erode 
the real value of total public debt. 

 
 

Investment and borrowing rates 
• Investment returns are expected to improve in 2022/23. 

However, while markets are pricing in a series of Bank Rate hikes, 

actual economic circumstances may see the MPC fall short of these 
elevated expectations.  

• Borrowing interest rates fell to historically very low rates as a 
result of the COVID crisis and the quantitative easing operations of 
the Bank of England and still remain at historically low levels. The 

policy of avoiding new borrowing by running down spare cash 
balances has served local authorities well over the last few years.   

• On 25.11.20, the Chancellor announced the conclusion to the 
review of margins over gilt yields for PWLB rates which had been 
increased by 100 bps in October 2019.  The standard and certainty 

margins were reduced by 100 bps but a prohibition was introduced 
to deny access to borrowing from the PWLB for any local authority 

which had purchase of assets for yield in its three-year capital 
programme. The current margins over gilt yields are as follows: -. 

▪ PWLB Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps) 
▪ PWLB Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80 basis points (G+80bps) 
▪ PWLB HRA Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points 

(G+100bps) 
▪ PWLB HRA Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80bps (G+80bps) 

▪ Local Infrastructure Rate is gilt plus 60bps (G+60bps) 
 

• Borrowing for capital expenditure. Our long-term (beyond 10 

years), forecast for Bank Rate is 2.00%.  As some PWLB certainty 
rates are currently below 2.00%, there remains value in considering 

long-term borrowing from the PWLB where appropriate.  Temporary 
borrowing rates are likely, however, to remain near Bank Rate and 
may also prove attractive as part of a balanced debt portfolio. In 

addition, there are also some cheap alternative sources of long-
term borrowing if an authority is seeking to avoid a “cost of carry” 

but also wishes to mitigate future re-financing risk. 
• While this authority will not be able to avoid borrowing to finance 

new capital expenditure, to replace maturing debt and the rundown 

of reserves, there will be a cost of carry, (the difference between 
higher borrowing costs and lower investment returns), to any new 

borrowing that causes a temporary increase in cash balances. 
 
 

(End of Link Group Commentary) 

  

Page 118



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

3.4  Borrowing strategy  

The Council is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position.  This means 

that the capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement), has not 
been fully funded with loan debt as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, 

balances and cash flow has been used as a temporary measure.  This 
strategy has been prudent as investment returns have been low and 
counterparty risk is still an issue that needs to be considered. 

 
Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution 

will be adopted with the 2022/23 treasury operations. The Section 151 Officer  
will monitor interest rates in financial markets and adopt a pragmatic 
approach to changing circumstances: 

 
• if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in 

borrowing rates, then borrowing will be postponed. 
 

• if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in 

borrowing rates, perhaps arising from an acceleration in the rate of 
increase in central rates in the USA and UK, an increase in world 

economic activity, or a sudden increase in inflation risks, then the 
portfolio position will be re-appraised. Most likely, fixed rate funding 

will be drawn whilst interest rates are lower than they are projected to 
be in the next few years. 

Any decisions will be reported to the appropriate decision making body at the 
next available opportunity. 

 
3.5 Policy on borrowing in advance of need  

The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs purely in 
order to profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision 

to borrow in advance will be within forward approved Capital Financing 
Requirement estimates, and will be considered carefully to ensure that value 

for money can be demonstrated and that the Council can ensure the security 
of such funds.  
 

Risks associated with any borrowing activity will be subject to rigorous prior 
appraisal and subsequent reporting through the mid-year and annual 

reporting mechanisms. 
 
 

3.6 Maturity structure of borrowing 

These gross limits are set to reduce the Council’s exposure to large fixed rate 

sums falling due for refinancing, and are required for upper and lower limits.  
The Council is asked to approve the following treasury indicators and limits: 
  

Page 119



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

 
Maturity structure of fixed interest rate borrowing 2022/23 

 Lower Upper 

Under 12 months 0% 100% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 100% 

2 years to 5 years 0% 100% 

5 years to 10 years 0% 100% 

10 years to 20 years  0% 100% 

20 years to 30 years  0% 100% 

30 years to 40 years  0% 100% 

40 years to 50 years  0% 100% 

Maturity structure of variable interest rate borrowing 2022/23 

 Lower Upper 

Under 12 months 0% 100% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 100% 

2 years to 5 years 0% 100% 

5 years to 10 years 0% 100% 

10 years to 20 years  0% 100% 

20 years to 30 years  0% 100% 

30 years to 40 years  0% 100% 

40 years to 50 years  0% 100% 

3.7 Debt rescheduling 

Rescheduling of current borrowing in our debt portfolio is unlikely to occur 

as there is still a very large difference between premature redemption rates 
and new borrowing rates, even though the general margin of PWLB rates 

over gilt yields was reduced by 100 bps in November 2020. 
 

If rescheduling is undertaken it will be reported to the Executive Board at 
the earliest meeting following its action.  
 

3.8 New financial institutions as a source of borrowing and / or 
types of borrowing 

 
Currently the PWLB Certainty Rate is set at gilts + 80 basis points for both 
HRA and non-HRA borrowing.  However, consideration may still need to be 

given to sourcing funding from the following sources for the following 
reasons: 

 
• Local authorities (primarily shorter dated maturities out to 3 years 

or so – still cheaper than the Certainty Rate). 

• Financial institutions (primarily insurance companies and pension 
funds but also some banks, out of forward dates where the 

objective is to avoid a “cost of carry” or to achieve refinancing 
certainty over the next few years). 

 

Our advisors will keep us informed as to the relative merits of each of 
these alternative funding sources. 

  

Page 120



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

3.9 Approved Sources of Long and Short-Term Borrowing  
 

On Balance Sheet Fixed Variable 
   

PWLB • • 

Municipal bond agency  • • 

Local authorities • • 

Banks • • 

Pension funds • • 

Insurance companies • • 

UK Infrastructure Bank • • 

 

Market (long-term) • • 

Market (temporary) • • 

Market (LOBOs) • • 

Stock issues • • 

 

Local temporary • • 

Local Bonds • 

Local authority bills                                                                    •
 • 

Overdraft  • 

Negotiable Bonds • • 

 

Internal (capital receipts & revenue balances) • • 

Commercial Paper • 

Medium Term Notes •  

Finance leases • • 

 

4 Annual Investment Strategy 

4.1 Investment policy – management of risk 

 
The Department of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC - this was 

formerly the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 
(MHCLG)) and CIPFA have extended the meaning of ‘investments’ to include 
both financial and non-financial investments.  This report deals solely with 

treasury (financial) investments, (as managed by the treasury management 
team).  Non-financial investments, essentially the purchase of income yielding 

assets, are covered in the Capital Strategy, (a separate report). 
 
The Council’s investment policy has regard to the following: 

 
• DLUHC’s Guidance on Local Government Investments (“the Guidance”) 

• CIPFA Treasury Management in Public Services Code of Practice and 
Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes 2017 (“the Code”)  

• CIPFA Treasury Management Guidance Notes 2018   

 

Page 121



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

The Council’s funds are managed by PSPSL with reference to a detailed cash 
flow forecast on a daily basis for the current year. Protocols are in place to 

govern the movement of funds within specific limits.  
 

The Council’s investment priorities will be security first, portfolio liquidity 
second and then yield, (return).  The Council will aim to achieve the optimum 
return (yield) on its investments commensurate with proper levels of security 

and liquidity and with the Council’s risk appetite. In the current economic 
climate, it is considered appropriate to keep investments short term to cover 

cash flow needs. However, where appropriate (from an internal as well as 
external perspective), the Council will also consider the value available in 
periods up to 12 months with high credit rated financial institutions, as well as 

wider range fund options. 
  

The above guidance from the MHCLG and CIPFA place a high priority on the 
management of risk. This authority has adopted a prudent approach to 
managing risk and defines its risk appetite by the following means: - 

 
• Minimum acceptable credit criteria are applied in order to generate a 

list of highly creditworthy counterparties.  This also enables 
diversification and thus avoidance of concentration risk. The key ratings 

used to monitor counterparties are the short term and long-term 
ratings.  

 

• Other information: ratings will not be the sole determinant of the 
quality of an institution; it is important to continually assess and monitor 

the financial sector on both a micro and macro basis and in relation to 
the economic and political environments in which institutions operate. 
The assessment will also take account of information that reflects the 

opinion of the markets. To achieve this consideration the Council will 
engage with its advisors to maintain a monitor on market pricing such 

as “credit default swaps” (CDS) and overlay that information on top 
of the credit ratings.  

 

• Other information sources used will include the financial press, share 
price and other such information pertaining to the banking sector in 

order to establish the most robust scrutiny process on the suitability of 
potential investment counterparties. 

 

• This authority has defined the list of types of investment 
instruments that the treasury management team are authorised to 

use. There are two lists in Appendix 5.4 under the categories of 
‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ investments.  
 

• Specified investments are those with a high level of credit 
quality and subject to a maturity limit of one year or have less 

than a year left to run to maturity if originally they were 
originally classified as being non-specified investments solely due 
to the maturity period exceeding one year. 

 
• Non-specified investments are those with less high credit 

quality, may be for periods in excess of one year, and/or are 

Page 122



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

more complex instruments which require greater consideration 
by members and officers before being authorised for use.  

 
 

• Non-specified investments limit. The Council has determined that 

it will limit the maximum total exposure to non-specified investments 

to £5m of the total investment portfolio, (see paragraph 4.3). 

 

• Lending limits, the maximum total investments to any individual 

financial institution or its parent group is £5m. The maximum limit 

for individual money market funds is £7.5m. The maximum 

permitted duration of investments for each institution will be 

determined in accordance with paragraph 4.2. There will be no 

maximum limit with the Debt Management Agency Deposit Facility 

(UK Government). 

 

• Transaction limits are set for each type of investment in paragraph 

4.2 

 

• This authority will set a limit for the amount of its investments which 

are invested for longer than 365 days, (see paragraph 4.4).   

 

• Investments will only be placed with counterparties from countries 

with a specified minimum sovereign rating, (see paragraph 4.3). 

 

• PSPSL has engaged external consultants, (see paragraph 1.5), to 

provide expert advice on how to optimise an appropriate balance of 

security, liquidity and yield, given the risk appetite of this authority 

in the context of the expected level of cash balances and need for 

liquidity throughout the year. 

 

• All investments will be denominated in sterling. 

 

• As a result of the change in accounting standards for 2022/23 under 

IFRS 9, this authority will consider the implications of investment 

instruments which could result in an adverse movement in the value of 

the amount invested and resultant charges at the end of the year to the 

General Fund. (In November 2018, the MHCLG, concluded a 

consultation for a temporary override to allow English local authorities 

time to adjust their portfolio of all pooled investments by announcing a 

statutory override to delay implementation of IFRS 9 for five years 

ending 31st March 2023. 

 

 

However, this authority will also pursue value for money in treasury 

management and will monitor the yield from investment income against 

appropriate benchmarks for investment performance. Regular monitoring 

of investment performance will be carried out during the year. 

Page 123



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

4.2 Creditworthiness policy 

This Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by Link Group.  
This service employs a sophisticated modelling approach utlilising credit 

ratings from the three main credit rating agencies - Fitch, Moody’s, and 
Standard and Poor’s.  The credit ratings of counterparties are supplemented 

with the following overlays:  
 

• watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies; 

• CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings; 

• sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most 

creditworthy countries. 
 

This modelling approach combines credit ratings, and any assigned Watches 
and Outlooks in a weighted scoring system which is then combined with an 

overlay of CDS spreads. The end product of this is a series of colour coded 
bands which indicate the relative creditworthiness of counterparties.  These 
colour codes are used by the Council to determine the suggested duration for 

investments.   The Council will therefore use counterparties within the 
following durational bands: 

 
• Yellow  5 years  
• Dark pink 5 years for Ultra-Short Dated Bond Funds with a credit 

score of 1.25 
• Light pink 5 years for Ultra-Short Dated Bond Funds with a credit  

   score of 1.5 
• Purple   2 years 
• Blue   1 year (only applies to nationalised or semi nationalised 

UK Banks) 
• Orange  1 year 

• Red   6 months 
• Green   100 days   
• No colour  not to be used  

 
The Link creditworthiness service uses a wider array of information than just 

primary ratings and by using a risk weighted scoring system, does not give 
undue preponderance to just one agency’s ratings. 
 

Typically the minimum credit ratings criteria the Council use will be a short 
term rating (Fitch or equivalents) of short term rating F1 and a long term 

rating of A-. There may be occasions when the counterparty ratings from one 
rating agency are marginally lower than these ratings but may still be 
used.  In these instances consideration will be given to the whole range of 

ratings available, or other topical market information, to support their use. 
  

Page 124



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

All credit ratings will be monitored daily. PSPSL is alerted to changes to 
ratings of all three agencies through its use of the Link creditworthiness 

service. 
 

• if a downgrade results in the counterparty/investment scheme no longer 
meeting the Council’s minimum criteria, its further use as a new 
investment will be withdrawn immediately. 

• in addition to the use of credit ratings PSPSL will be advised of 
information in movements in CDS spreads against the iTraxx benchmark 
and other market data on a weekly basis. Extreme market movements 

may result in downgrade of an institution or removal from the Council’s 
lending list. 

Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service.  In addition 
this Council will also use market data and market information and information 
on any external support for banks to help support its decision making 

process. 
 

Creditworthiness. 
Significant levels of downgrades to Short- and Long-Term credit ratings 
have not materialised since the crisis in March 2020. In the main, where 

they did change, any alterations were limited to Outlooks. However, as 
economies are beginning to reopen, there have been some instances of 

previous lowering of Outlooks being reversed.  
 
CDS prices 

Although bank CDS prices, (these are market indicators of credit risk), 
spiked upwards at the end of March / early April 2020 due to the heightened 

market uncertainty and ensuing liquidity crisis that affected financial 
markets, they have returned to more average levels since then. However, 

sentiment can easily shift, so it will remain important to undertake continual 
monitoring of all aspects of risk and return in the current circumstances. 
Link monitor CDS prices as part of their creditworthiness service to local 

authorities and the Council has access to this information via its Link-
provided Passport portal. 

4.3 Other limits 

Due care will be taken to consider the exposure of the Council’s total 

treasury investment portfolio to non-specified investments, countries, 

groups and sectors.   

• Non-specified investment limit. The Council has determined that 

it will limit the maximum total exposure to non-specified investments 

to £10m of the total investment portfolio. 

 

• Country limit. The Council has determined that it will only use 

approved counterparties from the United Kingdom or countries with a 

minimum sovereign credit rating of AA- from Fitch (or equivalent). 

The list of countries that qualify using this credit criteria as at the 

date of this report are shown in Appendix 5.4.  This list will be 

Page 125



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

added to, or deducted from, by officers should ratings change in 

accordance with this policy. 

 

• Other limits. In addition: 

• no more than £5m will be placed with any non-UK country at any 

time; 

• limits in place above will apply to a group of companies; 

• sector limits will be monitored regularly for appropriateness 

4.4 Investment strategy 

In-house funds.  

Investments will be made with reference to the core balance and cash flow 
requirements and the outlook for short-term interest rates (i.e. rates for 

investments up to 12 months).  Greater returns are usually obtainable by 
investing for longer periods. Where cash sums can be identified that could be 

invested for longer periods, the value to be obtained from longer term 
investments will be carefully assessed.  
 

• If it is thought that Bank Rate is likely to rise significantly within the time 
horizon being considered, then consideration will be given to keeping 

most investments as being short term or variable. 
  
• Conversely, if it is thought that Bank Rate is likely to fall within that time 

period, consideration will be given to locking in higher rates currently 
obtainable, for longer periods. 

 
Investment returns expectations  
The current forecast shown in paragraph 3.3, includes a forecast for a first 

increase in Bank Rate in December 2021 though there is a high risk that it could 
be delayed until quarter 1 or 2 of 2022.   

 
The suggested budgeted investment earnings rates for returns on investments 
placed for periods up to about three months during each financial year, (based 

on a first increase in Bank Rate in quarter 2 of 2022), are as follows.:  
 

Average earnings in each 
year 

Now Previously 

2022/23 0.50% 0.25% 

2023/24 0.75% 0.50% 

2024/25 1.00% 0.50% 

2025/26 1.25% 1.00% 

Long term later years 2.00% 2.00% 

 
 

Page 126



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

For its cash flow generated balances, the Council will seek to utilise its 
business reserve instant access and notice accounts, money market funds 

and short-dated deposits, (overnight to 100 days), in order to benefit from 
the compounding of interest.   

 
Investment treasury indicator and limit  
Total principal funds invested for greater than 365 days. These limits are set 

with regard to the Council’s liquidity requirements and to reduce the need for 
early sale of an investment, and are based on the availability of funds after 

each year-end.  
 
As part of the formal governance process, the Council approves the treasury 

indicator and limit, as shown below: 
 

£’000 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 

Principal sums invested > 365 days 
(excluding non-treasury investments) 

 
10,000 

 
10,000 

 
10,000 

 
10,000 

Current treasury investments as at 
31 December 2020 in excess of 1 
year maturing in each year 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

4.5 Investment risk benchmarking 
 
The Council has not adopted any formal benchmarks in this area, as 

officers believe that decisions on counterparties and maximum investment 
levels are adequate to monitor the current and trend position, and amend 

the operational strategy to manage risk as conditions change. 

Any breach of the benchmarks will be reported, with supporting reasons in 
the mid-year or Annual Report. 

 

4.6 End of year investment report 

 
At the end of the financial year, the Council will report on its investment 
activity as part of its Annual Treasury Report.  

 

 

 

Page 127



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

5  Appendices  
 

1. Prudential and treasury indicators  

2. Interest rate forecasts 

3. Treasury management practice 1 – credit and counterparty risk 
management  

4. Approved countries for investments 

5. Treasury management scheme of delegation 

6. The treasury management role of the section 151 officer 

 
 
 

Page 128



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

APPENDIX 5.1 THE CAPITAL PRUDENTIAL AND TREASURY 
INDICATORS 2022/23 – 2024/25  

The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury 

management activity. The output of the capital expenditure plans is 
reflected in the prudential indicators, which are designed to assist 

members’ overview and confirm capital expenditure plans. 

5.1.1 Affordability prudential indicators 

The previous sections cover the overall capital and control of borrowing 
prudential indicators, but within this framework prudential indicators are 

required to assess the affordability of the capital investment plans.   
These provide an indication of the impact of the capital investment plans 
on the Council’s overall finances.  The Council is asked to approve the 

following indicators: 

Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream 

This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital, (borrowing and 

other long-term obligation costs net of investment income), against the 
net revenue stream. 

 

% 2022/23 

Estimate 

2023/24 

Estimate 

2024/25 

Estimate 

2025/26 

Estimate 

2026/27 

Estimate 

Total -2.87% -2.32% -1.99% -2.19% -2.18% 

 

The estimates of financing costs include current commitments and the 
proposals in this budget report. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 129



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

P
age 130



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

APPENDIX 5.3 - Treasury Management Practice (TMP1) – Credit and 
Counterparty Risk Management Specified and Non-Specified 

Investments and Limits 
 

SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: All such investments will be sterling 

denominated, with maturities up to maximum of 1 year, meeting 
the minimum ‘high’ quality criteria where applicable. 
 

 
 Minimum ‘High’ Credit 
Criteria 

Use 

Debt Management Agency Deposit 
Facility 

N/A 
In-house ( no 
maximum limit) 

Deposits with local authorities   N/A In-house 

Term deposits – banks and building 
societies  

Minimum colour of 
green on our external 
treasury advisers credit 
rating matrix 

In-house 

Certificates of deposit issued by banks 
and building societies 

Minimum colour of 
green on our external 
treasury advisers credit 
rating matrix 

In-house 

Treasury Bills UK sovereign rating In-house 

Bonds issued by multilateral 
development banks 

AAA 
In-house buy and 
hold 

Money market funds AAA 
In-house (£7.5m 
limit for cash flow 
purposes) 

Money Market Funds  CNAV (Constant 
Net Asset Value) 

AAA In-house 

Money Market Funds  LVAV (Low 
Volatility Asset Value) 

AAA In-house 

Money Market Funds  VNAV (Variable 
Net Asset Value) 

AAA In-house 

 
Term deposits with nationalised banks and banks and building societies  

 
If forward deposits are to be made, the forward period plus the deal period 
should not exceed one year in aggregate.   

 

 
Minimum Credit 
Criteria 

Use 
Max of total 
investments 

Max. 

maturity 
period 

UK  part nationalised 
banks 

Minimum colour of 
green on our external 
treasury advisers 
credit rating matrix 

In-
house  

£5m 1 year 

Banks part 
nationalised by AAA 
or AA- sovereign 
rating countries – non 
UK 

Minimum colour of 
green on our external 
treasury advisers 
credit rating matrix 

In-
house  

£5m 1 year 

Page 131



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

Accounting treatment of investments.  The accounting treatment may 
differ from the underlying cash transactions arising from investment decisions 

made by this Council. To ensure that the Council is protected from any 
adverse revenue impact, which may arise from these differences, we will 

review the accounting implications of new transactions before they are 
undertaken. 
 

NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: These are any investments which do not 
meet the Specified Investment criteria.  A maximum of £10m treasury 

investments can be held in aggregate in non-specified investment. 
 
1.  Maturities of ANY period 

 

 
Minimum Credit 

Criteria 
Use 

Max of non-

specified 

investments 

Max. 

maturity 

period 

Fixed term deposits with 
variable rate and variable 
maturities: -Structured 
deposits 

Sovereign rating  
of AAA to AA- and 
minimum colour of 
green on our 
external treasury 
advisers credit 
rating matrix 

In-house  £5m 1 year 

UK Government Gilts 
UK sovereign 
rating 

In-house 
buy and 
hold 

£5m 2 year 

Sovereign bond issues (other 
than the UK govt) 

AAA 
In-house 
buy and 
hold 

£5m 2 year 

Bond issuance issued by a 
financial institution which is 
explicitly guaranteed by  the 
UK Government  (e.g. 
National Rail)  

UK sovereign 
rating 

In-house 
buy and 
hold 

£5m 2 year 

Collateralised deposits (see 
note 1) 

UK  Sovereign 
rating  

In-house  £5m 1 year 

Collective Investment Schemes structured as Open Ended Investment Companies (OEICs) 

Property Funds: 
(excluding non-treasury 
investments) 

 In-house £8m  

The use of property funds can be deemed capital expenditure, and as such will be 

an application (spending) of capital resources.  This Authority will seek guidance 
on the status of any fund it may consider using. Appropriate due diligence will 
also be undertaken before investment of this type is undertaken. 

 
The Section 151 and Deputy Section 151 Officer will have delegated authority to 

invest in property funds subject to consultation with the Portfolio Holder for 
Finance. 

 

Page 132



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

Collective Investment Schemes structured as Open Ended Investment Companies (OEICs): - 

 
Minimum Credit 
Criteria 

Use 

Max of non-

specified 
investments 

Max. maturity 
period 

1. Government Liquidity 
     Funds 

Long-term AAA 
volatility rating 
MR1+ 

In-house  £10m 
1 month notice 

period 

2. Ultra-Short Dated Bond 
Funds with a credit score 
of 1.25 

Long-term AAA 
volatility rating 
MR1+ 

In-house £10m 
1 month notice 

period 

3. Ultra-Short Dated Bond 
Funds with a credit score 
of 1.5 

Long-term AAA 
volatility rating 
MR1+ 

In-house £10m 
1 month notice 

period 

4. Bond Funds 
Long-term AAA 
volatility rating 
MR1+ 

In-house £10m 
1 month notice 

period 

5. Gilt Funds 
Long-term AAA 
volatility rating 
MR1+ 

In-house £10m 
1 month notice 

period 

 

Note 1 : as collateralised deposits are backed by collateral of AAA rated local 
authority LOBOs, this investment instrument is regarded as being a AAA rated 
investment as it is equivalent to lending to a local authority. 
 
2.  Maturities in excess of 1 year 

 
Minimum Credit 
Criteria 

Use 
Max. of total 
investments 

Max. 
maturity 
period 

Deposits with UK local 
authorities  

N/A In-house £5m 2 year 

Term deposits to 
Registered Social 
Landlords 

None 

In-house subject 
to due diligence 
report by Link 
Group 

£5m 5 year 

Term deposits – banks 
and building societies  

Sovereign rating  of 
AAA to AA- and 
minimum colour of 
orange on our 
external treasury 
advisers credit rating 
matrix 

In-house £5m 2 year 

Certificates of deposit 
issued by banks and 
building societies  

Sovereign rating  of 
AAA to AA- and 
minimum colour of 
orange on our 
external treasury 
advisers credit rating 
matrix 

In-house  £5m 2 year 

Bonds issued by 
multilateral development 
banks 

AAA In-house  £5m 2 year 

 

Page 133



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

Whilst these are maximum limits, under normal circumstances the Section 
151 Officer will ensure lower limits are maintained. The higher limits are 

required to allow flexibility in the movement of funds if a particular issue or 
circumstance arose e.g. global banking crisis. 

 
The maximum total investment to any individual financial institution or its 
parent group is £5m except for the instant access money market fund which 

has a limit of £7.5m and the UK Debt Management Agency Deposit Facility 
(UK Government) which has no maximum limit.  

Page 134



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

APPENDIX 5.4 - Approved countries for investments as at 10 November 

2021  

This list is based on those countries which have sovereign ratings of AA- or higher, (we 
show the lowest rating from Fitch, Moody’s and S&P) and also, (except - at the time of 
writing - for Hong Kong, Norway and Luxembourg), have banks operating in sterling 
markets which have credit ratings of green or above in the Link credit worthiness service. 
 

Based on lowest available rating 
 

AAA                      

• Australia 

• Denmark 

• Germany 

• Luxembourg 

• Netherlands  

• Norway 

• Singapore 

• Sweden 

• Switzerland 

 

AA+ 

• Canada    

• Finland 

• U.S.A. 

 

AA 

• Abu Dhabi (UAE) 

• France 

 

AA- 

• Belgium 

• Hong Kong 

• Qatar 

• U.K. 

Page 135



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

APPENDIX 5.5 - Treasury management scheme of delegation 

Council - Receive, Review and Approval of Treasury Policy 

Statement – February/March cycle 
- Receive, Review and Approval of Treasury Management 

Strategy Statement incorporating the Annual Investment 
Strategy and Minimum Revenue Provision Policy – 
February/March cycle followed by mid year report update. 

Updates or revisions at other times as required 
- Receive, Review and Approval of Annual Treasury Outturn 

Report by 30 September after the year end 
 

Executive Board - Recommend to Council a Treasury Policy Statement 

- Recommend to Council a Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement incorporating the Annual Investment Strategy 

and Minimum Revenue Provision Policy – February/March 
cycle followed by mid year report update 

- Extraordinary Activity and Investment Management 

arrangements – as soon as possible after significant 
change occurs 

- Recommend to Council a Treasury Management Outturn 
Report by 30 September after the year end 

 
Audit and Governance 
Committee 

- Receive Treasury Management Mid Term report 
- Receive Treasury Management Outturn Report 

- Receive Treasury Management Practices annually if 
amended 

- Scrutiny of the Treasury Management Strategy before the 
commencement of each financial year 

- Scrutiny of Treasury Management performance as part of 

the Mid Term report. 
 

 
SCRUTINY AND MONITORING 
  

Council delegates the scrutiny and monitoring of the Treasury Management 

function to the Audit and Governance Committee.  As a minimum they will 
receive a Mid Term Treasury report on investment issues and performance. 
Training will be made available for members of the Audit and Governance 

Committee to ensure they have the necessary skills to undertake this role. 
Recommendations will be reported to Executive Board. 

 
The Audit and Governance Committee will also have access to professional 
and independent advice and support as required in order to undertake this 

role. 

Page 136



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

APPENDIX 5.6 - The treasury management role of the section 151 
officer and deputy 

The S151 Officer’s main functions with regards to treasury are to: 
  

• recommend clauses, treasury management policy/practices for 
approval, review the same regularly, and monitor compliance 

• submit regular treasury management policy reports 

• submit budgets and budget variations 
• receive and review management information reports 

• review the performance of the treasury management function 
• ensure the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and 

the effective division of responsibilities within the treasury management 

function 
• ensure the adequacy of internal audit, and liaise with external audit 

• recommending the appointment of external service providers 
• preparation of a capital strategy to include capital expenditure, capital 

financing, non-financial investments and treasury management, with a 

long term timeframe  
• ensuring that the capital strategy is prudent, sustainable, affordable and 

prudent in the long term and provides value for money 
• ensuring that due diligence has been carried out on all treasury and 

non-financial investments and is in accordance with the risk appetite of 
the authority 

• ensure that the authority has appropriate legal powers to undertake 

expenditure on non-financial assets and their financing 
• ensuring the proportionality of all investments so that the authority does 

not undertake a level of investing which exposes the authority to an 
excessive level of risk compared to its financial resources 

• ensuring that an adequate governance process is in place for the 

approval, monitoring and ongoing risk management of all non-financial 
investments and long term liabilities 

• provision to members of a schedule of all non-treasury investments 
including material investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, loans and 
financial guarantees  

• ensuring that members are adequately informed and understand the 
risk exposures taken on by an authority 

• ensuring that the authority has adequate expertise, either in house or 
externally provided, to carry out the above 

• creation of Treasury Management Practices which specifically deal with 

how non treasury investments will be carried out and managed, to 
include the following: 

 
➢ Risk management (TMP1 and schedules), including investment and 

risk management criteria for any material non-treasury investment 

portfolios; 
 

➢ Performance measurement and management (TMP2 and 
schedules), including methodology and criteria for assessing the 
performance and success of non-treasury investments;          

 

Page 137



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

➢ Decision making, governance and organisation (TMP5 and 
schedules), including a statement of the governance requirements 

for decision making in relation to non-treasury investments; and 
arrangements to ensure that appropriate professional due 

diligence is carried out to support decision making; 
 

➢ Reporting and management information (TMP6 and schedules), 

including where and how often monitoring reports are taken; 
  

➢ Training and qualifications (TMP10 and schedules), including how 
the relevant knowledge and skills in relation to non-treasury 
investments will be arranged. 

 
As an added safeguard, as part of the Section 151’s statutory responsibility, 

the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) is obliged to notify the Monitoring Officer of 
any material change proposed to approved treasury policies and of any major 
breaches which have occurred. 

 
Any significant operational or other changes will be notified and discussed 

with the relevant Portfolio Holder.  This is currently the Portfolio Holder for 
Finance. Any actions resulting from this will be reported to Audit and 

Governance. If timescales are such that due to urgency, the formal reporting 
process cannot be utilised, then emergency authorisation will be sought 
through existing mechanisms. 

 
The CFO has delegated powers through this policy to take the most 

appropriate form of borrowing from the approved sources, and to take the 
most appropriate form of investments in approved instruments. 
 

The CFO may delegate power to borrow and invest to members of staff.  All 
dealing transactions must be conducted by the CFO, or staff authorised by the 

CFO, to act as temporary cover for leave/sickness.  All transactions must be 
authorised by at least two of authorised signatories, one of which must be 
employed by ELDC. 

 
The CFO and the Monitoring Officer will ensure that the Policy is adhered to, 

and if not, will bring the matter to the attention of Councillors as soon as 
possible. 
 

Prior to entering into any capital financing, lending or investment transaction, 
it is the responsibility of the CFO to be satisfied, by reference to the 

Monitoring Officer, the Authority’s Legal Department and external advisors, as 
appropriate, that the proposed transaction does not breach any statute, 
external regulation or the Authority’s Financial Regulations. 

 
It is also the responsibility of the CFO to ensure that the Authority complies 

with the requirements of the Non Investment Products Code for principals and 
broking firms in the wholesale markets as well as the Financial Services 
Authority’s Code of Market Conduct. 

 
The CFO will ensure an accurate record of daily notifications received and 

document all investment decisions. 

Page 138



  APPENDIX 6 

 
 

 
The treasury management function is administered by Public Sector 

Partnership Services Limited and they will supply the following information to 
the CFO:  

 

• treasury management strategy statements and practices for approval 

• capital strategy reports  

• regular treasury management policy reports 

• budget and budget variation reports 

• management information reports 

• adequate treasury management resources and skills, and effective 
division of responsibilities within the treasury management function, 
and; 

• arranging the appointment of external treasury management advisors. 

Page 139



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH & EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP

ANNUAL DELIVERY PLAN 2022/2023
Version 0.3 

1

P
age 141



South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership - Introduction

2

The Councils need to agree an Annual Delivery Plan for the following key reasons:-

• To provide direction for Members and Officers;

• To deliver on the agreed Partnership priorities, both financial and non-financial; and

• To help direct and manage resources effectively and efficiently across the partnership.

P
age 142



South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Strategic Ambition 

3

Strategic 
Ambition

• Strategic – a focus on 
the priorities with 
our external partners 
within Lincolnshire 
and nationally;

• Corporate – a focus 
on the priorities 
within the 
partnership across 
the three 
partnership councils 
(including 
companies); and 

• Local – a focus on 
the priorities for 
each of the sovereign 
councils.

• Markets
• Local Plan Development
• Community Safety 

Partnership
• Waste collection & 

recycling
• Public Protection

• Planning
• Monitoring Officer
• Data Protection
• Democratic Services
• S151 Officer
• Finance Strategy
• Financial Management
• Treasury Management
• Sundry Debtors

Strategic Ambition

Corporate 
Priorities

Local Priorities

P
age 143



South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Strategic Programme 

4

Strategic 
Programme

• The following slides 
identify the Delivery 
Plan for 2022/23 to 
support the 
Partnership in 
delivering on its 
priorities, as well as 
sovereign Council 
ambitions.

• This slide highlights 
the strategic 
opportunities for the 
partnership as 
already agreed by 
Council.

The Strategic Programme (Top Ten) for the South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership:-

1. Strategy platform for the Partnership focussing on improving outcomes for all communities across the sub-

region (early focus on Transport and Infrastructure and Health & Wellbeing);

2. The strategic case for Devolution for the sub-region; 

3. Piloting opportunities with Government (Levelling Up Agenda – Education and Skills, Housing, Health);

4. Place-based regeneration, including supporting infrastructure, across the sub-region of South and East 

Lincolnshire;

5. Joint approach to the Internal Drainage Boards;

6. Co-ordinated partnership response to the Environment Act 2021; 

7. Health and Leisure offer across the sub-region;

8. Shared Service Opportunities across the partnership, including our strategic partnership with PSPS Ltd, to 

improve service efficiency and effectiveness;

9. Workforce Development Strategy for the partnership; and

10. ICT Strategy for the partnership.

P
age 144



5

Communities 
Directorate

• Well Being and 
Communities 
Leadership

• Regulatory

• Leisure and Culture

• Neighbourhoods

S&ELCP – Communities Directorate - Strategic

Activity Delivery timeframe

Strategic • Environment Act 2021 co-ordinated response by the Partnership across the sub-region

• Climate Change Strategy to be adopted

• Establishment of the SELCAN in support of the Climate Change Action Plan

• Natural/Tree Environment Strategy to be adopted

• Health & Well Being Strategy in partnership with the District Councils to be adopted

• Health & Leisure offering to be developed across the sub-region

• Community Safety Strategy

• Quarter 2 - Strategic guidance

• Quarter 3 - Policy development

• Quarter 1 - 2022

• Quarter 2 - 2022

• Quarter 1 - 2022

• Quarter 2 - 2022

• Quarter 2 – 2022

• Quarter 2 – 2022 

P
age 145



6

Communities 
Directorate

• Well Being and 
Communities 
Leadership

• Regulatory

• Leisure and Culture

• Neighbourhoods

S&ELCP – Communities Directorate - Corporate

Activity Delivery timeframe

Corporate Policy Alignment: 

• Single Use Waste Policy to be adopted

• Customer Strategy to be adopted

• Leisure & Culture Strategy to be adopted

• Housing Strategy to be adopted

Quick Wins:

• Enviro-crime enforcement contract established for the Partnership

• Trusted Volunteer Scheme and Pride Teams to be developed across the sub-region

• Homelessness Prevention programme established across the Partnership

• Disability Facilities Grants to be developed across the sub-region and in partnership across Lincolnshire

Shared Services: 

• Building Control Service implemented for the Partnership

• Emergency Planning & Business Continuity implemented for the Partnership

• Health & Safety – Policy and Practice implemented for the Partnership

• Licensing & Land Charges implemented for the Partnership

• Climate Change implemented for the Partnership

• Community Safety – Policy and Practice implemented for the Partnership

Shared Learning: Rough Sleeping, Healthy lifestyles programmes, Carbon reduction, Wellbeing Service – Wellbeing Lincs, 

Safeguarding, ‘Affordable Warmth’ – Energy Efficiency, Housing Support Fund, Resettlement Scheme, Carbon Literacy Training.  

Partnership Platform: 

• Community Lottery Scheme established for the Partnership

• Crowd Funding Platform established for the Partnership

Asset Rationalisation: 

• Office/Depot space review and recommendations

• Street scene software alignment established

Activity to be brought 

forward within 36 

months

P
age 146



7

Communities 
Directorate

• Well Being and 
Communities 
Leadership

• Regulatory

• Leisure and Culture

• Neighbourhoods

S&ELCP – Communities Directorate - Local

Activity Delivery timeframe

Boston 
Borough 
Council

• Delivery the Empowering Healthier Communities Programme
• Deployment of the BEIS Green Homes Funding across the sub-region
• Implementation of the Pride in Boston programme
• Implementation of Waste Collection round review
• Implementation of the Carbon Reduction plan
• Markets restructure proposals for the Partnership
• Leisure facilities (Towns Fund Programme) 
• Implementation of the Land Charges Migration to HMLR

• Quarter 1 - 2022
• Quarter 1 - 2022
• Quarter 1 - 2022
• Quarter 1 - 2022
• Quarter 1 - 2022
• Quarter 2 – 2022
• TBA
• Quarter 4 - 2023

P
age 147



8

Communities 
Directorate

• Well Being and 
Communities 
Leadership

• Regulatory

• Leisure and Culture

• Neighbourhoods

S&ELCP – Communities Directorate - Local

Activity Delivery timeframe

East Lindsey 
District 
Council

• Implementation of a new Trust Business Plan with Magna Vitae
• Established the Community Hub Service Access Model
• Deployment of the BEIS Green Homes Funding across the sub-region
• Delivery of the Ageing Better Programme
• Implementation of the Pride in East Lindsey programme 
• Implementation of the Carbon Reduction plan
• Establish a Commercial Waste Service
• Delivery of twin stream recycling collections
• Markets restructure proposed for the Partnership
• Delivery of the 3G pitch in Louth (subject to funding)
• Leisure and Learning Centre in Mablethorpe (Towns Fund Programme)
• Campus for Future Living in Mablethorpe (Towns Fund Programme)
• Cultural Skegness (Towns Fund Programme)
• Delivery of the Public conveniences programme 

• Quarter 1 - 2022
• Quarter 1 - 2022
• Quarter 1 - 2022
• Quarter 1 - 2022
• Quarter 1 - 2022
• Quarter 1 - 2022
• Quarter 2 - 2022
• Quarter 2 - 2022
• Quarter 2 - 2022
• Quarter 3 - 2022
• TBA 
• TBA
• TBA
• Quarter 4 - 2023

P
age 148



9

Communities 
Directorate

• Well Being and 
Communities 
Leadership

• Regulatory

• Leisure and Culture

• Neighbourhoods

S&ELCP – Communities Directorate - Local

Activity Delivery timeframe

South 
Holland 
District 
Council

• Implementation of the Pride in South Holland Programme
• Implementation of the Garden Waste collection expansion
• Deployment of the BEIS Green Homes Funding across the sub-region
• Implementation of the Carbon Reduction plan 
• Markets restructure proposals for the Partnership
• Leisure facilities
• Implementation of the Land Charges Migration to HMLR

• Quarter 1 - 2022
• Quarter 1 - 2022
• Quarter 1 - 2022
• Quarter 2 - 2022
• Quarter 2 - 2022
• TBA
• Quarter 4 2023

P
age 149



10

Corporate 
Development 
Directorate

• Corporate

• Governance

• Finance

• Housing

S&ELCP – Corporate Development Directorate - Strategic
Activity Delivery timeframe

Strategic • Lobbying on Drainage Board Levies. • ONGOING

P
age 150



11

Corporate 
Development 
Directorate

• Corporate

• Governance

• Finance

• Housing

S&ELCP – Corporate Development Directorate - Corporate 
Activity Delivery timeframe

Corporate Policy Alignment  

• Single Workforce Development Strategy to be adopted

• Single ICT and Digital Strategy to be adopted

• Undertake Constitution Review targeting critical areas, Contract and Finance Procedure Rules.

• Procurement Strategy to be adopted

• Initial assessment of potential to align policy/procedure for Information Management (FOI/Data Protection) and investigation of 

complaints

• Bring forward for consideration the Model Code of Conduct at all three Councils (ELDC/BBC likely sooner than Q1)

Quick Wins

• Single Workforce Training Plan to be in place & Staff Awards Event to take place.

• Review and identification of common subscriptions and contracts.

• Committee Calendar Alignment across Partnership Councils 

• Review Mayoral support and budget in BBC

• Terms and Conditions Review below CMT to be undertaken.

Shared Services

• Arrangement for shared Communications Service to be brought forward.

• Arrangement for shared Transformation Team to be brought forward.

• Outline business case for shared team in Information Management/Corporate Complaints.

Shared Learning – Communications, Organisational Development, Housing Management and Delivery, Co-ordination of election preparation 

for 2023, Exploring Partnership opportunities in social housing.

Partnership Platform

• LGA Peer Review of Partnership to be hosted.

• HR Policies to have been reviewed, aligned and adopted across the Partnership.

• Single Performance Management approach for the Partnership and associated system.

• Develop Business Case to explore back office service opportunities with PSPS

• Alignment of Internal Audit

Back office alignment

• Implementation of new Telephony System

• Customer Relationship Management Solution deployment 

Activity to be 

brought forward 

within 36 

months

P
age 151



12

Corporate 
Development 
Directorate

• Corporate

• Governance

• Finance

• Housing

S&ELCP – Corporate Development Directorate - Local
Activity Delivery timeframe

Boston 
Borough 
Council

1. Deliver new website for the Council and associated website accessibility compliance.
2. ‘Be a Councillor’ campaign delivery.
3. Implementation of new finance system 

• Q3 – 2022
• Throughout 2022/23
• Quarter 2 – 2022

P
age 152



13

Corporate 
Development 
Directorate

• Corporate

• Governance

• Finance

• Housing

S&ELCP – Corporate Development Directorate - Local
Activity Delivery timeframe

East 
Lindsey 
District 
Council

1. Implementation of the Uniform case. management system – phase 2.
2. Move to Public Sector Hub 
3. Website accessibility compliance.

• Quarter 3 – 2022
• Quarter 1 and 2 – 2022
• Quarter 1 – 2022

P
age 153



14

Corporate 
Development 
Directorate

• Corporate

• Governance

• Finance

• Housing

S&ELCP – Corporate Development Directorate - Local
Activity Delivery timeframe

South 
Holland 
District 
Council

1. Continuation of the Digital Programme.
2. Continued system separation from Breckland.
3. Website accessibility compliance.
4. Review of customer feedback and engagement process in HRA.
5. Sheltered Housing Review 

• ONGOING
• ONGOING
• Quarter 2 – 2022
• Quarter 1 - 2022
• ONGOING 

P
age 154



15

Growth 
Directorate

• Economic Growth

• Strategic Growth and 
Development

• Planning and 
Strategic 
Infrastructure

S&ELCP – Growth Directorate - Strategic
Activity Delivery timeframe

Strategic - Continue to lobby external partners and build the case for major investment into the transport network across the SELCP area,

including road, rail, port and public transport investment

- To identify power, water and digital utility constraints across SECLP area and to work with partners and the private sector to secure 

investment in meeting the utility needs of the area and develop a strategy to address any challenges / opportunities

- To deliver the Towns Deal Programme for Boston and East Lindsey

- To further develop the relationship with Homes England, DLUHC and others to secure strategic investment into the SELCP area – in

particular to support housing growth and delivery across small, medium and major sites

- To support and influence the delivery of the UK Food Valley initiative – acting as a means to secure additional investment

- Develop a coordinated strategy to strengthen the place-based approach to economic growth and realise the potential of the sub-

region  – including combination of Economic Growth Strategy, Cultural Strategy and Local Plan(s)

- Develop a coordinated approach to the visitor economy and support the sector through a post-Covid response, working in partnership 

with the Destination Management Organisation. 

• ONGOING

• ONGOING

• ONGOING

• ONGOING

• ONGOING

• COMMENCED BY 

Q2 

• COMMENCED BY 

Q2 

P
age 155



16

Growth 
Directorate

• Economic Growth

• Strategic Growth and 
Development

• Planning and 
Strategic 
Infrastructure

S&ELCP – Growth Directorate - Corporate
Activity • Delivery timeframe

Corporate Quick Wins 

• Alignment of BBC/ELDC contracts for Archaeology and Historic Built Environment support (Conservation)

• Establishment of a ‘funding team’ – aim to coordinate and realise future funding opportunities across our sub-region

• Targeted and intensive recruitment to fill vacant professional posts

• Development of a shared data resource and evidence base – to allow efficient access to information and data to support all activities. 

Shared Services –

• Principle of temporary sharing Planning ‘case officer’ support, as necessary, established to provide resilience within all 3 Councils 

functions and address pressure points

• Stabilise BBC/ELDC teams in Planning and Economic Growth following reviews

Shared Learning –

• Housing ‘enabling’ and housing pipeline development

• Response to the Environment Bill and additional burdens/requirements.

Partnership Platform - Lobbying and influencing external partners for investment – examples include:

• Housing - Homes England; Registered Providers & local developers

• Economy: GLLEP; FPN; Local suppliers; 

• Transport: Midlands Connect; Highways England; Network Rail; Port of Boston

• Flooding & Drainage: EA; Drainage Boards; Collaborative agreement with EA/UoL/LCC – ‘adaptation strategy’ for the Coast; Humber 

Strategy Board 

• Visitor Economy: DMO; DCMS; Visit England

• Government and other agencies - HM Government – Build Back Better, Towns Fund accountability, Levelling up, Theddlethorpe

Working Group; FE & HE providers; NHS

Activity to be 

brought 

forward within 

36 months

P
age 156



17

Growth 
Directorate

• Economic Growth

• Strategic Growth and 
Development

• Planning and 
Strategic 
Infrastructure

S&ELCP – Growth Directorate - Local

Activity Delivery timeframe

Boston 
Borough 
Council

- Boston City Status application outcome
- Boston Port
- Boston Black Sluice Pumping Station
- Review Historic Place Panel Recommendations and establish response actions
- Boston Town Centre regeneration (PE21)
- Boston Leisure (Towns Fund) - strategy for delivery of improved offer
- Towns Fund Board & Projects
- Boston Conservation Area & Management Plan review - to update appraisal and management plan
- Boston Alternative Energy Facility (BAEF) – conclusion of examination, and move to delivery 

depending on outcome
- Heckington Fen Solar scheme (NSIP)

- Progression of strategic housing allocations (West 2 and Sou 6) in Local Plan
- Development of Cultural Strategy
- Review of employment opportunities/allocations and future areas of focus – Potential LDO
- Review feedback from Levelling Up 1 submission and prepare proposals in readiness for next 

funding round (Levelling Up 2).

• Q3 - 2022
• ONGOING
• Project Development Ongoing
• Q1 22/23
• ONGOING
• Q1/Q2 2022
• ONGOING
• By 2023
• Examination to conclude Q1/2; Decision by Q3

• Submission by end of 2023

• ONGOING
• ONGOING
• ONGOING
• Q1/Q2 - 2022P

age 157



18

Growth 
Directorate

• Economic Growth

• Strategic Growth and 
Development

• Planning and 
Strategic 
Infrastructure

S&ELCP – Growth Directorate - Local 

Activity Delivery timeframe

East 
Lindsey 
District 
Council

- Skegness Gateway Local Development Order - making of LDO and move to delivery
- Delivery of Vital and Viable Action Plans
- Delivery of Lincolnshire Wolds Outdoor Festival
- Adoption of Destination Strategy and SLA/promotion agreement with DMO
- Business Improvement District Ballot
- Towns Fund Board & Projects
- Covid 19 Grants – Recovery & Resilience
- S73s / LDOs – conclusion of matters relating to extension of the season
- Review feedback from Levelling Up 1 submission, and prepare proposals in readiness for next 

funding round (Levelling Up 2).

• Q3 - 2022
• ONGOING
• Q1 - 2022
• Q2 - 2022
• Q2 - 2022
• ONGOING
• ONGOING
• ONGOING
• Q1/Q2 - 2022

P
age 158



19

Growth 
Directorate

• Economic Growth

• Strategic Growth and 
Development

• Planning and 
Strategic 
Infrastructure

S&ELCP – Growth Directorate - Local

Activity Delivery timeframe

South 
Holland 
District 
Council

- Progress continued delivery of the Holbeach Food Enterprise Zone, and securing further inward 
investment into the site

- Secure ‘start on site’ of Section 5 of the Spalding Western Relief Road, and progress delivery of the 
housing allocations associated with Section 5

- Working in partnership with LCC to progress delivery of further sections of the SWRR, to in tun
support housing growth to the west of Spalding

- Secure an extension to the Grants4Growth programme, and further expand delivery into the SECLP 
area

- Further develop and deliver on the Holbeach and Spalding Town Centre Improvement Plans
- Secure power utility investment for Holbeach and Long Sutton through WPD, to enable future growth
- Progress the delivery of Extra Care Housing within the district, and other forms of housing enabling
- Close-down of South Holland Growth and Recovery Fund, and evaluate local impact to inform future 

funding applications to government for business support
- Spalding and Holbeach Conservation Area & Management Plan review
- Develop a “Levelling Up” proposal for Spalding

• ONGOING

• Q1 - 2022

• ONGOING

• Q2 - 2022

• ONGOING
• Q3 - 2022
• ONGOING
• Q1 – 2022

• ONGOING
• Q1 – 2022P

age 159



20

Programme 
Delivery 

Directorate

• Strategic Projects

• General Fund Assets

S&ELCP – Programme Delivery Directorate - Strategic

Activity Delivery timeframe

Strategic • Establish new working relationships with key partners inc. statutory bodies, regional and local developers and contractors.

• Build market intelligence and good/ best practice in design, procurement, delivery through regional & national engagement  

• Horizon scanning, grant sourcing, build effective delivery models/ processes

• Maximising use of OPE Funding opportunities and raising SELCP profile on utilisation of assets and project delivery

• ONGOING

• ONGOING

• ONGOING

• ONGOING

P
age 160



21

Programme 
Delivery 

Directorate

• Strategic Projects

• General Fund Assets

S&ELCP – Programme Delivery Directorate - Corporate

Activity Delivery timeframe

Corporate Policy Alignment  Develop an Asset Management Framework for adoption by the three Partnership Councils.

Quick Wins: Use of frameworks for - capital works, planned maintenance, professional services. Targeted recruitment for 

complex delivery. Consistent Asset Challenge process inc designation of surplus, planned maintenance 

Shared Services: Aligning and embedding shared services across Cash Collection Car Parks, Property, Assets and Facilities 

Management, Fleet Maintenance, Planned Maintenance, Caretaking, Project Delivery

Shared Learning: Effective project scoping, house building, contractor engagement, contractor procurement, technical services, 

design and operation of assets , disposal & acquisition, project assurance, asset rationalisation inc. use of options, exclusivity & 

off market acquisitions.

Back Office Alignment: Single approach to programme management, contractor procurement/ engagement, design stds, 

effective service engagement inc. with Planning,  project, risk and contract management inc. dispute resolution. Shared 

programme  & business support arrangements. Effective resource planning.

Asset Investment and Portfolio building : refresh of key performance/ investment criteria for holding/acquiring new assets, 

linking asset options to service requirements i.e. depot options

Procurement: Commonality and consistency of approach, localised or wide batch procurement , social value maximisation, 

Communication : build understanding of and then showcasing “Delivery” function 

Activity to be brought 

forward within 36 

months

P
age 161



22

Programme 
Delivery 

Directorate

• Strategic Projects

• General Fund Assets

S&ELCP – Programme Delivery Directorate - Local
Activity Delivery timeframe

Boston 
Borough 
Council

• Implement planned maintenance programme 
• Complete Flue Replacement works at the Crematorium 
• Direct and lead the delivery of Towns Fund projects  
• Support delivery of Depot options project – across BB and SHDC
• Develop Housing Growth model
• Possible enhancement of toilets depending on Changing Places funding

• Quarter 4 – 2023
• Quarter 4 - 2023
• 2022 and 2023
• Quarter 4 2023
• Quarter 3 – 2023
• 2022 and 2023

P
age 162



23

Programme 
Delivery 

Directorate

• Strategic Projects

• General Fund Assets

S&ELCP – Programme Delivery Directorate - Local
Activity Delivery timeframe

East 
Lindsey 
District 
Council

• Complete the Horncastle Hub
• Implement planned maintenance programme  
• Increase the occupancy of Kingfisher Caravan Park in line with projections
• Market Tedder Hall and Skegness Town Hall with a view to disposal in year
• Direct and lead the delivery of Towns Fund projects 
• Develop Housing Delivery Model
• Possible enhancement of toilets depending on Changing Places funding

• Quarter 3 – 2022
• Quarter 4 – 2023
• Quarter 4 – 2023
• Quarter 4 – 2023
• Quarter 4 - 2023
• Quarter 4 - 2023
• 2022 and 2023

P
age 163



24

Programme 
Delivery 

Directorate

• Strategic Projects

• General Fund Assets

S&ELCP – Programme Delivery Directorate - Local
Activity Delivery timeframe

South 
Holland 
District 
Council

• Review Leisure Centre/Pool provision
• Implement planned maintenance programme for 2021/22 and 2022/23
• Complete enhancement scheme at Moulton Park 
• Complete phases 2 and 3 of the Crease Drove Industrial Scheme 
• Re –site former drinking fountain in agreed location
• Complete Daffodil walk footpath upgrade
• Complete external redecoration works to Priory Road Offices (Modern Block and Block 4) 
• Support delivery of Depot options project – across BB and SHDC
• Support delivery of FEZ, Holbeach (ongoing) through leading jointly with LCC commercial negotiations. 
• Build new toilet block at Sheepmarket, Spalding
• Deliver Woodland options 
• Implement new Untidy Sites Policy 
• Delivery of Council-owned new properties 
• Lead an acquisitions programme and development plan for land in and around Chequers Yard. Holbeach

• Quarter 2 - 2022
• Quarter 4 - 2023
• Quarter 2 – 2022
• Quarter 4 – 2022
• Quarter 2 – 2022
• Quarter 2 – 2022
• Quarter 2 – 2022
• Quarter 4 - 2023
• ONGOING
• Quarter 3  - 2022
• Quarter 4 2023
• Quarter 1 2022
• ONGOING
• Quarter 3 – 2023

P
age 164



APPENDIX 8 

1 
 

 

 

Boston Borough Council  

Budget 2022/23 

Consultation Report  

Published  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 165



APPENDIX 8 

2 
 

Introduction to this consultation 

1. This report details the responses received for the Budget 2022/23 consultation 

undertaken between 20th January, 2022 and 16th February, 2022. 

 

2. The exercise was performed to seek residents’ views on the Council’s Budget 

proposals for 2022/23.  

Methodology 

3. A media release was issued to local newspapers to promote the consultation and 

social media activity was ongoing throughout the consultation period. 

 

4. A link to the electronic questionnaire was made available on the Council’s website 

and in the Boston Bulletin. Paper copies of the questionnaire were available on 

request. 

 

5. It should be noted that base data has been rounded to the nearest number  

(so may add up to between 99% and 101%). Where available this report details 

comparisons with the previous budget survey undertaken in 2021/22. 

Response Rate 

6. 16 electronic responses were received.  A decline of 30 responses when compared 

with the previous year’s budget consultation exercise undertaken in 2021/22. 

  

Page 166



APPENDIX 8 

3 
 

Results and Analysis  

7. All respondents responding to the consultation responded as ‘A Resident’. 

Council Tax 

8. All respondents were advised that Boston Borough Council’s current Council Tax 

levy for a Band D property was £197.91 per month (based on 10 monthly 

payments). The Government was allowing the Council to put its Council Tax up by a 

maximum of £5 next year (based on a Band D property).  The Council was 

therefore proposing a £4.95 increase for 2022/23 – an extra 9.5p per week for a 

Band D property. A 2.50% increase was proposed for all Council Bands. All 

respondents were asked their views on the proposal. The comparison chart below 

shows that 14% of all respondents agreed with increasing Council Tax to support 

the delivery of local services. This is a decrease of 8% when compared with the 

previous consultation exercise undertaken in 2021/22 when 22% of respondents 

agreed with increasing the Council Tax by £4.95. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

2
0

2
1

/
2

2
, 

2
2

%

2
0

2
1

/
2

2
, 

7
4

%

2
0

2
1

/
2

2
, 

4
%

2
0

2
2

/
2

3
, 

1
4

%

2
0

2
2

/
2

3
, 

8
6

%

2
0

2
2

/
2

3
, 

0
%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

a) I/We agree with increasing
Council Tax to support the delivery

of local services

b) I/We do not agree that Council
Tax should be increased

c) I/We have no view

. All respondents were asked their views on the proposal.  

Page 167



APPENDIX 8 

4 
 

9. Those respondents that did not agree with the proposed increase in Council Tax 

were asked why they did not agree. The majority of comments made were about 

the rise in Council Tax being too high and that residents would not be able to afford 

to pay it due to being on low incomes and other rising living costs. Some 

respondents felt that Council Tax had gone up but services had reduced. They also 

considered that the Council had done nothing in the town that benefitted residents 

during the last year and that an increase in Council Tax would not change the 

situation. Two respondents thought that the town was in a mess, streets were dirty 

and dark and the refuse collection service was unsatisfactory. One respondent 

mentioned pot holes which is not under the remit of the District Council but the 

County Council. A full list of their views are detailed below: 

• We received practically nothing in the last year. The town is a mess, putting 

it politely. Why are meetings being postponed - no indication of any 

problems. Councillors still getting paid I presume? Reception still closed - 

why are staff not working? 

• We pay enough 

• Need to cut Councillors’ payments to offset hike 

• The amount of houses being built should give you enough money to not keep 

putting Council Tax up, I am aware that half your money goes to Anglian 

water. The cost of living is rising and nothing is being done to help residents. 

• I think we already pay a lot. We have seen an increase in Council Tax every 

year. A lot of the issues could be resolved in a different way, for example 

opening hours for a recycling centre could be increased during work days. 

• I think that Council Tax in BBC is one of the higher ones in England already. 

People of Boston are on low incomes and another increase would push more 

people into the poverty. Furthermore currently BBC is doing absolutely 

nothing for its inhabitants. Streets are dirty and dark, refuse system is bad at 

best. This situation is highly unlikely to change after the Council Tax is 

increased 

• I feel that this increase is too much, especially when inflation is also rising 

and heating and electricity is also rising. There has to be a line drawn 

somewhere. 

• You already get enough and what is it actually used for? 

• The reduction of services, combined with reliance on the third sector to plug 

the gaps means taxpayers are effectively paying twice for the limited 

services they receive.  Whilst the rich get richer, the poor are propped up by 

handouts - middle Britain is picking up the cost. Make the money work for 

statutory services and stop wasting on vanity projects for members and 

senior offices personal recognition....the citizens have paid for it - yet are 

never rewarded....  Focus on the people you represent. 

• You increase the Council Tax, and doing nothing with the money. Look at the 

whole Carlton Road!!Holes, dirt, not enough bins for rubbish. The children 

play area is the worst part. Nothing happened. Then is Covid thing. People 

have no money, and you increase! That is a shame. Have still not enough 

money, put in pocket and do nothing with them. 

• I am on a state pension with all the gas, electric and food prices going up 

why do you want to completely wring me out? 

Page 168



APPENDIX 8 

5 
 

Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy 

10. All respondents were asked if they had any comments to make in respect of the  

draft Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy. Six comments were made which 

are listed below. The majority of them were general comments as oppose to 

comments about the Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy. 

• Imposing another increase in tax is not a solution. This creates and increases 

pressure on working class people or pensioners who don’t get support. 

Financially strong are not bothered and benefit claimants are not affected. A 

squeeze should be equal and effective. 

• Waste of time - no one taking any notice. Everything is still fine in Boston is 

it? 

• Pension contributions for Council staff……they should not rise.  Indeed cease 

if possible. If any member of the Council receives private medical cover it 

should cease this day. Why is the police precept rising?  It should remain the 

same. HOMS should be required to pay a 100% increase in Council Tax to 

reflect the number of residents. 

• Poorly prepared. 

• No comments, it's a shame that increase. 

• The PCC jumped up and down with glee with his increase last year and we 

still do not see any Police on the streets, the only service I receive is my bins 

emptied. Council offices are still closed. 

 

11. All respondents were given the opportunity to provide any ideas that they might  

have that could help the Council to reduce its expenditure or increase its income  

to support local services.  Some respondents suggested that the Council should do 

an internal spending review on staffing, councillors’ expenses and staff salaries. 

Three respondents considered that fly-tipping was a problem and suggested raising 

fines for those that were responsible. One respondent commented about vanity 

projects and another felt that the Council should stop the purple bin collection.  A 

full list of ideas and comments are detailed below: 

• Internal expenditure review like staffing. Poor performance of Council is 

widely known. Why not replace less efficient persons or other investment 

with efficient ones? 

• Spend some of the millions you have in savings. Have you not noticed things 

need doing in the town? 

• Sort out fly-tipping; have designated places other than tip to go to, as some 

do not have transport to get there. 

• Get rid of the purple bins they are useless. I might put mine out 3 maybe 4 

times a year same with blue bins. 

• Penalise fly-tippers 

• Make everyone pay some sort of Council Tax, no one should get away 

without paying it. 

• Fly-tipping minimum fine should be 100% of the cost of the clean-up PLUS 

100% PLUS vehicle used to be crushed. Scrap sold for income = strong 

deterrent. Free parking for Council staff should be cancelled unless parked in 

West Street Council property. Any bonus for Council staff simply doing their 

job should be scrapped. 

Page 169



APPENDIX 8 

6 
 

• Reduce vanity projects; make managers and members more accountable for 

failures. 

• Freeze Councillors expenses, PCC's and deputies wages and expenses. Do a 

thorough survey of office personnel and if most are still working from home 

you don't need them and let them go. Do you need all that office space in 

that building? Look at all the heating and lighting it has and how much it 

costs. I have had to cut down and so should you, I have to wear extra layers 

to keep warm so should all your staff. 

 

12. All respondents were advised that whilst capital resources were limited, the Council 

was keen to invest what resources it does have available to improve the local 

economy.  All respondents were asked how they believed that capital resources 

should be used to achieve this objective. Two respondents suggested that the 

Council should invest its money efficiently and economically. They also felt that the 

Council should avoid any high risk investments. Another respondent thought the 

Council should invest in Boston town centre by offering empty shops on the high 

street to small and independent retailers as oppose to large companies that could 

afford to invest themselves. The remaining comments received were about cleaning 

up the town, making the first hour free in car parks and making Boston a city would 

be too costly. A full list of comments/suggestions are included below:  

• Efficient and economical investment are necessary over blindly putting 

money into things. 

• Get the town cleaned up! 

• First hour free in car parks. 

• Difficult at this time of low interest rates. Also have to avoid high risk 

investments. No crypto currency. Blue chip companies. 100% safe 

investments…understand this produces lower interest but Council Tax payers 

funds need protection. 

• Invest in the town - but not to support companies that can afford to invest 

themselves.  Improve the offering of the little companies and independent 

retailers. 

• Stop throwing resources away paying out money to make us a city will cost 

too much. 

 

13. All respondents were given the opportunity to provide any other comments; a full 

list of these are detailed below:  

• Just above should be considered. 

• Waste of time - nothing gets done. Get rid of the so-called 'leader' Batemans 

comes to mind. 

• Why should taxpayers pay for police chief’s medical insurance and chauffeur? 

If taxpayers pay for anything other than the salary for the Chief Executive 

then such payments should cease this day. 

• Don't increase every year, you think that people are going to have money. 

They’re going to stop paying, because of that. 

• You cannot keep wringing us out, our money (income) is not keeping up with 

what you demand. There will be more homeless soon and then you will want 

even more money to deal with that. We are not cash cows here, remember, 

this is a low pay area. 

Page 170



APPENDIX 8 

7 
 

Respondent Profile 

 

14. 43% of all respondents were male, with the remaining 57% being female.  

 

15. 21% of all respondents considered they had a disability, with the remaining 79% 

considering they did not. 

 

16. The pie chart below shows that the most popular age groups to respond to the 

consultation were the ’25 to 44’ and ‘Over 65’ age groups with 36% each. It also 

shows that the ‘45 to 64’ age group was a popular age group to respond with 29%.  

 

 

 
 

 

Under 18, 0%
18 to 24, 0%

25 to 44, 36%

45 to 64, 29%

Over 65, 36%

Please tell us which age group you belong to

Page 171



This page is intentionally left blank



 COUNCIL TAX RESOLUTIONS                           APPENDIX A 
 

 
Council is recommended to approve the following resolutions: 

 
1 It is to be noted that on 16 December 2021 the Council calculated: - 
 

(a) the Council Tax Base 2022/23 for the District as 20,051 (item T in the formula 
in section 31B(3) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as amended) 
and; 

 
(b) Dwellings in those parts of the district to which a Parish precept relates as 

shown in Appendix B 
 
2. Calculate that the Council Tax requirement for the Council’s own purposes for 

2022/23 (excluding Parish precepts and Boston Special Expenses) is £4,067,547 
 
3 That the following amounts be calculated by the Council for the year 2022/23 in 

accordance with Sections 31 to 36 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 as 
amended (the Act): - 

 
(a) £43,591,330  

 
being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council  
estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(2) of the 
Act; 

   
(b) (£38,281,475) 

 
being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 
estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(3) of the 
Act; 

   
(c) £5,309,855  

 
being the amount by which the aggregate at 3(a) above 
exceeds the aggregate at 3(b) above, calculated by the 
Council, in accordance with Section 31A(4) of the Act, 
as its Council Tax requirement for the year (item R in 
the formula in Section 31a (4) of the Act); 

   
(d) £264.82  

 
being the amount at 3(c) divided by the amount at 1(a) 
(item T), calculated by the Council, in accordance with 
Section 31B(1) of the Act, as the basic amount of 
Council Tax for the year (including Parish precepts); 

   
(e) £1,242,308 being the aggregate amount of all special items 

(Including Parish precepts) referred to in Section 34(1) 
of the Act (see Appendix B); 

   
(f) £202.86 being the amount at 3(d) less the result given by 

dividing the amount at (e) by the amount at 1(a) 
calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 
34(2) of the Act, as the basic amount of council tax for 
the year for dwellings in those parts of its areas to 
which no special item relates; 

   
(g) The figures shown in Appendix C, being the amounts given by adding to 

the amount at 3(f) the amounts of the special item or items relating to 
dwellings in those parts of the district divided in each case by the amount at 
1(b), calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 34(3) of the Act, 
as the basic amounts of its Council Tax for the year for dwellings in those 
parts of its area to which one or more special items relate; 

Page 173



 COUNCIL TAX RESOLUTIONS                           APPENDIX A 
 

   
(h) The figures shown in Appendix D, being the amounts given by multiplying 

the amounts at 3(f) and 3(g) by the number which, in the proportion set out 
in Section 5(1) of the Act, is applicable to dwellings listed in a particular 
valuation band divided by the number which in that proportion is applicable 
to dwellings listed in valuation band D, calculated by the Council, in 
accordance with Section 36(1) of the Act as the amounts to be taken into 
account for the year in respect of categories of dwellings listed in different 
valuation bands. 

 
4. That it be noted that for the year 2022/23 the Lincolnshire County Council (LCC) and 

the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) for Lincolnshire have stated the following 
amounts in precepts issued to the Council, in accordance with Section 40 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992, for each of the categories of dwellings shown below:- 
 

Council Tax 
2022/23 A    B     C     D     E     F     G     H     

  £     £     £     £     £     £     £     £     
Lincolnshire 
County 
Council 954.78 1,113.91 1,273.04 1,432.17 1,750.43 2,068.69 2,386.95 2,864.34 

Police & 
Crime 
Commissioner 
for 
Lincolnshire 184.20 214.90 245.60 276.30 337.70 399.10 460.5 552.60 

Boston 
Borough 
Council 135.24 157.78 180.32 202.86 247.94 293.02 338.10 405.72 

Average 
Parish 
Including 
BTAC Special 
Expense Area 41.31 48.19 55.08 61.96 75.73 89.50 103.27 123.92 

Aggregate of 
Council Tax 
Requirements 1,315.53 1,534.78 1,754.04 1,973.29 2,411.80 2,850.31 3,288.82 3,946.58 

 
5. That having calculated the aggregate in each case the amounts at 3(h) and 4 above, 

the Council, in accordance with Section 30(2) of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992, hereby sets the amounts shown in Appendix E as the amount of Council Tax 
for 2022/23 of the categories of dwellings shown. 

 
6. Appendix F provides definitions for the formal Council Tax resolution. 

 
 

Page 174



Appendix B - PARISH COUNCIL TAX BASE REPORT 2022/23

TAX BASE PRECEPT BAND 'D' TAX BASE PRECEPT BAND 'D' % Change

2022/23 2022/23 2022/23 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22

PARISH £ £.p £ £.p

Algarkirk 102.00 8,837.40 86.64 102.50 8,837.40 86.22 0.49%

Amber Hill 87.00 3,674.00 42.23 87.60 3,499.00 39.94 5.73%

Benington 169.00 17,500.00 103.55 165.20 17,500.00 105.93 -2.25%

Bicker 281.00 35,500.00 126.33 276.70 25,550.00 92.34 36.81%

Butterwick 415.00 30,000.00 72.29 409.70 30,000.00 73.22 -1.27%

Fishtoft 2,222.00 31,249.00 14.06 2,167.30 32,739.00 15.11 -6.95%

Fosdyke 143.00 13,230.00 92.52 147.60 12,600.00 85.37 8.38%

Frampton 468.00 22,880.10 48.89 459.90 22,880.10 49.75 -1.73%

Freiston 331.00 32,500.00 98.19 329.30 32,500.00 98.69 -0.51%

Holland Fen with Brothertoft 200.00 3,250.00 16.25 197.00 3,250.00 16.50 -1.52%

Kirton 1,761.00 85,000.00 48.27 1,671.50 75,000.00 44.87 7.58%

Leverton 197.00 15,000.00 76.14 195.60 15,000.00 76.69 -0.72%

Old Leake 646.00 45,000.00 69.66 649.50 42,096.00 64.81 7.48%

Sutterton 538.00 29,767.50 55.33 528.60 29,767.00 56.31 -1.74%

Swineshead 1,019.00 43,640.00 42.83 979.60 33,756.00 34.46 24.29%

Wigtoft 150.00 11,091.50 73.94 149.20 10,211.00 68.44 8.04%

Wrangle 444.00 25,000.00 56.31 442.10 22,000.00 49.76 13.16%

Wyberton 1,281.00 56,325.00 43.97 1,156.90 50,875.00 43.98 -0.02%

Sub-Total: Parishes 10,454.00 509,444.50 48.73 10,115.80 468,060.50 46.27 5.32%

Boston Special Expense Area 9,597.00 732,864.00 76.36 9505.90 716,192.00 75.34 1.35%

Total 20,051.00 1,242,308.50 61.96 19,621.70 1,184,252.50 60.35 2.66%

2021/22 to 

2022/23

P
age 175



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Parish/Area £

Algakirk 289.50         

Amber Hill 245.09         

Benington 306.41         

Bicker 329.19         

Butterwick 275.15         

Fishtoft 216.92         

Fosdyke 295.38         

Frampton 251.75         

Freiston 301.05         

Holland Fen & Brothertoft 219.11         

Kirton 251.13         

Leverton 279.00         

Old Leake 272.52         

Sutterton 258.19         

Swineshead 245.69         

Wigtoft 276.80         

Wrangle 259.17         

Wyberton 246.83         

BTAC Special Expenses 279.22         

*Includes Boston Special Expenses

Appendix C - BBC plus Parishes Band D 2022/23

Page 177



This page is intentionally left blank



A B C D E F G H

Parish/Area £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Algakirk 160.83    193.00      225.17      257.33      289.50      353.83      418.17      482.50      579.00      

Amber Hill 136.16    163.39      190.63      217.86      245.09      299.55      354.02      408.48      490.18      

Benington 170.23    204.27      238.32      272.36      306.41      374.50      442.59      510.68      612.82      

Bicker 182.88    219.46      256.04      292.61      329.19      402.34      475.50      548.65      658.38      

Butterwick 152.86    183.43      214.01      244.58      275.15      336.29      397.44      458.58      550.30      

Fishtoft 120.51    144.61      168.72      192.82      216.92      265.12      313.33      361.53      433.84      

Fosdyke 164.10    196.92      229.74      262.56      295.38      361.02      426.66      492.30      590.76      

Frampton 139.86    167.83      195.81      223.78      251.75      307.69      363.64      419.58      503.50      

Freiston 167.25    200.70      234.15      267.60      301.05      367.95      434.85      501.75      602.10      

Holland Fen & 

Brothertoft 121.73    146.07      170.42      194.76      219.11      267.80      316.49      365.18      438.22      

Kirton 139.52    167.42      195.32      223.23      251.13      306.94      362.74      418.55      502.26      

Leverton 155.00    186.00      217.00      248.00      279.00      341.00      403.00      465.00      558.00      

Old Leake 151.40    181.68      211.96      242.24      272.52      333.08      393.64      454.20      545.04      

Sutterton 143.44    172.13      200.81      229.50      258.19      315.57      372.94      430.32      516.38      

Swineshead 136.49    163.79      191.09      218.39      245.69      300.29      354.89      409.48      491.38      

Wigtoft 153.78    184.53      215.29      246.04      276.80      338.31      399.82      461.33      553.60      

Wrangle 143.98    172.78      201.58      230.37      259.17      316.76      374.36      431.95      518.34      

Wyberton 137.13    164.55      191.98      219.40      246.83      301.68      356.53      411.38      493.66      

BTAC Special 

Expenses 155.12    186.15      217.17      248.20      279.22      341.27      403.32      465.37      558.44      

Appendix A

A B C D E F G H
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Linconshire County 

Council 795.65    954.78      1,113.91   1,273.04   1,432.17   1,750.43   2,068.69   2,386.95   2,864.34   

Lincolnshire PCC 153.50    184.20      214.90      245.60      276.30      337.70      399.10      460.50      552.60      

Appendix D - BBC & Parishes & BTAC Special Expense Area 2022/23 by Council Tax Band

* Band A 

with DBR

* Band A 

with DBR

Valuation Band

*  these figures are for band A properties where the occupier gets a Disabled Band Reduction

P
age 179



T
his page is intentionally left blank



A B C D E F G H

Parish/Area £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Algakirk 1,109.98   1,331.98   1,553.98   1,775.97   1,997.97   2,441.96   2,885.96   3,329.95   3,995.94   

Amber Hill 1,085.31   1,302.37   1,519.44   1,736.50   1,953.56   2,387.68   2,821.81   3,255.93   3,907.12   

Benington 1,119.38   1,343.25   1,567.13   1,791.00   2,014.88   2,462.63   2,910.38   3,358.13   4,029.76   

Bicker 1,132.03   1,358.44   1,584.85   1,811.25   2,037.66   2,490.47   2,943.29   3,396.10   4,075.32   

Butterwick 1,102.01   1,322.41   1,542.82   1,763.22   1,983.62   2,424.42   2,865.23   3,306.03   3,967.24   

Fishtoft 1,069.66   1,283.59   1,497.53   1,711.46   1,925.39   2,353.25   2,781.12   3,208.98   3,850.78   

Fosdyke 1,113.25   1,335.90   1,558.55   1,781.20   2,003.85   2,449.15   2,894.45   3,339.75   4,007.70   

Frampton 1,089.01   1,306.81   1,524.62   1,742.42   1,960.22   2,395.82   2,831.43   3,267.03   3,920.44   

Freiston 1,116.40   1,339.68   1,562.96   1,786.24   2,009.52   2,456.08   2,902.64   3,349.20   4,019.04   

Holland Fen & 

Brothertoft 1,070.88   1,285.05   1,499.23   1,713.40   1,927.58   2,355.93   2,784.28   3,212.63   3,855.16   

Kirton 1,088.67   1,306.40   1,524.13   1,741.87   1,959.60   2,395.07   2,830.53   3,266.00   3,919.20   

Leverton 1,104.15   1,324.98   1,545.81   1,766.64   1,987.47   2,429.13   2,870.79   3,312.45   3,974.94   

Old Leake 1,100.55   1,320.66   1,540.77   1,760.88   1,980.99   2,421.21   2,861.43   3,301.65   3,961.98   

Sutterton 1,092.59   1,311.11   1,529.62   1,748.14   1,966.66   2,403.70   2,840.73   3,277.77   3,933.32   

Swineshead 1,085.64   1,302.77   1,519.90   1,737.03   1,954.16   2,388.42   2,822.68   3,256.93   3,908.32   

Wigtoft 1,102.93   1,323.51   1,544.10   1,764.68   1,985.27   2,426.44   2,867.61   3,308.78   3,970.54   

Wrangle 1,093.13   1,311.76   1,530.39   1,749.01   1,967.64   2,404.89   2,842.15   3,279.40   3,935.28   

Wyberton 1,086.28   1,303.53   1,520.79   1,738.04   1,955.30   2,389.81   2,824.32   3,258.83   3,910.60   

BTAC Special 

Expenses 1,104.27   1,325.13   1,545.98   1,766.84   1,987.69   2,429.40   2,871.11   3,312.82   3,975.38   

Appendix A

A B C D E F G H
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Linconshire County 

Council 795.65      954.78      1,113.91   1,273.04   1,432.17   1,750.43   2,068.69   2,386.95   2,864.34   

Lincolnshire PCC 153.50      184.20      214.90      245.60      276.30      337.70      399.10      460.50      552.60      

Appendix D - BBC & Parishes & BTAC Special Expense Area 2022/23 by Council Tax Band

* Band A 

with DBR

* Band A 

with DBR

Valuation Band

*  these figures are for band A properties where the occupier gets a Disabled Band Reduction

P
age 181



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix F 

COUNCIL TAX RESOLUTION   -   DEFINITIONS 
 
 

The following notes detail the information contained in the formal Council Tax 
resolution at Appendix A (and in Appendices B to E). 
 
PARAGRAPH 
REFERENCE 

DEFINITION 

1 (a) The Council Tax Base for 2022/23 

1 (b)/App B The Council Tax Base for 2022/23 broken down by Parish. 
Appendix B also shows the amount that the parish is precepting 
from the district and the Band D figure for that level of precept. 

2 The amount raised for Boston Borough Council own use from 
Council Tax. It is the multiple of the tax base (1(a)) and Boston’s 
element of the band D Council tax (3 (f)). It excludes Boston 
Special Expenses.   

3(a) The estimated gross revenue expenditure for Boston Borough 
Council, plus parish precepts for 2022/23. 

3(b) The estimated gross revenue income for Boston Borough 
Council including use of balances and income from retained 
Non-Domestic Rates and Revenue Support Grant, for 2022/23. 

3(c) Estimated gross revenue expenditure (3a) less estimated gross 
revenue income (3b) equals the Council's Council Tax 
requirement for 2022/23. 

3(d) The basic amount of Council Tax for 2022/23 Boston Borough 
Council element plus the parish element (including any special 
levy) - for a Band D property. 

3(e) The total of parish precepts for 2022/23. 

3(f) The Boston Borough Council only element of the Council Tax for 
2022/23 (excluding parish element) for a Band D property. 
(Excludes Boston Special Expenses) 

3(g)/App C The Boston Borough Council element plus the parish element of 
the Council Tax for 2022/23, shown for each parish for a Band D 
property.  

3(h)/App D The Boston Borough Council element plus the parish element of 
the Council Tax for 2022/23, shown for each parish and for each 
Valuation Band.  

4 The Lincolnshire County Council and the Police & Crime 
Commissioner Lincolnshire elements of the Council Tax for 
2022/23 shown for each Valuation Band. 

5/App E The Lincolnshire County Council element plus the Police & 
Crime Commissioner Lincolnshire element plus the Boston 
Borough Council element plus the parish element of the Council 
Tax, shown for each parish and for each Valuation Band.  These 
are the gross amounts of the Council Tax bill for 2022/23. 

 

Page 183



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

REPORT TO: Boston Borough Council 

DATE: 7 March 2022 

SUBJECT: 

PURPOSE:  

Pay Policy Statement 2022/23 

To seek approval of the Pay Policy Statement for 2022/23 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Cllr Skinner 

REPORT OF: 

 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

Christine Marshall, Deputy Chief Executive – Corporate 

Development (Section 151 Officer) 

Anna Waddell HR Manager – Operations (PSPS) 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: N/A 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

SUMMARY 

Under section 38 of the Localism Act 2011, a pay policy statement is required to be produced 

annually.  This has been a requirement since 2012/13.   

The Pay Policy Statement for 2022/23 must be approved by Council, hence the reason for this 

report.  The Pay Policy Statement once approved must be published on the Council’s website as 

near to 31 March 2022 as possible. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the Pay Policy Statement 2022/23 (at Appendix A) be approved. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To comply with the Localism Act 2011 requirements. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

None – this is a legal requirement. 

 

 

 

Page 185

Agenda Item 4



1. BACKGROUND 

 

1.1. Under Section 30 of the Localism Act 2011, a pay policy statement is required to be 

produced annually.  This has been a requirement since 2012/13. 

 

1.2. A Pay Policy Statement for a financial year must set out the Authorities policies for the 

financial year relating to; 

• The remuneration of Chief Officers 

• The remuneration of the lowest paid employees 

• The relationship between the Chief Officers remuneration and that of other officers. 

 

1.3. The Pay Policy Statement is for the financial year 2022/23 and can be seen at Appendix A. 

 

1.4. The Pay Policy Statement for 2022/23 must be approved by Council hence the reason for 

this report.  The Authority may amend the policy during the period the policy covers. 

 

1.5. The statement must include the authorities policies relating to: 

• The level and elements of remuneration of Chief Officers 

• Remuneration of Chief Officers on recruitment 

• Increases and additions to remuneration for Chief Officers 

• The use of performance related pay for Chief Officers 

• The use of bonuses for Chief Officers 

• The approach to the payment of Chief Officers on their ceasing to hold office under, or 

to be employed by the authority, and 

• The publication of and access to information relating to remuneration of Chief 

Officers. 

 

1.6. The term ‘remuneration’ covers; 

• The Chief Officers salary or, in the case of Chief Officers engaged by the authority 

under a contract for services 

• Payment made by the authority to the Chief Officers for those services 

• Any bonuses payable to the authority to the Chief Officers 

• Any charges, fees of allowances payable by the authority to the Chief Officers 

• Any benefit in kind to which the Chief Officers are entitled as a result of the Chief 

Officers office or employment 

• Any increase in the Chief Officers pension entitlement where the increase or 

enhancement is as a result of a resolution of the authority, and 

• Any amounts payable by the authority to the Chief Officers ceasing to hold office 

under or employed by the authority other than amounts that may be payable by virtue 

or any enactment. 

 

1.7. The definition of Chief Officers (as set out in section 43(2)) is not limited to the Head of 

Paid Service or Statutory Chief Officers.  It also includes those who report directly to the 

Head of Paid Service or Statutory Chief Officers (non-statutory Chief Officers) and those 

who report directly into non-statutory Chief Officers. 

 

Page 186



1.8. A Pay Policy Statement for a financial year may also set the Authorities policies for the 

financial year relating to the other terms and conditions applying to the authorities Chief 

Officers. 

 

1.9. The Pay Policy Statement, once approved must be published on the Council’s website as 

near to 31 March 2022 as possible. 

     1.10 The Pay Policy Statement includes details of the South East Lincolnshire Council Partnership 

and includes the remuneration information of Chief Officers Shared Across the Partnership 

including those who are not directly employed by the Council. 

2. REPORT 

 

2.1. See Appendix A the Pay Policy Statement 2022/23 

 

 

3. CONCLUSION 

 

3.1. In order to ensure compliance with the Localism Act 2011 the recommendations should be 

followed that the Pay Policy Statement 2022/23 should be approved and published. 

 

EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

It is a legal requirement to ensure that a Local Authority has published a Pay Policy Statement. 
 
 
IMPLICATIONS 

SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL’S PARTNERSHIP 

Chief Officer salaries across the Partnership have been included in the Pay Policy Statement, 

including those who are not directly employed by the Council. 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

The pay decisions are made with the intention of supporting the Council’s corporate priority of 

providing the right services at the right time in the right way by ensuring the recruitment of high 

calibre individuals to help deliver the corporate vision. 

STAFFING 

This report is a statement of facts with regards to matters relating to Pay. 

CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

It is a legal requirement to ensure that the Authority has a pay Policy Statement and that it is 

published as near as possible to 31 March. 

DATA PROTECTION 

No individual post holders are named in this document.  All remuneration information is published 

in accordance with the Local Government Transparency Code 2015 and the Localism Act 2011. 

 

Page 187



FINANCIAL 

None 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 

It is a legal requirement to ensure that the Authority has a Pay Policy Statement and that it is 

published as near to 31 March as possible. 

 
STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

No consultation undertaken 

REPUTATION 

None 

CONTRACTS 

None 

CRIME AND DISORDER 

None 

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

The pay decisions made are fair, equitable and transparent. 

HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

None 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

None 

ACRONYMS 

None 

 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A Pay Policy Statement 2022/23 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 

in the production of this report. 

 

 

Page 188



CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

Full council have approved the Publication for the Pay Policy Statement annually since 2012/13. 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Anna Waddell, HR Manager – Operations (PSPS) 

Signed off by: Christine Marshall, Deputy Chief Executive-

Corporate Development (Section 151 Officer) 

Approved for publication: None 

 

 

Page 189



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 
Boston Borough Council 

 
Pay Policy Statement 2022 

 

 1 

         

This statement will be approved by the Council each year annually by the end 
of March. Any changes to this statement should be approved by Council.  
 
Overview 
 
Each local authority has the autonomy to take its own decisions on pay and 
pay policies. The 2021/22 statement reflects current practice and existing 
policies at Boston Borough Council. 
 
Legislation 
  
Section 38 of the Localism Act 2011 requires local authorities to produce and 
publish a Pay Policy Statement for each financial year.  
 
Policy Statement 
 
We are committed to providing quality public services that provide value for 
money for our residents. In order to do this we must employ high quality staff 
and reward them appropriately and fairly. In today’s challenging economic 
climate we must also ensure that we control our employment costs. 
 
Remuneration of Senior Officers 
 
The Chief Officer Employment Panel makes recommendations to Full Council 
with regards to the appointment of the Head of Paid Service, Monitoring 
Officer and Section 151 Officer, statutory posts currently held by the Chief 
Executive, Assistant Director – Governance and Deputy Chief Executive – 
Corporate Development respectively.  No offer of appointment can be made 
until the proposed appointment has been approved by the Full Council and 
until notice of the proposed appointment has been given by the Proper Officer 
to the Cabinet Members and the Leader has not reported any material well-
founded objections within the time given for response. 
 
Full Council should be offered the opportunity to vote before large salary 
packages are offered in respect of a new appointment. The Secretary of State 
considers that £100,000 is the right level for that threshold to be set. For this 
purpose, salary packages should include salary, any bonuses, fees or 
allowances routinely payable to the appointee and any benefits in kind to 
which the officer is entitled as a result of their employment.  
 
Information on the remuneration of senior officers can be found in the annual 
statement of accounts and under the Transparency Agenda on the Council’s 
website.  
 
 
 
 

Page 191



Appendix A 
Boston Borough Council 

 
Pay Policy Statement 2022 

 

 2 

Chief Executive Remuneration 
 
The nationally agreed terms and conditions of Chief Executive/Head of Paid 
Service are generally determined by the Joint Negotiating Committee (JNC) 
for Chief Executives with variation at a local level.  
 
The Council have adopted a set of local terms and conditions for the 
workforce which are supplemented by those set out for Chief Executive’s 
under the Joint Negotiating Committee for Local Authority Chief Executive’s 
National Salary framework & Conditions of Service Handbook. 
 
In 2021 As part of the formation of the SELCP, the Chief Executive pay 
grading was reviewed, in light of the additional responsibilities incurred by 
undertaking the duties of Chief Executive across three Local Authorities.  The 
review took into consideration comparable data on Chief Executive salaries at 
comparative Local Government Employers. 
 
The salary range for the Chief Executive is £116,377 to £143,054. An 
increase of 1.5% for Chief Executives and was agreed by the JNC and 
applied from 1 April 2021. 
 
The actual salary paid to the Chief Executive is published annually in the 
Statement of Accounts. Salary increases are subject to a pay review every 
two years. 
 
The level of remuneration set for the post of Chief Executive encompasses 
consideration of a number of elements including the size of the organisation 
and the population to which services are delivered and a number of other 
factors including market conditions.  
 
There are currently no provisions for bonus or performance related pay 
outside of the policies set out above.  
 
Under Section 113 of the Local Government Act 1974 The post of Chief 
Executive, employed by East Linsey District Council is placed at the disposal 
of South Holland District Council and Boston Borough Council to undertake 
the Statutory, strategic and operational duties designated by their role. The 
proportion of time undertaking duties for each individual Council in the SELCP 
is; 
 
SHDC – 31% 
ELDC – 46% 
BBC – 23% 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 192



Appendix A 
Boston Borough Council 

 
Pay Policy Statement 2022 

 

 3 

Chief Officer Remuneration (including deputies)  
 
Any cost of living increases are normally given after notification from the Joint 
Negotiating Committee (JNC) for Chief Officers once agreed at a national 
level.  
 
The Council have adopted a set of local terms and conditions for the whole 
workforce which are supplemented by those set out for Chief Officers under 
the Joint Negotiating Committee for Local Authority Chief Officers National 
Salary framework & Conditions of Service Handbook.  
 
There are currently no provisions for bonus or performance related pay. 
Additional pay will only be paid in exceptional circumstances where significant 
additional work has to be undertaken outside of the course of normal duties.  
 
The Chief Officers are identified as the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief 
Executives and for the purposes of this Policy Assistant Directors. 
 
The salary range for the appointed Chief Officers is £75,884 to £143,053. An 
increase of 1.5% for Chief Officers and was agreed by the JNC and applied 
from 1 April 2021. The pay increase was applicable to Deputy Chief 
Executives.   
 
The actual salaries paid to Chief Officers are published annually in the 
Statement of Accounts under the transparency agenda. Salary increases are 
subject to a pay review every two years 
 
Under Section 113 of the Local Government Act 1974 all Chief Officers 
employed by Boston Borough Council are placed at the disposal of South 
Holland District Council and East Lindsey Council to undertake the Statutory, 
strategic and operational duties designated by their role. The proportion of 
time undertaking duties for each individual Council in the SELCP is; 
 
SHDC – 31% 
ELDC – 46% 
BBC – 23% 
 
Joint Authority Duties  
 
Under Section 113 of the Local Government Act 1974, where a senior officer 
takes up a post shared with one or more authorities the salary costs (including 
on-costs) are to be shared with each authority.  
 
The share will depend on each circumstance.  
 
 
 
 

Page 193



Appendix A 
Boston Borough Council 

 
Pay Policy Statement 2022 

 

 4 

Chief Officer Benefits 

The value of allowances, car loans and private medical insurance are 
categorised as 'Benefits in Kind' and are subject to tax and National Insurance 
via the payroll. 

The value of private medical insurance available to Chief Officers across the 
SELCP at the time of this policy ranges from £261.96 per annum to £571.20 
per annum and the cost is dependent on the individual’s personal 
circumstances.  The level of health care provision is consistent across all 
roles. 

The Council operates a Pool Car scheme which is accessible to all employed 
Chief Officers. 

Returning Officer Fees 
 

The fees and charges for European, UK Parliamentary and County Council 
elections are set by external bodies at each relevant election however, there 
are no express statutory provisions governing fees payable to Returning 
Officers for local government elections.  
 
Historically, the setting of fees for the administration of District and Parish 
elections have therefore been the responsibility of the Democratic Services 
Manager based on the Lincolnshire county wide scale of fees and reviewed 
on an annual basis.  
 

The Returning Officer’s fees are regarded as a special responsibility payment 
in relation to the independent duties carried out. They are personal to the 
Returning Officer, and in addition to salary, for performing the duties which a 
Returning Officer is required to perform.  
 
This Council’s Returning Officer is the Deputy Chief Executive – Growth. 
 
The Returning Officer fees are as follows: 
 

• County & District – per contested division/ward - £200 per division/ward 
plus £15 per 1000 electors or part thereof per division/ward  

• County & District – per uncontested division/ward - £66 per division/ward  

• Parish – per contested parish/parish ward - £53 per parish/parish ward 
plus £18 per 500 electors or part thereof per parish/parish ward 

• Parish – per uncontested parish/parish ward - £21.50 per parish / parish 
ward  

• Parish – where DRO full powers appointed - £11 (per contested 
parish/parish ward) £5.50 (per uncontested parish/parish ward) 

 
 

Page 194



Appendix A 
Boston Borough Council 

 
Pay Policy Statement 2022 

 

 5 

Employment of officers in receipt of a local government pension scheme 
payment and/or redundancy/severance pay from this or another 
authority  
 
Any appointment to a post at Boston Borough Council is made upon merit and 
is subject to the normal pre-employment checks undertaken for all prospective 
employees.  
 
Provisions relating to redundancy pay in the Redundancy Payments 
(Continuity of Employment in Local Government, etc.) (Modification) Order 
1999 still applies.  
 
Contract for Services 
 
All of the facts will be taken into account where a former employee is put 
forward or puts themselves forward for a contract for services. Where work is 
sought under a contract for service from officers in receipt of severance pay 
from this authority each situation will be judged upon merit however such a 
contract would only be offered in exceptional circumstances.   
 
Other posts may be filled under a contract for services where a business case 
exists for doing so. Due regard should be paid to the requirements of Her 
Majesty’s Revenues & Customs and IR35 regulations and the particular 
requirements on public sector employers when making any such 
arrangements. Any appointment will be dealt with on a case by case basis. 
The ‘recovery regulations’ will need to be considered in any such decision – 
see the section on ‘Recovery Regulations’ for more information.  
 
Job evaluation and pay bands 

Employees, covered by the National Joint Council (NJC) for Local 
Government Services, as set out in the 'Green Book' have their basic pay 
grade determined by a job evaluation scheme (using the Gauge system) 
which ensures that different jobs having the same value are paid at the same 
rate/within the same pay band. 

The "job score" determines the pay band for the post within which there is 
provision for progression by way of annual increments, until the top of the pay 
scale is reached. 
 
Boston Borough Council has defined an updated pay scale structure for Chief 
Officers. 
 
Workforce Remuneration  
 
We have adopted a set of local terms and conditions for the workforce which 
are supplemented by those set out under the ‘Green Book’ (National 
Agreement on Pay & Conditions of Service – National Joint Council for Local 

Page 195



Appendix A 
Boston Borough Council 

 
Pay Policy Statement 2022 

 

 6 

Government Services). Local terms will override terms in the Green Book as 
set out in Boston Borough Council Terms & Conditions of Service 2014. 
 
Any benefits associated with the post are set out in the Boston Borough 
Council Terms and Conditions of Service 1st April 2014.  
 
We have a pay and grading structure which consists of a single pay scale with 
broad-banded grades ranging from Grade 1 to Grade 8.. All posts below Chief 
Officers have and continue to be evaluated using the Local Government 
Single Status Job Evaluation Scheme (LGJES). Individual jobs are allocated a 
number of points following evaluation and allocated a grade according to the 
number of points.  
 
Starting salaries are normally at probationary point of the relevant pay grade 
unless market or other relevant factors such as skills and experience exist to 
create a business case to pay at a higher point within the grade. Any such 
business case should be recorded in writing and retained. 
 
Upper band points are available where an agreed criterion is met related to 
market forces and recruitment/retention matters. The relevant policies should 
be complied with before any upper band payments can be made. 
 
Any cost of living increases are normally given after notification from the 
National Joint Council for Local Government Services once agreed at a 
national level.  
 
Lowest Pay 
 
The Council opted to pay the equivalent of the Voluntary Living Wage, as 
determined by the Living Wage Foundation (LWF), with effect from 1st April 
2021 and have applied enhancements at the lower end of payscale to ensure 
that the lowest paid employees receive at least the Living Wage Foundation 
rate.   
 
The LWF rate of £9.50 was announced in November 2020 and was 
implemented in line with organisational incremental increases on 1 April 2021. 
 
In November 2021 the new LWF rate of £9.90 was announced.  Subject to 
Council approval, this increase will be applied to all BBC employees by an 
enhancement, where the National Joint Council Spinal Column Point rate is 
below the new LWF rate of pay. 
 
The Council does not set a formula for the relationship between the lowest 
and highest paid employees. Rather it monitors the levels of pay to ensure 
value for money, fair pay and market conditions.  
 
 
 

Page 196



Appendix A 
Boston Borough Council 

 
Pay Policy Statement 2022 

 

 7 

Apprenticeships  
 
The Apprentice rate at the Council is £4.30 per hour for the first 12 months. 
Beyond 12 months the rate for an apprentice is the National Minimum Wage 
for their age group. 
 
Pay multiples 
 
The Chief Executives pay remains at approximately 5.22 times the median 
average full time equivalent pay at the Council (as at January 2022).  
 
The Council does not have a policy to reach a specific pay multiple across the 
workforce.  
 
The use of a single pay spine and an analytical job evaluation scheme 
provides pay transparency across the workforce and set levels of 
remuneration.  
 
Gender Pay Gap 
 
From 31 March 2018 the Council were required to publish their annual gender 
pay gap figures.   
 
Full details of the published gender pay gap figures are available in the 
Council’s Gender Pay Gap Report.  The March 2021 Gender Pay Gap is due 
to be submitted to the Government’s website and published on the Council’s 
website by 31st March 2022. 
  
Honorarium/Acting Up 
 
Where temporary additional duties/responsibilities are given to an existing 
employee, consideration of payment of an honorarium is usually undertaken.  
 
The amount payable is authorised by the relevant Head of Service following 
an assessment of the exact duties/responsibilities and may be a percentage 
of the difference between the salary of the employee and the post that they 
are covering if only part of the duties are being undertaken or a full increase to 
a higher salary if all duties are being undertaken.  
 
Honoraria are only to be used on a temporary basis and must be reviewed 
regularly to ensure appropriateness.  
 
Special responsibility payments 
 
Additional payments may be made in addition to basic salary for additional job 
duties which may not always form part of the core job role. Where these do 
form part of the core duties of the role they will be included and evaluated 

Page 197



Appendix A 
Boston Borough Council 

 
Pay Policy Statement 2022 

 

 8 

under the relevant Job Evaluation Scheme where available rather than a 
continued supplement being payable.  
 
Any such payments are based upon an assessment of responsibility, market 
factors and/or a % of time spent on any such duties and are temporary being 
reviewed at least annually, if not more frequently. 
 
 
 
 
 
Pay flexibility  
 
Where necessary the use of ‘market supplements’ is used to deal with any 
recruitment or retention difficulties. Such payments may be ongoing or a ‘one-
off’.  
 
The use of such practices only applies where a business case has been 
prepared and signed off by the relevant director in conjunction with finance 
approval.  
 
Any ongoing supplements should be reviewed regularly and at least every 3 
years, to ensure there is still a business case to continue payment. 
Employment contracts should be explicit in this regard.  
 
Early termination of employment  
 
See the Redundancy & Reorganisation Policy and the Pensions & Retirement 
Policy for more information. Severance payments may be made where the 
decision is in the best interests of the Council. Where these are outside of the 
budgetary framework the appropriate approval must be sought.  
 
Currently any severance packages of over £100,000 (including pay in lieu of 
notice, redundancy pay, pension entitlements, holiday pay, fees or allowances 
paid) should be approved by Full Council and reported in this detail.  
 
Ex gratia payments 
 
Ex gratia payments may be made in exceptional cases and could be made in 
respect of business continuity or out of pocket costs to employees the normal 
Council procedures relating to budgets are followed in any such cases and 
approval made by the relevant CMT member.   
 
Payments of arrears in respect of Job Evaluation or other re-grading 
 
In line with the Council’s Job Evaluation Scheme where a person is appointed 
to a new position or substantive and permanent post an evaluation should be 
undertaken after six months service within the role.  

Page 198



Appendix A 
Boston Borough Council 

 
Pay Policy Statement 2022 

 

 9 

 
This is to allow the appropriate grade for the post to be established in a timely 
manner. Where an evaluation results in a grade increase the value of the 
arrears will be limited to a period not exceeding 3 years.   
 
Pension provision 
 
All employees are eligible to join the Local Government Pension Scheme. The 
Scheme requires contributions from employees based upon their earnings 
and from 1st April 2014 is a career average scheme.  
 
The employee pension contributions paid is between 5.5% and 12.5% 
depending on their salary.  The more an employee earns the higher their 
pension contribution rate.  
 
The employer contributes a percentage of pay to the pension fund. The 
Council’s current contribution rate is 17.7%.   
 
Anna Waddell 
HR Manager – Operations 
13 February 2022 
 
  

Page 199



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 

REPORT TO: Council 

DATE: 7th March 2022 

SUBJECT:  APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS 

KEY DECISION: N/A 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Cllr Jonathon Noble, Portfolio Holder for Finance 

REPORT OF: 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

Deputy Chief Executive (Corporate & Development) & S151 

Samantha Knowles, Assistant Director - Finance 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: All 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

SUMMARY 

The current auditor appointment arrangements cover the period up to and including the audit 

of the 2022/23 accounts. 

Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited (“PSAA”) is now undertaking a procurement for the 

next appointing period, covering audits for 2023/24 to 2027/28. All local government bodies 

need to make important decisions about their external audit arrangements from 2023/24. They 

have options to arrange their own procurement and make the appointment themselves or in 

conjunction with other bodies, or they can join and take advantage of the national collective 

scheme administered by PSAA. 

 

Recommendation(s) to Full Council: 

1. To accept Public Sector Audit Appointments’ invitation to opt into the sector-led option for 

the appointment of external auditors to principal local government and police bodies for five 

financial years from 1 April 2023. 

2. That delegated authority be given to the Section 151 officer (or deputy in their absence) to 

communicate the willingness of the council to join the scheme, led by PSAA and to enter 

into the scheme after a satisfactory examination / negotiation of the proposed terms & 

conditions is concluded. 

 

 

 

Page 201

Agenda Item 5



REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

The national offer provides the appointment of an independent auditor with limited 

administrative cost to the council. By joining the scheme, the council would be acting with other 

councils to optimise the opportunity to influence the market that a national procurement 

provides.    

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

The Council elects not to join the national procurement exercise and opts to appoint its own 

external auditor under the Act. (Not Recommended). 

 

1. BACKGROUND 

Procurement of External Audit for the period 2023/24 to 2027/28 

1.1. The current auditor appointment arrangements cover the period up to and including the 

audit of the 2022/23 accounts. At its Council meeting on 21st November 2016, the Council 

opted into the ‘appointing person’ national auditor appointment arrangements established 

by PSAA for the period covering the accounts for 2018/19 to 2022/23.   

 

1.2. Under the Local Government Audit & Accountability Act 2014 (“the Act”), the council is 

required to appoint an auditor to audit its accounts for each financial year.  The council has 

three options;  

• To appoint its own auditor, which requires it to follow the procedure set out in the Act.  

• To act jointly with other authorities to procure an auditor following the procedures in the 
Act.  

• To opt in to the national auditor appointment scheme administered by a body designated 
by the Secretary of State as the ‘appointing person’.  The body currently designated for 
this role is PSAA.  

 

1.3. In order to opt in to the national scheme, a council must make a decision at a meeting of the 

Full Council.   

 

1.4. PSAA is now undertaking a procurement for the next appointing period, covering audits for 

2023/24 to 2027/28. All local government bodies need to make important decisions about 

their external audit arrangements from 2023/24. They have options to arrange their own 

procurement and make the appointment themselves or in conjunction with other bodies, or 

they can join and take advantage of the national collective scheme administered by PSAA. 

 

1.5. This report concludes that the sector-wide procurement conducted by PSAA will produce 

better outcomes and will be less burdensome for the Council than a procurement 

undertaken locally because: 

• collective procurement reduces costs for the sector and for individual authorities 
compared to a multiplicity of smaller local procurements; 

Page 202



• if it does not use the national appointment arrangements, the Council will need to 
establish its own auditor panel with an independent chair and independent members to 

oversee a local auditor procurement and ongoing management of an audit contract; 

• it is the best opportunity to secure the appointment of a qualified, registered auditor - 
there are only nine accredited local audit firms, and a local procurement would be 
drawing from the same limited supply of auditor resources as PSAA’s national 
procurement; and 

• supporting the sector-led body offers the best way of to ensuring there is a continuing 
and sustainable public audit market into the medium and long term. 

 
2. The Appointed Auditor  

The auditor appointed at the end of the procurement process will undertake the statutory audit 
of accounts and Best Value assessment of the council in each financial year, in accordance with 
all relevant codes of practice and guidance.  The appointed auditor is also responsible for 
investigating questions raised by electors and has powers and responsibilities in relation to Public 
Interest Reports and statutory recommendations.   

The auditor must act independently of the council and the main purpose of the procurement 
legislation is to ensure that the appointed auditor is sufficiently qualified and independent.  

The auditor must be registered to undertake local audits by the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) 
and must employ authorised Key Audit Partners to oversee the work. As the report below sets 
out there is currently a shortage of registered firms and Key Audit Partners.  

Auditors are regulated by the FRC, which will be replaced by a new body with wider powers, the 
Audit, Reporting and Governance Authority (ARGA) during the course of the next audit contract.  

Councils therefore have very limited influence over the nature of the audit services they are 
procuring, the nature and quality of which are determined or overseen by third parties.  

  
3. Appointment by the council itself or jointly  

The Council may elect to appoint its own external auditor under the Act, which would require 
the council to;  

• Establish an independent auditor panel to make a stand-alone appointment. The auditor 
panel would need to be set up by the Council itself, and the members of the panel must be 
wholly or a majority of independent members as defined by the Act. Independent members 
for this purpose are independent appointees, excluding current and former elected 
members (or officers) and their close families and friends. This means that elected members 
will not have a majority input to assessing bids and choosing to which audit firm to award a 
contract for the Council’s external audit.  

• Manage the contract for its duration, overseen by the Auditor Panel.   

Alternatively, the Act enables the Council to join with other authorities to establish a joint auditor 
panel. Again, this will need to be constituted of wholly or a majority of independent appointees. 

Further legal advice would be required on the exact constitution of such a panel having regard 
Page 203



to the obligations of each Council under the Act and the Council would need to liaise with other 
local authorities to assess the appetite for such an arrangement. 

 
4. The national auditor appointment scheme 

 PSAA is specified as the ‘appointing person’ for principal local government under the 
 provisions of the Act and the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015. PSAA let 
 five-year audit services contracts in 2017 for the first appointing period, covering audits of the 
 accounts from 2018/19 to 2022/23. It is now undertaking the work needed to invite eligible 
 bodies to opt in for the next appointing period, from the 2023/24 audit onwards, and to 
 complete a procurement for audit services. PSAA is a not-for-profit organisation whose costs 
 are around 4% of the scheme with any surplus distributed back to scheme members.   

In summary the national opt-in scheme provides the following: 

• the appointment of a suitably qualified audit firm to conduct audits for each of the five 
financial years commencing 1 April 2023; 

• appointing the same auditor to other opted-in bodies that are involved in formal 
collaboration or joint working initiatives to the extent this is possible with other constraints; 

• managing the procurement process to ensure both quality and price criteria are satisfied. 
PSAA has sought views from the sector to help inform its detailed procurement strategy; 

• ensuring suitable independence of the auditors from the bodies they audit and managing any 
potential conflicts as they arise during the appointment period; 

• minimising the scheme management costs and returning any surpluses to scheme members; 

• consulting with authorities on auditor appointments, giving the Council the opportunity to 
influence which auditor is appointed; 

• consulting with authorities on the scale of audit fees and ensuring these reflect scale, 
complexity, and audit risk; and 

• ongoing contract and performance management of the contracts once these have been let. 

 
5. Pressures in the current local audit market and delays in issuing opinions  

Much has changed in the local audit market since audit contracts were last awarded in 2017. 

 At that time the audit market was relatively stable, there had been few changes in audit     
 requirements, and local audit fees had been reducing over a long period. 98% of those bodies 
 eligible opted into the national scheme and attracted very competitive bids from audit firms. 
 The resulting audit contracts took effect from 1 April 2018. 

During 2018 a series of financial crises and failures in the private sector led to questioning about 
the role of auditors and the focus and value of their work. Four independent reviews were 
commissioned by Government: Sir John Kingman’s review of the Financial Reporting Council 
(FRC), the audit regulator; the Competition and Markets Authority review of the audit market; 
Sir Donald Brydon’s review of the quality and effectiveness of audit; and Sir Tony Redmond’s 
review of local authority financial reporting and external audit. The recommendations are now 
under consideration by Government, with the clear implication that significant reforms will 

follow. A new audit regulator (ARGA) is to be established, and arrangements for system 
Page 204



leadership in local audit are to be introduced. Further change will follow as other 
recommendations are implemented. 

 The Kingman review has led to an urgent drive for the FRC to deliver rapid, measurable 
improvements in audit quality. This has created a major pressure for audit firms to ensure full 
compliance with regulatory requirements and expectations in every audit they undertake. By 
the time firms were conducting 2018/19 local audits during 2019, the measures they were 
putting in place to respond to a more focused regulator  were clearly visible. To deliver the 
necessary improvements in audit quality, firms were requiring their audit teams to undertake 
additional work to gain deeper levels of assurance. However, additional work requires more 
time, posing a threat to the firms’ ability to complete all their audits by the target date for 
publication of audited accounts. Delayed opinions are not the only consequence of the FRC’s 
drive to improve audit quality. Additional audit work must also be paid for. As a result, many 
more fee variation claims have been needed than in prior years.  

This situation has been accentuated by growing auditor recruitment and retention challenges, 
the complexity of local government financial statements and increasing levels of technical 
challenges as bodies explore innovative ways of developing new or enhanced income streams to 
help fund services for local people. These challenges have increased in subsequent audit years, 
with Covid-19 creating further significant pressure for finance and audit teams.  

None of these problems is unique to local government audit. Similar challenges have  played out 
in other sectors, where increased fees and disappointing responses to  tender invitations have 
been experienced during the past two years. 

 
6. The invitation 

 

PSAA is now inviting the Council to opt in for the second appointing period, for 2023/24 to 

2027/28, along with all other eligible authorities. Based on the level of opt-ins it will enter into 

contracts with appropriately qualified audit firms and appoint a suitable firm to be the 

Council’s auditor. Details relating to PSAA’s invitation are provided in Appendix A to this report  

 
7. The next audit procurement 

The prices submitted by bidders through the procurement will be the key determinant of the 
value of audit fees paid by opted-in bodies. PSAA will: 

• seek to encourage realistic fee levels and to benefit from the economies of scale 
associated with procuring on behalf of a significant number of bodies; 

• continue to pool scheme costs and charge fees to opted-in bodies in accordance with the 
published fee scale as amended following consultations with scheme members and other 
interested parties (pooling means that everyone within the scheme will benefit from the 

Page 205



prices secured via a competitive procurement process – a key tenet of the national 
collective scheme); 

• continue to minimise its own costs, around 4% of scheme costs, and as a not-for-profit 
company will return any surplus funds to scheme members. In 2019 it returned a total 
£3.5million to relevant bodies and in 2021 a further £5.6million was returned.  

PSAA will seek to encourage market sustainability in its procurement. Firms will be able to bid for 
a variety of differently sized contracts so that they can match their available resources and risk 
appetite to the contract for which they bid. They will be required to meet appropriate quality 
standards and to reflect realistic market prices in their tenders, informed by the scale fees and 
the supporting information provided about each audit. Where regulatory changes are in train 
which affect the amount of audit work suppliers must undertake, firms will be informed as to 
which developments should be priced into their bids.  

The scope of a local audit is fixed. It is determined by the Code of Audit Practice (currently 
published by the National Audit Office)1, the format of the financial statements (specified by 
CIPFA/LASAAC) and the application of auditing standards regulated by the FRC. These factors 
apply to all local audits irrespective of whether an eligible body decides to opt into PSAA’s national 
scheme or chooses to make its own separate arrangements. The requirements are mandatory; 
they shape the work auditors undertake and have a bearing on the actual fees required. 

There are currently nine audit providers eligible to audit local authorities and other relevant 
bodies under local audit legislation. This means that a local procurement exercise would seek 
tenders from the same firms as the national procurement exercise, subject to the need to 
manage any local independence issues. Local firms cannot be invited to bid. Local procurements 
must deliver the same audit scope and requirements as a national procurement, reflecting the 

auditor’s statutory  responsibilities. 

 
8. Assessment of options and officer recommendation  

If the Council did not opt in there would be a need to establish an independent auditor panel to 
make a stand-alone appointment. The auditor panel would need to be set up by the Council 
itself, and the members of the panel must be wholly or a majority of independent members as 
defined by the Act. Independent members for this purpose are independent appointees, 
excluding current and former elected members (or officers) and their close families and friends. 
This means that elected members will not have a majority input to assessing bids and choosing 
to which audit firm to award a contract for the Council/Authority’s external audit.  

Alternatively, the Act enables the Council to join with other authorities to establish a joint 
auditor panel. Again, this will need to be constituted of wholly or a majority of independent 
appointees. Further legal advice would be required on the exact constitution of such a panel 
having regard to the obligations of each Council/Authority under the Act and the Council would 
need to liaise with other local authorities to assess the appetite for such an arrangement. 

These would be more resource-intensive processes to implement for the council, and without 
the bulk buying power of the sector-led procurement would be likely to result in a more costly 
service. It would also be more difficult to manage quality and independence requirements 

                                            
1 MHCLG’s Spring statement proposes that overarching responsibility for Code will in due course transfer to the system leader, namely 
ARGA, the new regulator being established to replace the FRC. Page 206



through a local appointment process. The council is unable to influence the scope of the audit 
and the regulatory regime inhibits the council’s ability to affect quality.  

The Council and its auditor panel would need to maintain ongoing oversight of the contract. 
Local contract management cannot, however, influence the scope or delivery of an audit. 

The national offer provides the appointment of an independent auditor with limited 
administrative cost to the council. By joining the scheme, the council would be acting  with other 
councils to optimise the opportunity to influence the market that a national procurement 
provides.    

The recommended approach is therefore to opt in to the national auditor appointment scheme.   
 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

None 

STAFFING 

None 

CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Section 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 requires a relevant Council to appoint a local 
auditor to audit its accounts for a financial year not later than 31 December in the preceding year.  

Section 8 governs the procedure for appointment including that the Council must consult and take 
account of the advice of its auditor panel on the selection and appointment of a local auditor. Section 

8 provides that where a relevant Council is a local Council operating executive arrangements, the 
function of appointing a local auditor to audit its accounts is not the responsibility of an executive of 
the Council under those arrangements. 

Section 12 makes provision for the failure to appoint a local auditor. The Council must immediately 
inform the Secretary of State, who may direct the Council to appoint the auditor named in the 
direction or appoint a local auditor on behalf of the Council.  

Section 17 gives the Secretary of State the power to make regulations in relation to an ‘appointing 
person’ specified by the Secretary of State.  This power has been exercised in the Local Audit 
(Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 (SI 192) and this gives the Secretary of State the ability to 
enable a sector-led body to become the appointing person. In July 2016 the Secretary of State 

specified PSAA as the appointing person. 

Regulation 19 of the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 requires that a decision to 
opt in must be made by a meeting of the Council/Authority (meeting as a whole), except where the 
authority is a corporation sole.  

The Council then needs to respond formally to PSAA’s invitation in the form specified by PSAA by the 
close of the opt-in period (11 March 2022).  

PSAA will commence the formal procurement process in early February 2022. It expects to award 
contracts in August 2022 and will then consult with authorities on the appointment of auditors so 
that it can make appointments by the statutory deadline of 31 December 2022.  
 

Page 207



DATA PROTECTION 

None 

FINANCIAL 

There is a risk that current external audit fee levels could increase when the current contracts end. 
It is clear that the scope of audit has increased, requiring more audit work. There are also concerns 
about capacity and sustainability in the local audit market. 

Opting into a national scheme provides maximum opportunity to ensure fees are as realistic as 
possible, while ensuring the quality of audit is maintained, by entering into a large scale collective 
procurement arrangement. 

If the national scheme is not used some additional resource may be needed to establish an auditor 
panel and conduct a local procurement. Until a procurement exercise is completed it is not possible 

to state what, if any, additional resource may be required for audit fees from 2023/24.  
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 

The principal risks are that the Council: 

• fails to appoint an auditor in accordance with the requirements and timing specified in local audit 
legislation; or 

• does not achieve value for money in the appointment process.  

These risks are considered best mitigated by opting into the sector-led approach through PSAA. 
 
STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

No formal consultation has been undertaken, but the item has been discussed with the Portfolio 

Holder for Finance, Commercialisation & Partnerships and the Governance & Audit committee. 

If the Council wishes to take advantage of the national auditor appointment arrangements, it is 

required under the local audit regulations to make the decision at full Council. The opt-in period 

starts on 22 September 2021 and closes on 11 March 2022. To opt into the national scheme from 

2023/24, the Council needs to return completed opt-in documents to PSAA by 11 March 2022. 

CONTRACTS 

The current PSAA contract is with Mazars and will expire at the end of the 2022/23 audit. 

ACRONYMS 

PSAA – Pubic Sector Auditor Appointments 

FRC - Financial Reporting Council  

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A Invitation to become an opted-in authority 

 

Page 208



BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 

in the production of this report. 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

 

Name of body Date 

Appointment of External Auditors Audit & Governance Committee,  7th February 2022 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Samantha Knowles, Assistant Director – Finance 

sknowles@sholland.gov.uk 

Signed off by: Christine Marshall, Deputy Chief Executive 

Corporate Development & S151 Officer 

Christine.Marshall@sholland.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 209

mailto:Christine.Marshall@sholland.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appointing Period 2023/24 to 2027/28 
Form of notice of acceptance of the invitation to opt in 

(Please use the details and text below to submit to PSAA your body’s formal notice of 

acceptance of the invitation to opt into the appointing person arrangements from 2023) 

 

 
Email to: ap2@psaa.co.uk 
 
 

Subject: Boston Borough Council 

 Notice of acceptance of the invitation to become an opted-in authority 

 
This email is notice of the acceptance of your invitation dated 22 September 2021 to become 

an opted-in authority for the audit years 2023/2024 to 2027/2028 for the purposes of the 

appointment of our auditor under the provisions of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 

2014 and the requirements of the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015. 

 

I confirm that Boston Borough Council has made the decision to accept your invitation to 

become an opted-in authority in accordance with the decision making requirements of the 

Regulations, and that I am authorised to sign this notice of acceptance on behalf of the 

authority. 

 

Name: [insert name of signatory] 

Title: [insert role of signatory] (authorised officer) 

For and on behalf of: Boston Borough Council 

Date: [insert date completed] 

 
 

Page 211

mailto:ap2@psaa.co.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	A. MINUTES
	1 AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
	A&G Minutes - 8 November 2021

	2 BUDGET AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2022.23 TO 2026.7
	BBC Council - March 2022 - Appendix A - Budget Setting Report 2022.23
	BBC Council - March 2022 - Appendix 1 - Summary by Portfolio 2022-23
	BBC Council - March 2022 - Appendix 2 - Summary by Assistant Director 2022-23
	BBC Council - March 2022 - Appendix 3 - Corporate Charging Policy 2022-23
	BBC Council - March 2022 - Appendix 4 - Fees  Charges 2022-23
	BBC Council - March 2022 - Appendix 5 Earmarked Reserves
	BBC Council - March 2022 - Appendix 6 - Treasury Management Strategy MRP Policy and Annual Investment Plan 2022-23
	BBC Council - March 2022 - Appendix 7 - Annual Delivery Plan 2022.23
	BBC Council - March 2022 - Appendix 8 - Budget Consultation Report 2022.23

	3 COUNCIL TAX SETTING 2022/23
	BBC Council Report Appendix A Council Tax Resolutions 2022_23
	BBC Council Tax Report Appendix B Parish Council Tax Base and Precepts 22_23
	BBC Council Tax Report Appendix C District plus Parish Band D 2022_23
	BBC Council Tax Report Appendix D  District and Parish Council Tax by Valuation Band 2022_23
	BBC Council Tax Report Appendix E Overall Levels of Council Tax by Band 2022_23
	Council Tax Report Appendix F council tax resolution definitions

	4 PAY POLICY STATEMENT
	BBC Pay Policy Statement FINAL DRAFT 20220221

	5 APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS
	Boston Borough Council - Appendix A


